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The paintings of Hüseyin Avni Lifij continue as the 
theme of this year’s annual report as in previous 
years. One of the most talented painters of the 
1914 Era (also referred to as the “Çallı” period), 
Avni Lifij’s portfolio, which represents a turning 
point in the history of Turkish Painting, is displayed 
in all its beauty. Taken from the Collection of 
Erdal-Belkıs Aksoy, Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of our Company, and his wife, we hope 
these paintings will serve to enhance local and 
international awareness of Turkish Art and Artists.

HÜSEYİN AVNİ LİFİJ (1886-1927)

Hüseyin Avni Lifij was born in the small village of Karaabdalsultan, in Samsun’s Ladik district, 
in 1886. He was the son of a Circassian family who migrated from the Caucasia to Samsun 
during the 1877-78 Ottoman-Russian War. By the time he graduated from a Fatih elementary 
school in 1896, after moving to Istanbul, he was already recognised as an outstanding pupil 
for his interest in painting. He completed his secondary education at Numune-i Terakki School 
in Şehzadebaşı, during which time he fell ill and could not attend school for two years. Even 
then, he advanced his education through private tutors and took French lessons at Alyans 
Israelite School. It is believed that his professional interest in painting began around this time.

Between1901-1904, he worked as a civil servant at the State Railway Company, meanwhile 
attending medical school as a non-participating student to learn anatomy, and taking 
chemistry lessons in the school of pharmacy to improve his colour technique. After seeing 
his early self-portraits, his first French teacher advised him to present his drawings to Osman 
Hamdi Bey, the Director of the School of Sanayi-i Nefise (Academy of Fine Arts). Lifij then 
registered in the Academy and officially began his art training. Osman Hamdi Bey must have 
seen a gift in Lifij’s works because he presented his self-portraits and other paintings to Prince 
Abdülmecid and recommended Lifij among a number of others to be sent to Paris for art 
school.

Lifij went to Paris in 1909 under Abdülmecid’s patronage with other pioneers such as Hikmet 
Onat, Feyhaman Duran and İbrahim Çallı. While the others were mostly influenced by the 
“Impressionist” movement of the modern era, Lifij was attracted to “Symbolism”. 

Probably due to the termination of the Prince’s sponsorship, Lifij was called back to Istanbul 
in 1912 at the beginning of the Balkan Wars. He taught painting at Istanbul Erkek Lisesi 
(Boy’s School) and French at Kandilli Kız Lisesi (Girl’s School). He participated in Galatasaray 
Sultanisi (University) Mixed Art Exhibitions. At the end of World War I, he was introduced at 
the exhibition of war paintings in Vienna with 18 of his works. He went to see Mustafa Kemal 
(Atatürk) at his welcoming ceremony in Bursa in 1922. Later on, Atatürk took him back to 
Ankara and accommodated him at the headquarters of the General Staff, where he made the 
first portrait of Marshall Fevzi Çakmak.

Lifij founded the “Ornamental Arts Department” at the Academy of Fine Arts in Istanbul in 
1924. He also wrote articles about the official policy towards art after the establishment of 
the Turkish Republic, as well as the general artistic affinity of Turkish society at the time. He 
died in his Laleli home at just 41 years of age due to health problems.
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Turcas’ vision is to become the most respected, dynamic and 
effective “Integrated Energy Company” of Turkey and its region. In 
light of this vision, Turcas, with more than 80 years of experience 
in the main categories of the energy sector such as oil, gas 
and power, focuses on domestic and international investments, 
operations and projects that create synergy and added value in 
the fields of exploration, production, transportation, distribution, 
storage, marketing and trading of the various forms of energy.

VISION

VALUES
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Turcas adopted the mission of offering customers the highest 
quality products and services according to the best environmental, 
social and ethical standards of behaviour. The main goals of 
Turcas are to sustain growth and continue creating value for its 
shareholders by providing the necessary tools for the professional 
development of its employees while protecting the heritage and 
values of Turkey.

The principle values of Turcas are: its respectability, its ability to differentiate and to become a leader in what it does, its possession of the 
highest ethics and commitment to good corporate governance at global standards, and its tradition of cooperating and partnering with global 
companies in a successful and sustainable manner.

MISSION
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GROUP STRUCTURE

FUEL RETAIL AND LUBRICANTS

ATAŞ

1 97.5% shares of Turcas Power Generation belong to Turcas Energy Holding and the remaining 2.5% shares belong to Turcas Petrol.

2 67% shares of Turcas Power Trading belong to Turcas Energy Holding and the remaining 33% shares belong to Turcas Petrol. 

3 100% shares of Turcas Gas Trading belong to Turcas Petrol.
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REFINING

TURCAS REFINERY INVESTMENTS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Turcas Petrol A.Ş. - Financial Summary (Million   )  2008 2009 2010 2011

Net Sales  57.3 45.0 52.3 10.9
Profit before Tax    49.1 31.1 59.7 102.8
Taxes  (3.9) (3.5) (3.3) (4.8)
Net Profit  45.1 27.6 56.3 97.9
Earnings per Share   0.33 0.12 0.25 0.43
 
Total Assets  520.9 517.1 561.2 860.1
Long-Term Assets  394.5 443.9 504.9 688
Shareholders' Equity  505.6 504.1 547.6 629.2 
     
Short-Term Liabilities  10.2 8.5 9 16.3
Long-Term Liabilities  5 4.4 4.5 214.4
Total Liabilities  15.2 12.9 13.5 230.7
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Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş. - Financial Summary (Million   ) 2008 2009 2010 2011
  
Net Sales 9,534 7,861 9,395 10,760
Operational Profit 267 222 220 190
Profit before Tax 225 226 207 75
Taxes (47) (48) (43) (22)
Net Profit 177 178 164 53
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization) 384 350 361 435
Earnings per Share 0.34 0.34 0.31 0.11
    
Short-Term Assets 1,103 1,059 1,350 1,734
Long-Term Assets 1,037 1,064 1,115 1,101
Short-Term Liabilities 797 645 988 1,432
Long-Term Liabilities 59 63 49 43
Shareholders' Equity 1,284 1,414 1,428 1,360
Total Assets  2,140 2,123 2,465 2,835
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Turcas Petrol A.Ş. owns %30 of Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş.
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VOLUME SALES OF SHELL & TURCAS PETROL A.Ş. (Tons)
  2009 2010 2011

Unleaded Gasoline (95 Octane)  540,051 491,258 417,780
Unleaded Gasoline (97 Octane)  101,600 85,909 84,824
Unleaded Gasoline with Additives  2,019 0 0
Total Gasoline Sales  643,670 577,167 502,604
    
Diesel (High Sulphur)  1,711,268 1,611,334 1,589,403
Eurodiesel (Low Sulphur)  909,666 1,067,581 985,943
Total Diesel sales  2,620,934 2,678,915 2,575,346
    
LPG (Auto-gas)  252,207 278,132 297,747
    
Total Automotive Fuels  3,516,811 3,534,214 3,375,697
    
Lubricants  68,610 67,934 71,109

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
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OWNERSHIP AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
  
Group Number of Shares
A  224,999,850.00
B  112.50
C  37.50
Total  225,000,000.00

Company Name Turcas Petrol A.Ş.
Listed Exchanges Istanbul Stock Exchange (ISE)
Listed Indexes XU100, XKMYA, XKURY, XUTUM, XYUZO, XSIST, XTMTU, XUSIN, XULUS
Ticker TRCAS
Bloomberg Ticker TRCAS TI
Reuters Ticker TRCAS IS
IPO Date April 6, 1992

STOCK INFORMATION

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE
     
Name  Number of Shares  %
Aksoy Holding A.Ş.  115,979,909.82 51.5%
Free Float  65,204,695.22  29.0%
Local Minority Shareholders  43,815,394.96  19.5%
  
Total  225,000,000.00  100%

29% 51.5%

19.5%

Aksoy Holding A.Ş. 

Free Float 

Local Minority Shareholders
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TURCAS, WITH 81 YEARS OF EXPERIENCE AND PARTICIPATIONS 
IN COMPANIES WHO HOLD THE LEADING POSITIONS IN THEIR 
RESPECTIVE BUSINESS AREAS, HAS UTMOST CONFIDENCE IN THE 
FUTURE OF THE TURKISH ECONOMY AND THE ENERGY SECTOR.
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

Erdal AKSOY
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Esteemed Shareholders,

The model created by Turkey in the realm of changing global 
dynamics, and the effective development of the Turkish 
business community, casts Turcas in a significant role in the 
energy center of the world, in which 70% of the world’s 
proven oil and gas reserves lie. Although the region includes a 
number of challenges, it also provides many opportunities.

Turkey has sustained its economic growth during the global 
crisis, thanks to prudent measures and a stable political 
approach.

Growth in the energy sector has been even higher. Turcas 
has focused on sustainable growth during this period and 
set its strategy to develop current operations and maximize 
opportunities. Given this backdrop, Turcas has mainly 
concentrated on issues such as risk analysis, environmental 
consciousness, competition, innovation and entrepreneurship.

The following issues will be at the forefront of priorities of our 
company until 2015:

- Local and renewable energy investments, 

- Generation and Trading and playing an active role in the    
  establishment of an Energy Exchange,
 
- Developing projects in neighbouring countries where we 
  can create synergy and cooperation with large scale energy  
  companies.

Another significant point of focus will be to preserve and 
enhance our financial performance and market capitalization, 
even in times of crisis.

TURCAS HAS 
FOCUSED ON 
SUSTAINABLE 

GROWTH AND 
SET ITS STRATEGY 

TO DEVELOP 
CURRENT 

OPERATIONS AND 
MAXIMIZE NEW 
OPPORTUNITIES.
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As Turcas, we always act under the principle of completing our 
investments in time and within budget because we focus on 
the performance and financial well being of our participations 
with the aim of reaching the cash-generation stage as early as 
possible.

In line with this principle, we aimed to exit from risky 
investments and raise our cash position which would enable 
us to comfortably realize the investments that will play a key 
role in our growth.

All employees and management of Turcas, carry significant 
responsibilities in the achivement of our short and long-term 
targets. Reciept of the award as the "Company that achieved 
the highest increase in its Corporate Governance Rating Score" 
from the Corporate Governance Association of Turkey (CGAT) in 
2011, is a clear evidence that our employees will be the real 
architects of our future. 

Turkish Capital Markets Board’s 6-year limitation on the term of 
independent Board Membership necessitated some changes in 
the Board composition of our company. In particular, Mr. Bülent 
Çorapçı, Mr. İlhan Nebioğlu and Mr. Süreyya Serdengeçti, who 
have all made incalculable contributions to the development of   
Turcas over the last six years, have handed in their resignations 
and stepped down from the Board. We certainly owe them a 
huge debt of gratitude.

As a result of the aforementioned change in the Board, three 
new members joined our company:

  1- Mrs. Ayşe Botan Berker, former General Manager and 
      Member of the Board of Fitch Turkey, to take the company  
      to greater heights in corporate governance standards and 
      risk management.

  2- Mr. Mehmet Sami, Member of the Board of Ata 
      Investment, to contribute to the implementation of global 
      financial solutions and business trends.

  3- Mr. Matthew J. Bryza, former US Ambassador to Azerbaijan 
      and former US Deputy Assistant Secretary of State 
      for European and Eurasian Affairs, to contribute to the 
      implementation of our new generation projects throughout 
      our region where economy and politics mingle intimately.

We would like to say a warm welcome to all of our new Board 
Members.

SIGNIFICANT POINT OF FOCUS 
WILL BE TO PRESERVE AND 
ENHANCE OUR FINANCIAL 

PERFORMANCE AND MARKET 
CAPITALIZATION, EVEN IN 

TIMES OF CRISIS.



15

Since 1931, Turcas has become an enterprise that closely 
cooperates with the major international actors of the energy 
sector in the globalizing world. Turcas presents itself to the 
world by means of its past performance and has now entered 
a whole new phase of development. Turcas, renowned for 
its reputable identity in the Middle East, one of the world’s 
most influential economic regions, has reached the level of 
participating in new projects preferably with major partners 
as usual, thanks to its strong and reliable relations, 50+ 
years of experience with international energy companies, 
top references, and its approach in overcoming difficulties in 
various countries across the region.

We have travelled a very long and striving road over the 
last 80 years, and now we have arrived at a new junction of 
great opportunities thanks to our experiences along this road, 
and our partnership culture, entrepreneurship, employees, 
management team and most importantly the trust of our 
partners and shareholders.

Turcas is now ready to take on even bigger challenges with 
the strength and confidence it possesses.

Sincerely yours,

Erdal AKSOY
Chairman of the Board of Directors

RECIEPT OF THE AWARD 
AS THE "COMPANY 

THAT ACHIEVED THE 
HIGHEST INCREASE IN ITS 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
RATING SCORE" FROM THE 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
ASSOCIATION OF TURKEY 

(CGAT) IN 2011, IS A 
CLEAR EVIDENCE THAT 

OUR EMPLOYEES WILL BE 
THE REAL ARCHITECTS OF 

OUR FUTURE. 
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CEO's MESSAGE 

S. Batu AKSOY
CEO & Board Member 
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Esteemed Shareholders,

I am very pleased to address you for the first time since my 
appointment in 2010, as the CEO of Turcas, via our 2011 Annual 
Report.

The Turkish economy grew by 8.5% in 2011, similar to 2010, and 
last year witnessed accelerated investments in many private sectors, 
including energy. This level of growth, which has made our economy 
the highest growing in Europe and second highest growing in the 
world, continues to be a source of pride for us all.

As you are aware, Turcas redefined its vision with a view to 
becoming an "Integrated Energy Company" in 2006 and focused 
on implementing important investment decisions taken within this 
framework. For the healthy and sustainable achievement of this 
vision, we continue to prioritize "Possessing a Diversified Portfolio", 
"Possessing Our Own Resources", and "Technology & Productivity".

Our aim was to position Turcas as one of Turkey’s leading energy 
companies after we founded Shell & Turcas Petrol in 2006, and 
merged our main business field, fuel distribution and lubricants, with 
Shell as a result of a strategic decision taken in 2003. Accordingly, 
besides breaking into the refining and petrochemicals sector, we 
started to invest in the power sector, where we believe we will 
create new values at Turcas in line with addressing Turkey’s energy 
requirements.

In parallel with these developments, we began to procure 
management consulting services pertaining to Organisation, 
Productivity and Personnel Development from Karuna Management 
Consulting in 2009, in order to better administrate growth, bolster 
sustainable corporate structure, prepare for the future, and most of 
all improve human resources, which is one of our most valuable 
sources of wealth. Within this context, we have completed detailed 
trainings on Situation Analysis, Analysis and Redesign of Processes, 
Job Descriptions and Simple Organizational Chart, Job Evaluation-
Salary Scale and Benefits-in-kind, Performance Appraisal System, 
Constitution of Regulations, and Succession-Career-Training-
Development Planning as of the end of 2011.

In order to identify our employees’ areas for development, and 
prepare relevant action plans within the framework of Succession- 
Career-Training-Development Planning, we applied 16 PF Character 
Analysis and KAI Creative Thinking Analysis to each individual. We 
drew up our training plans with a focus on developing management 
skills and the 4 core competencies (Communication Problem Solving, 
Team Work, Flexibility and Change), which all of our employees 
should possess. In addition, we implemented the Coaching Program 
in 2012, to improve the behavioural and administrative capabilities of 
our employees in the ‘potential pool’.
 
Furthermore, in 2011, we were highly satisfied by being the company 
that achieved the greatest improvement in its corporate governance 
rating score in ISE’s Corporate Governance Index. As well as boosting 
our 2010 score of 7.52 to 8.12, we are proud to acknowledge that our 
score has further risen to 8.40 as of the date of issue (May 2012) of 
this report.

We took significant steps towards enriching ourselves by organizing 
a dynamic team consisting of experienced and young, conscientious, 
motivated and expert personnel, within the body of both the 
Directorate of Coordination and Regulatory Affairs, consisting of the 
administrative units of our company, and the Directorate of Power and 
Gas Group, developing and running our energy projects.

A financial summary of the year 2011 reveals that we boosted our 
net profit by 75% to TL 98 million compared to the previous year, and 
our earnings per share to TL 0.43.

I would like to sincerely thank our Chairman and the Members of the 
Board of Directors who have always supported and guided us, my 
dear colleagues, and our valuable shareholders and partners, for all of 
our achievements.
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In addition, I also would like to thank, from the bottom of my heart, 
to Mr. Bülent Çorapçı, Mr. İlhan Nebioğlu and Mr. Süreyya Serdengeçti, 
who have resigned and stepped down from their memberships of the 
Board of Directors as of April 2012, and who have offered us many 
years of invaluable insight.

Fuel Retail and Lubricants

It can be said that fuel distribution, our core business activity, was 
favourably impacted by the Turkish economy’s rapid growth. Although 
the consumption of Gasoline declined by 9% in 2011, Diesel and LPG 
(Auto-gas) consumption grew by 2.2% and 1.9%, respectively. Total 
consumption of these three products rose from 23,499,135 m3 in 
2010 to 23,688,714 m3 in 2011. We observe that consumers make 
cost-oriented choices, and consequently expect that Gasoline sales 
will fall, while the demand for Diesel and LPG (Auto-gas) will remain 
on an upward trend.

2011 was a year in which all of the companies operating in the fuel 
distribution sector renewed a considerable number of the contracts 
signed with their retailers in accordance with the new regulations, 
and thus major investments have been made. Amortization expenses 
of the aforesaid investments, and foreign exchange losses due to the 
depreciation of the Turkish Lira during the year, caused a decline in 
the profit of our group’s flagship company, Shell & Turcas (Turcas owns 
30% of Shell & Turcas and receives considerable dividend income 
from this subsidary) from TL 164 million in 2010 to TL 53 million in 
2011. Therefore, the contribution of Shell & Turcas to Turcas' 2011 
consolidated net profit amounted to only TL 15.9 million, as opposed 
to TL 49 million in 2010. Also, Turcas’ Joint Venture Contract Revenue 
obtained from Shell & Turcas fell from TL 16.2 million in 2010 to TL 
12.7 million in 2011, also due to the aforementioned reasons.

As of 2011, Shell & Turcas retains its leading position with a 27% 
market share in Gasoline sales and a 25% market share in Lubricant 
sales, and holds second position in total white products with a 19.3% 
market share. The total amount of Gasoline and Diesel sales has 
reached 3.7 million m3. Shell & Turcas retains the lead in sales per 
station, which is an important indicator of productivity and profitability 

in the sector, with an amount of 3,670 m3. Shell & Turcas’ fuel station 
network consists of app. 1,050 Shell branded stations nationwide.

When we look at Shell & Turcas only financials, turnover was up 
14% to TL 10.8 billion and gross profit rose by 8% to TL 662 million. 
Despite the considerable investments towards renewing dealer 
contracts, the EBITDA margin grew from 3.9% in 2010 to 4% in 2011. 
The most significant reason for the 68% decline in net profit in 2011 
(TL 53 million) compared to the previous year is the level of financial 
expenses, which rose by some TL 100 million. The main factors 
contributing to this hike in financial expenses are the jump in short-
term loans geared at raising operational capital requirements and the 
depreciation of the Turkish Lira.

At a glance of the Shell & Turcas Balance Sheet, it can be seen that 
the 15% growth in assets in 2011 mainly arose from the operational 
capital. The 48% share of the financing of shareholders' equity is an 
indicator of the sustainable growth achieved by Shell & Turcas.

Shell & Turcas was chosen as “The Most Admired Company in the 
Fuel Distribution and Lubricants Sector” in the “Turkey’s Most Admired 
Companies” Survey, conducted by the prominent economy magazine 
Capital in 2011, repeating its success in the years 2007, 2008, 2009 
and 2010.

Refining & Petrochemicals

Within the framework of the restructuring of the partnership with 
SOCAR, we transferred our 25% shareholding in STEAŞ to SOCAR. 
At the same time, we purchased 18.5% of the shares of SOCAR & 
Turcas Refining (now named STAR Refining), developer of the SOCAR 
& Turcas Aegean Refinery Investment, through Turcas Refinery 
Investments, our fully owned subsidiary, from STEAŞ. As a result 
of this restructuring, Turcas no longer holds any direct or indirect 
shareholding in STEAŞ, SOCAR & Turcas Petrochemicals or Petkim 
Petrochemicals Holding. However, our 18.5% shareholding in the 
SOCAR & TURCAS Aegean Refinery Investment, which will have an 
annual capacity of 10 million tonnes, still continues. This vertical 
integration, along with the synergy of the refinery investment 
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that will be created by the current operations of Turcas in the fuel 
distribution sector, will support our strategy of creating long-term 
value. We firmly believe that we have enhanced the productivity of 
our portfolio by means of this restructuring.

The $ 44 million income obtained from the aforementioned share 
sale impacted Turcas’ consolidated net profit positively, and this 
cash inflow augmented Turcas’ shareholders' equity in the refinery 
investment with 18.5% of the shares.

There were some significant developments in the SOCAR & Turcas 
Aegean Refinery (STAR) Project, which has been the largest and 
most important investment in the agenda of SOCAR & Turcas 
partnership, in 2011. Unicredit was appointed to obtain the financing 
of the refinery project as the sole financial advisor. The project was 
launched in October 2011, and construction operations pertaining to 
the preparation of the ground works have already commenced. Bank 
of Tokyo Mitsubishi was appointed as the ECA Coordinating Bank. It 
is planned that the EPC Contract will be signed and financial closing 
will be achieved by the end of 2012 so that the facility can come on 
stream by 2016. 

STAR is planned to be installed within the existing Petkim site and will 
meet Petkim’s feedstock requirements including LPG, Naphtha and 
Xylenes, and supply Diesel and Jet Fuel to the domestic market, which 
currently suffers considerable shortage and relies on imports. There 
are no plans to produce either Gasoline or Fuel Oil in STAR, which will 
make a significant contribution towards reducing the current account 
deficit of our country.

A FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
OF THE YEAR 2011 REVEALS 

THAT WE BOOSTED OUR 
NET PROFIT BY 75% TO 

TL 98 MILLION COMPARED 
TO THE PREVIOUS YEAR AND 
OUR EARNINGS PER SHARE 

TO TL 0.43.
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Power Generation and Trading

The power sector, in which Turcas Petrol facilitates and makes 
investments through its subsidiary, Turcas Energy Holding, was one of 
the fastest growing sectors in Turkey in 2011. Turkey’s total installed 
capacity reached 53,050 MW by the end of 2011 in order to meet 
expanding electricity demand, and a new capacity of 3,530 MW came 
on stream in power generation.

As you will recall, we had already started the construction of our 
775 MW Denizli Natural Gas fired Combined Cycle Power Plant in July 
2010. We co-own this project through RWE & Turcas South Power 
Generation JV together with the energy company RWE of Germany, 
our main partner in the power sector. Our fully owned subsidiary 
Turcas Power Generation (TPG), which holds a 30% share in this 
partnership, has already transferred EUR 30 million of corporate cash 
into the share capital to the project company for the financing of EUR 
180 million, which is equivalent to Turcas’ 30% share of the EUR 600 
million total investment cost. For the financing of the remaining EUR 
150 million, export credit agency commissions and interest incurred 
during the construction period, TPG signed an Export Credit Agency 
(ECA) covered Loan Agreement with West Landesbank-Bayerische 
Landesbank Banks Consortium, under Euler Hermes German ECA 
insurance, for an amount of EUR 149 million, with a 13-year term 
including a 3-year grace period, and a Commercial Loan Agreement 
with the Industrial Development Bank of Turkey (TSKB) for an amount 
of $ 55 million with a 10-year term including a 3-year grace period. 
The total amount of the loans utilized from West Landesbank-
Bayerische Landesbank Banks Consortium reached EUR 98 million as 
of the end of 2011.

Denizli Plant, our flagship investment in the power sector, is slated 
to become operational in the last quarter of 2012. Turcas and RWE 
have structured the Denizli Project by 100% capital financing. Within 
this context, both partners will transfer, in their entirety, the required 
amounts to the project company constructing Denizli Project, financed 
by 75% Shareholders Loan and 25% equity, in accordance with the 
Thin Capitalisation Rule of the Turkish Commercial Code (TCC).

The aforementioned Shareholders Loan is linked up to the repayment 
schedule parallel to the loans provided by the Banks Consortium 
for Turcas Power Generation. Therefore, the financial debt in the 
consolidated balance sheet of Turcas Petrol as of the end of 2011, will 
be paid by means of the collection of the long-term receivables listed 
in the long-term receivables section of the balance sheet.

During 2011, our fully owned subsidiary Turcas Power Trading (TPT) 
boosted its sales volume and resumed its restructuring as part of its 
preparations for the expected liberalisation of the electricity market, 
under the umbrella of Turcas Energy Holding. TPT’s efforts to boost its 
customer portfolio and infrastructure, diversify its sales channels, and 
augment its know-how are expected to support Turcas’ financials in 
2012.

Renewable Energy Investments

A significant part of the new capacity that was activated in 2011 
consisted of renewable energy investments. Turcas’ operations in 
the development of renewable energy projects based on wind and 
geothermal energy sources, with the purpose of diversifying the 
power generation portfolio, still continue.

In order to make renewable and sustainable energy investments, 
Turcas Wind Energy, a fully owned subsidiary of Turcas Energy Holding, 
had applied to the Energy Market Regulatory Authority (EMRA) for 
licenses to make wind farm investments at 6 different sites across 
Turkey back in 2007. In accordance with the principle of investing 
in profitable energy projects, the company did not submit the high 
accretion values which would negatively effect the project feasibilities 
in the capacity tenders of transformer substations, organized by the 
Turkish Electricity Transmission Company (TETC) in 2011 for wind 
energy licenses dated November 1, 2007, and thus was not awarded 
with any license.
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Turcas amended the Articles of Association of Turcas Wind Energy 
Generation on October 25, 2011, with the purpose of developing 
projects related to other renewable energy sources as well. On the 
same date, title of the company was changed to Turcas Renewable 
Energy Generation, in order to reflect the new business segments in 
the company name.

Turcas Renewable Energy Generation (Turcas Renewable) has initiated 
research and explorations, with its exploration licenses, for power 
generation from geothermal sources in the provinces of Aydın, Denizli 
and Izmir. Drilling works are slated to commence in the 4th quarter 
of 2012, according to the results of the geological and geophysical 
measurements and research, and explorations of the geothermal 
potential.

Turcas Renewable continuously undertakes wind, solar and 
hydroelectric power station development activities that have high 
economic feasibility and is always on the lookout for suitable 
opportunities for investment.

Financing and Balance Sheet

Despite the TL 6.6 million financial expense paid for the long-term 
loans for the financing of the Denizli Project, the amount of interest 
income obtained from cash and securities evaluated during the year 
was TL 11.25 million in 2011. Foreign exchange losses worth TL 
18.8 million on financial loans for projects, due to the depreciation 
of the Turkish Lira, were offset to a considerable extent by the TL 12 
million foreign exchange gains from current cash accounts in foreign 
currencies. As a result of all these factors, net financial expenses, 
including foreign exchange differences, amounted to TL 1.5 million. 

Turcas’ assets achieved sustainable growth of 54% when compared 
to 2010. The major factors in this growth are the capital transferred 
to the 775MW Natural Gas fired Combined Cycle Power Plant under 
construction in Denizli and the Shareholders' Loan transfers into 
the, RWE & Turcas JV. As mentioned above, the financing of the 

asset growth is covered by long-term financial loans obtained under 
favourable conditions.

The ratio of shareholders' equity in asset financing is still at a very 
high level of 73%, despite the long-term financial loans used for the 
projects in 2011. The ratio of net financial debts of TL 94 million to 
total asset financing is at a very low level of 11%, considering cash 
and securities worth TL 118 million. The fact that the receivables from 
SOCAR & Turcas Energy (now named SOCAR Turkey Energy) and STAR 
Refining worth TL 49 million, which can be seen in the Short Term 
Receivables, will be collected during 2012, will further strengthen 
Turcas’ TL 118 million cash balance, and will also enhance its budget 
for the capital share to be transferred to the STAR Refinery Project, 
which is the company’s most important project for the immediate 
future.

I would like to thank you most sincerely for your trust and support, 
and would also like to announce that we will continue making 
investments that create synergy for each other by means of creative 
ideas, in order to consistently maximize Turcas’ shareholder value 
without compromising from our dividend distribution policy.

Sincerely yours,

Batu AKSOY
CEO & Board Member 
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Member and CEO

Süreyya SERDENGEÇTİ
Member Bülent ÇORAPÇI

Member 
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Erdal AKSOY
Chairman

Banu AKSOY TARAKÇIOĞLU
Member 

M. İlhan NEBİOĞLU
Member

Yılmaz TECMEN
Vice Chairman
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Erdal AKSOY
Chairman

Erdal Aksoy has been the Chairman of the Board of Directors of 
Turcas Petrol and its controlled subsidiaries since 1996. He is the 
Founder and Chairman of the Boards of Directors of Aksoy Holding, 
Enak Construction and Foreign Trade, and the Conrad Istanbul Hotel 
(Yeditepe International). Mr. Aksoy is also a Member of the Board 
of Directors of Shell & Turcas Petrol and is the Vice Chairman of the 
Boards of Directors of RWE & Turcas South Power Generation and 
RWE & Turcas North Power Generation. In addition, he is a Member 
of TÜSİAD (Turkish Industrialists’ and Businessmen’s Association) and 
a Member of the Advisory Board of TESEV (Turkish Economic and 
Social Studies Foundation). Having formerly served as a Member 
of the Board of Directors of TİSK (Turkish Confederation of Employer 
Associations), Erdal Aksoy served for a period as the Istanbul 
Provincial Head of the Motherland Party (ANAP), and the President 
of the Sarıyer Sports Club. Erdal Aksoy, an Electrical & Electronics 
Engineering Graduate of Istanbul Technical University, is fluent in 
English and is married with two children.

Yılmaz TECMEN
Vice Chairman

Yılmaz Tecmen is the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of 
Turcas Petrol and its controlled subsidiaries (Member since 1996, Vice 
Chairman since 2005), and a Member of the Corporate Governance 
Committee. In addition, he is the Founder of the Kalyon Hotel and 
Chairman of its Board of Directors, and serves as a Member of the 
Board of Directors of Shell & Turcas Petrol Mr. Tecmen is a Board 
Member of PETDER (Petroleum Industry Association), and Founder 
and Member of TUROB (Union of Touristic Hoteliers and Management 
Companies), TUGEV (Tourism Development and Training Foundation), 
and ICVB (Istanbul Convention and Visitors Bureau), of which he is 
also currently the Co-chairman. Yılmaz Tecmen is fluent in English and 
is married with three children.

Süreyya SERDENGEÇTİ
Member

Süreyya Serdengeçti has been a Member of the Board of 
Directors of Turcas Petrol (2006-2012), and a Member of the 
Corporate Governance Committee. Following the completion of 
his undergraduate studies at the Middle East Technical University’s 
Department of Economics and Statistics, Mr Serdengeçti joined the 
Central Bank of Turkey in 1980, where he first worked in the area 
of foreign debt rescheduling. While working at the Central Bank, Mr 
Serdengeçti completed a Masters Degree at Vanderbilt University 
Department of Economics, USA between 1984 and 1986.Upon 
returning to Turkey, he worked at the Foreign Exchange Transactions 
Division of the Central Bank and became Division Manager in 
1990. This was followed by his appointment to the Open Markets 
Operations Division in 1992. He assumed the position of Assistant 
General Secretary in 1994 and as such he was the Press Officer of the 
Central Bank. In the same year, he was appointed as the Assistant 
General Manager of the Foreign Relations Department, and worked 
in the field of Balance of Payments and International Organisations. 
Süreyya Serdengeçti became the General Manager of the Money 
Markets Department in May 1996 where his duties included foreign 
exchange interventions, money markets and Treasury debt auctions 
in addition to international reserves management and open market 
operations. In January 1998, he was appointed as one of the Vice-
Governors in charge of, along with the Money Markets Department, 
Credits, Information Technology and Statistics. Mr Serdengeçti was 
appointed as the Governor of the Central Bank of Turkey on March 14, 
2001, serving in this capacity until March 14, 2006. Upon completion 
of his full term as Governor, he joined the Union of Chambers and 
Exchanges (TOBB) of Turkey as advisor, while at the same time 
assuming the position of senior lecturer at the TOBB University, in 
addition to his duty at TEPAV, a think tank foundation, as the director 
of the Stability Institute. Mr. Serdengeçti is a fluent speaker of English 
and French and is married with one son.
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M. İlhan NEBİOĞLU
Member 

M. İlhan Nebioğlu has been a Member of the Board of Directors of 
Turcas Petrol (2005-2012), and a Member of the Audit Committee as 
well as the Corporate Governance Committee. He carried out duties 
at the Turkey and Middle East Advisory Desk at Standard Bank in 
London from 2001-2011. Between 2000-2006, he was the Chairman, 
and afterwards Advisor, of the Board of Directors of the EBRD and IFC 
privatized Albania BKT Bank. He has been a Member of the Board at 
Borusan Yatırım since 2008. He has also served as a Member of the 
Board of Executive Committee of JWThompson/ Manajans since 2004. 
Between the years 1992 and 2001, he worked at Dresdner Kleinwort 
Benson Investment Bank, supervising the Turkey Desk. He was the 
European representative of Yapı Kredi Bank (1984-88) and afterwards 
at Garanti Bank (1988-92) in London. Between 1980 and 1983, 
he founded the Borusan Iron and Steel Trade Company (Borusan 
Comment Intertrade) in Dusseldorf, Germany and became General 
Manager. In his earlier years in London he worked as a publisher and 
Editor at the Export Times. İlhan Nebioğlu speaks fluent English and 
German.

Bülent ÇORAPÇI
Member 

Bülent Çorapçı has been a Member of the Board of Directors of 
Turcas Petrol (1998-2012), and a Member of the Audit Committee. 
Bülent Çorapçı is a Sworn-in Certified Public Accountant, a Member 
of the Private Tax Specialty Commission (Tax Counsel), a Member of 
TÜSİAD Economic Committee (Turkish Industrialists' and Businessmen’s 
Association), a Member of the Board of Auditors of TESEV (Turkish 
Economic and Social Studies Foundation), and Chairman of the Turkish 
Textile Foundation’s Audit Committee. He also serves on the Boards 
of Directors of other companies that are active in the Turkish tourism, 
textile, automotive and chemical industries. Bülent Çorapçı speaks 
fluent English and is married with two children.

Banu AKSOY TARAKÇIOĞLU
Member 

Banu Aksoy Tarakçıoğlu has been a Member of the Board of Directors 
of Turcas Petrol and its controlled subsidiaries (since 2005), and a 
Member of the Risk Management Committee. Having worked at 
the Eurasia Business Development Department of ConocoPhillips 
between 1998 and 2000, Banu Aksoy Tarakçıoğlu is a Member of the 
Boards of Directors of Aksoy Holding, Enak Construction and Foreign 
Trade and Shell Petrol. She is a Member of GYİAD (Young Executives 
and Businessmen’s Association), DEİK (Foreign Economic Relations 
Board), PETFORM (Petroleum Platform Association) PETDER (Petroleum 
Industry Association) and Endeavour Association. Banu Aksoy 
Tarakçıoğlu, a fluent speaker of English, is married with one son, and 
is a graduate of the Business Faculty at Koç University. She has also 
completed a Finance Extension program at University of California at 
Berkeley.

S. Batu AKSOY
Member and CEO

S. Batu Aksoy is the CEO and Member of the Board of Directors of 
Turcas Petrol and its controlled subsidiaries. He is also a Member 
of the Boards of Directors of Aksoy Holding, Enak Construction and 
Foreign Trade, STAR Refining, RWE & Turcas South Power Generation, 
RWE & Turcas North Power Generation and RWE & Turcas Energy 
Sales, where he also is the Vice Chairman. He is also a Member of 
the Board of Directors of PETFORM (Petroleum Platform Association), 
having acted as Chairman between 2006 and 2008, a member 
of TÜSIAD (Turkish Industrialists’ and Businessmen’s Association), 
Vice President of the TÜSİAD Energy Working Group, an Executive 
Committee Member of Turkish - Greek Business Council of DEIK 
(Foreign Economic Relations Board), and a Member of YPO (Young 
Presidents Organization). S. Batu Aksoy, a fluent speaker of English, is 
a graduate of the Electrical and Computer Engineering Faculty of the 
Johns Hopkins University (Baltimore, USA).
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TURCAS HAS A GLOBAL INSTITUTIONAL CULTURE WITH ITS 
EXPERIENCE, SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE AND NUMEROUS 
SUCCESSFUL PARTNERSHIPS.
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AN ASSESSMENT OF THE TURKISH ECONOMY IN 2011

Süreyya SERDENGEÇTİ
 Board Member of Turcas Petrol

Former Governor of the Central Bank of Turkey
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The World in 2011

The global economic recovery that seemed to be underway in 2010 
continued in some parts of the world, especially emerging markets 
(EM), though we have also seen problems in developed economies 
(DE); the European Union (EU) countries being at the core. In a 
nutshell, one can easily say that while growth in EM countries was 
better than that in DE countries, inflation emerged as a problem in EM 
countries though still low in DE countries.

Debt problems became more pronounced in the EU as authorities 
faced immense decision-making problems, unable to reach consensus 
on addressing their issues. Crisis in Greece threatened to spill over 
to other heavily indebted European countries where interest rates 
reached unsustainable levels towards the end of 2011, only to calm 
down to some extent after the December summit.

In the United States (US), recovery was more pronounced in the 
second half of the year with some improvement in the labour market. 
There was disillusion in housing markets though, where recovery 
witnessed in 2009 and early 2010 was not sustained later in 2010 
and 2011.

US growth performance is at 1.8% in 2011, while in the EU, the 
overall growth is now at 1.6% at the end of the year. The overall 
unemployment in the EU is higher than in the US, while as usual 
there is substantial divergence among member states. Japan, 
suffering from the economic consequences of the earthquake in 
March 2011 and deep-rooted structural issues, has contracted by 
0.9% for the whole of 2011.

As for EM countries in 2011, growth in China stood at about 9.2% 
for 2011, after a first half where both growth and inflation were 
relatively higher, and a second half where both came down. Growth 
in India in 2011 was about 7.4%, and in Brazil about 2.9%.
Gold prices continued their climb in 2011, reflecting as in 2010 excess 
global liquidity and lack of confidence in major currencies of the 
world: They reached $1646/ounce after the level of $1100/ounce at 
the end of 2009, and $1380/ounce at the end of 2010.

Food prices could not continue their 2010 upward trend in 2011, 
in fact fell to some degree; energy prices rose until April and then 
followed a downward trend until October, rising slightly after that.

Turkey in 2011: Growth and Unemployment

Though recovery in the global economy faced problems in 2011, 
capital flows and improving economic expectations led to a higher 
than expected growth in Turkey, at 8.5%. This figure is the highest in 
Europe just as in 2010, and one of the highest in the world.

Expenditures in GDP show that domestic demand, especially private 
investment and private consumption, continued their recovery in 
2011, though relatively slowing down during the second half of the 
year, especially during the last quarter. The relative contribution of 
the public sector to growth, be it consumption or investment, was 
relatively weaker throughout the year and turned into negative during 
the last quarter. The contribution of net foreign demand, negative for 
the first half, turned into increasingly positive during the second half 
of the year. As for production, the highly balanced growth of industry, 
services, and agriculture must be noted. 

Unemployment continued to fall in 2011: Unemployment rates that 
were 11.9% -non-agricultural: 14.8%- at the end of 2010 went 
down to 9.8% -non-agricultural: 12.4%- as of end-year 2011. When 
“hopeless” unemployed, those “ready-to-work”, and the “part-time” 
employed segments that are normally not counted as unemployed 
are taken into account, the overall unemployment that was 21.2% in 
2010, is around 18.2% at the end of 2011.
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Price Developments and Monetary Policy

Consumer inflation has ended the year at 10.45%, much higher than 
the end-2010 figure of 6.4%, and way above the target of 5.5%. 

Yet, at a historically low -since 1968- level of 4% was seen in March 
2011.
The Central Bank of Turkey’s new policy framework aiming at both 
price stability and financial stability resulted in higher than expected 
inflation and a depreciated currency, without being able to restore 
financial stability as of the end of 2011 as the current account deficit 
reached record-high levels.

The new policy continues to be effective as of early 2012, and lower 
inflation compared with 2011 is now possible, due to lower expected 
growth, and expected appreciation of the lira.

The inflation target was 5% for 2011 which is also the medium 
term target, though the Central Bank’s estimate as of January 2012 
is much higher, and its commitment to reach the target is no longer 
there according to the Governor. Inflation is expected to stay at 
double-digit levels during the first half of 2012, then decrease mildly 
towards the end of 2012. The outcome will depend on the quality 
of fiscal adjustment, food and energy prices, and monetary policy of 
course, including management of expectations, all in a lower growth 
environment.

External Balances

The current account deficit’s dramatic rise continued in 2011, from 
$47.1 billion at the end of 2010 to $77.2 billion at the end of 2011, 
as the high growth in the economy continued despite increases in 
reserve requirements. Its ratio to GDP, 6.5% in 2010, worsened to 
about 10% as of 2011. The non-energy current account balance that 
showed a small surplus of $135 million in 2009 and a deficit of $14.6 
billion at the end of 2010, ended the year of 2011 at $28.1 billion.
Causes of the dramatic current account deterioration in 2011 despite 
the new monetary policy framework that aimed at controlling it 
through a depreciated currency at the expense of higher inflation, and 
higher reserve requirements, were: i) just like in 2010, the sluggish 
course of domestic demand in the EU, leading to a weaker than 
expected export performance though record-high, ii) the continued 
surge in imports related to high domestic demand in Turkey that could 
not be tamed by the new monetary policy, iii) energy prices, and iv) 
capital still continuing to flow in.

The current account prospects in the beginning of 2012 and beyond 
will depend on: i) whether the new policy framework of the Central 
Bank will deliver some results, ii) the crisis in the EU and whether the 
Europeans will be able to change it into a recovery, iii) as always the 
Turkish efforts in the diversification of export destinations, iv) to what 
extent economic growth in Turkey will slow down, v) energy prices 
and, vi) as always again, on whether the Government will come up 
with competitiveness-enhancing reforms, also reforms that would 
boost the domestic savings rate.

The capital account in 2011 was again dominated by hot money early 
on, but changed its pattern slowly under the new monetary policy 
and after the Banking Regulatory and Supervisory Agency (BRSA) 
measures in the middle of summer 2011. There was some loss of 
appetite in the short end, but higher long run investment and foreign 
direct investment (FDI) compared with 2010. The overall balance of 
the capital account in 2011 was $64.6 billion versus $43.9 billion in 
2010.
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Portfolio flows diminished, but banks’ and corporates’ foreign 
borrowing increased sharply. Banks’ and corporates’ roll-over ratios 
for long-term foreign debt were 177% and 116% respectively as of 
December 2011. Long term investment went up to $12 billion, from a 
mere $265 million in 2010. Foreign direct investment was up to $13.4 
billion in 2011, from $7.6 billion in 2010.

The “net errors and omissions” contribution went up to $12.5 billion, 
much higher than the $4.3 billion figure in 2010.

Official international reserves including gold, $75 billion in 2009, and 
$86 billion in 2010, stood at $94.4 billion at the end of 2011. The 
“net foreign assets” of the Central Bank-the definition that takes into 
account all foreign exchange liabilities to both domestic and foreign 
creditors- on the other hand, displayed a fall to $43.6 billion from 
$53.2 billion at the end of 2010. This figure was $35.9 billion at the 
end of 2009.

The ratio of short term debt to international reserves, 90.2% in 2010, 
has not changed much, and stood at 91.8% in 2011.

The outlook in 2011 for the size and composition of the capital 
account depends: i) on the new policy framework of the Central Bank, 
ii) on the course of global liquidity and low level of US interest rates, 
iii) on the growth of financial systems abroad and also international 
capital markets, and, the most important, iv) the resolution of the 
debt crisis in the EU, and whether and how European banks will raise 
their capital adequacy ratios -increasing capital and/or decreasing 
loans-.

Fiscal Policy and Public Finances

The year 2011 has been another year of relative austerity in fiscal 
policy, continuing the trend in 2010. Primary expenditures were 
more or less under control, while tax revenue performance was good 
thanks again largely to growth beyond expectations in the economy 
just like in 2010 and the Ministry of Finance’s tax amnesty that 
brought in substantial amount of revenues.

Fiscal rules were again not considered in 2011. Still, the Government’s 
relatively tight policy resulted in higher primary surplus figures: TL 
23.7 billion vs. TL 7 billion in 2010 , or up to 2% to the GDP in 2011 
from 0.6% in 2010. The consolidated budget deficit figures were 
down to about TL 18.5 billion or -1.5% of the GDP in 2011 from about 
TL 41.3 billion or -3.7% of the GDP in 2010. Similar improvement in 
fiscal balances was noted for the central government figures as well.

The Treasury faced no difficulties in debt financing in 2011, like in 
2010, as its domestic debt roll-over ratio of 89.3% -revised figure- in 
2010 was down to 84.5% in 2011. The public debt ratio to GDP, that 
was 42.2% -EU definition- at the end of 2010, was 39.4% as of the 
end year in 2011. These figures continue to compare very favourably 
with those of many DE countries, though they continue to be higher 
than many EM countries. Having said this, there is no sustainability 
problem with the public debt.

As for the Treasury interest rates, a rise in the Treasury’s average 
rate for discount securities’ auctions, from 7.7% at the end of 2010 
to about 11% as of last December, has been observed, due to the 
Central Bank’s changing monetary policy framework and capital 
outflows. A parallel negative development was the widening of CDS 
spreads for Turkey, showing increased risk perception. These rates 
have been on a slightly downward trend as capital inflows have 
increased since the beginning of 2012.

THOUGH RECOVERY IN THE GLOBAL ECONOMY FACED 
PROBLEMS IN 2011, CAPITAL FLOWS AND IMPROVING 
ECONOMIC EXPECTATIONS LED TO A HIGHER THAN EXPECTED 
GROWTH IN TURKEY, AT 8.5%. THIS FIGURE IS THE HIGHEST IN 
EUROPE JUST AS IN 2010, AND ONE OF THE HIGHEST IN THE 
WORLD.
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Financial Markets and Exchange Rate Developments

The lira ended 2011 at 1.89 to the dollar, quite a depreciation since 
the end of 2010 when it stood at 1.54, after the Central Bank has 
changed its monetary policy, its value varying between approximately 
1.50 and 1.91 to the dollar during the course of the year. An obvious 
parallel development has been seen in rates against the euro as well: 
The lira depreciated against the euro, from 2.05 at the end of 2010 to 
2.44 at the end of 2011. 

The lira not only depreciated in nominal terms against the dollar and 
euro, but also in real terms according to the real effective exchange 
index of the Central Bank that takes into account baskets of currencies 
and other factors: It has depreciated in real terms by 12.9% (general 
index), by 13.9% (EM countries), and 12.6% (DE countries).

As usual, other factors besides the Central Bank’s new policy that 
affected the lira’s value were net capital outflows, increasing foreign 
trade and current account deficits, and the changes in the levels of 
international reserves and net foreign assets of the Central Bank.

The IMKB 100 index that had increased in 2010 to 66,004 could not 
sustain its upward trend and decreased by about 22.3% in 2011 
to 51,267. The fall in the stock exchange reflected both the effects 
of the new monetary policy on capital flows, and the deteriorating 
investor appetite abroad due to adverse developments in Europe.
The share of foreigners was down to 62.2% in 2011 from 66.3% at 
the end of 2010. This corresponded to an average market value of TL 
86.9 billion, down from TL109.6 billion at the end of 2010.

Outlook For 2012

Outlook in the global scene still depends largely on DE countries, 
especially the EU: Solutions to the debt crisis, improvement of 
the health of financial systems, and the reform process in various 
DE countries again continue to be vital for not only growth in DE 
countries, but also the growth outlook in EM countries. While we wait 
for DE countries to successfully address their problems, global liquidity 
continues to be abundant and DE countries’ interest rates low. This 
continues to create both a positive environment for EM countries as 
they want to continue to grow and a negative environment as they 
still have to address ‘excess liquidity turning into excessive capital 
flows’ problems and negative EU economic outlook therefore weak 
external demand problems.

Though the US shows a relatively better performance in the recovery 
process, expecting a growth rate of 1.8% in 2012, yet still unable to 
satisfactorily get unemployment down, eyes once again will continue 
to be kept on the EU to see how they deal with debt restructuring 
problems, their financial systems, and the reform process. Growth 
estimates for EU in 2012 are being revised downwards, and the latest 
estimate is about -0.1%. Japan is expected to grow by 1.7% while UK 
is expected to grow at a mere 0.6% in 2012.

Growth in China is expected to slow down relatively to 8.2%, showing 
the effects of both domestic policies and the crisis in the EU i.e. weak 
external demand. The same can be said about India as well, as a 7% 
growth is predicted for 2012.

Food, energy and commodities prices’ trend in 2012 will depend on 
global demand, this in turn depending on various regions growth 
performance, as well as supply security as political tensions mount in 
some regions of the world.
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The growth outlook for 2012 in Turkey will depend, as in 2011, on: 

i) how the crisis or recovery in the EU affects the Turkish foreign trade 
channel, ii) how much net capital inflows to the country increase or 
decrease depending on EU prospects again, and, as always, iii) the 
Government’s and the Central Bank’s policies as well as the structural 
reform process. 

The EU’s financial system reform under the European Banking 
Authority will be vital, as EM countries including Turkey will feel the 
effects of rising capital adequacy in EU banks -deadline: June 2012. 
Whether rising capital adequacy ratios will result in smaller balance 
sheets and lower amount of loans, or higher capital and therefore 
sustained loans will surely affect capital flows originating from 
Europe.

The Turkish growth projections for 2011 under the latest Medium 
Term Program have been surpassed, but the projection for 2012 
is at around 4%, depending on all the above said factors and 
developments. Many market participants and supranational 
organizations such as the IMF or OECD already estimate much lower 
growth, between 0% and 4% for 2012. Having said all these, one 
has to note that past projections and outcomes clearly show the 
difficulties surrounding growth forecasting for Turkey.

From 2013 onwards however, higher growth rates are predicted.

The course of unemployment in Turkey, positive beyond expectations 
in 2011, will depend, in the future, not only on growth, but also 
on the effect of structural reforms, especially those related to 
employment.

Sincerely yours,

Süreyya SERDENGEÇTİ
Board Member of Turcas Petrol
Former Governor of the Central Bank of Turkey 

FROM 2013 ONWARDS 
HOWEVER, HIGHER GROWTH 
RATES ARE PREDICTED. THE 
COURSE OF UNEMPLOYMENT 
IN TURKEY, POSITIVE BEYOND 
EXPECTATIONS IN 2011, WILL 
DEPEND, IN THE FUTURE, 
NOT ONLY ON GROWTH 
BUT ALSO ON THE EFFECT 
OF STRUCTURAL REFORMS, 
ESPECIALLY THOSE RELATED 
TO EMPLOYMENT.
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MANAGEMENT
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S. Batu AKSOY '1'
CEO and Board Member

Arkın AKBAY '2'
Director, Power and Gas Group

Cabbar YILMAZ '3'
Director, Coordination and Regulatory Affairs

Hasan EVİN '4'
IT Manager

Selin ÇINAR TUNGUÇ '5'
Corporate Communications Manager

Erkan İLHANTEKİN '6'
Corporate Finance and Investor Relations 
Manager

Bülent BÜYÜKGÜNER '7'
Corporate Treasury Manager

Nurettin DEMİRCAN '8'
Accounting Manager

Ruhsar BEYAZIDOĞLU '9'
Project and Business Development Manager

Elif KIRANKABEŞ '10'
Human Resources Manager

Levent SAVRUN '11'
Administration Manager

Esra ÜNAL '12'
Legal Counsel

Yusuf ATA '13'
Shareholder Relations Manager
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TURCAS IS ONE OF THE RARE “INTEGRATED ENERGY 
COMPANIES” IN TURKEY WHICH OPERATES IN THE FIELDS OF 
FUEL DISTRIBUTION, OIL REFINING, POWER GENERATION & 
TRADING, AND IMPORT&WHOLESALE OF NATURAL GAS IN THE 
LIBERALISING ENERGY MARKETS.
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Turcas Overview

Turcas, with 81 years of experience, is a holding company that 
has participations in companies that hold leading positions in their 
respective business areas. Turcas, with its sustainable performance 
and numerous successful partnerships in the Turkish energy sector, 
has a global institutional culture. Turcas is one of the rare integrated 
energy companies in Turkey that operates in the fields of fuel 
distribution, oil refining, power generation & trading, and import & 
wholesale of natural gas in the liberalising energy markets.

History 

Türkpetrol and Lubricants Limited, founded in 1931 as Turkey’s first 
privately owned fuel distribution company, became a joint stock 
company in 1936, and teamed up with British Burmah Castrol in 1988 
to establish Turcas Petroleum. The name “Turcas” came about by 
combining the first three letters of Türkpetrol and Castrol. Following 
the Initial Public Offering of the company’s minority shares in 1992, 
Tabaş Petroleum acquired the majority shares of the company in 
1996. Subsequently, Tabaş Petroleum and Turcas Petroleum were 
merged in 1999 and the new entity was named Turcas Petrol.

Fuel Distribution

A significant portion of Turcas’ current net asset value is composed of 
the shares owned in Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş. (STAŞ). In 2005, a Joint 
Venture Agreement was signed with The Shell Company of Turkey 
Ltd. for retail and commercial sales, and marketing and distribution of 
petroleum products and lubricants, and STAŞ was founded. 

STAŞ, in which Turcas has a 30% share, began operations on July 1, 
2006, having obtained the required licenses from the Energy Market 
Regulatory Authority (EMRA). Turcas’ 650 Türkpetrol branded fuel 
stations and Shell Turkey’s 650 Shell branded fuel stations, along with 
both companies’ logistics, storage and filling facilities, and lubricant 
oil production plant and marketing activities, were gathered under 
STAŞ. As of the beginning of the second half of 2006, Turcas has been 
conducting fuel distribution, marketing, industrial and commercial 
sales, and lubricants activities through STAŞ. At the beginning of 2011, 
STAŞ acquired 99.99% of Shell Gaz Ticaret ve Sanayi A.Ş. from Shell 
Gas Holdings BV in order to consolidate its LPG business in Turkey. 
This move will enhance the Company’s already strong position in 
the market. Apart from being a leader in the Turkish fuel distribution 
market, with a network of about 1,050 nation-wide Shell branded 
fuel stations and related business units, and a net turnover of TL 10.8 
billion in 2011, STAŞ is one of the largest enterprises in the Turkish 
economy.

Refining 

SOCAR & Turcas Energy (STEAŞ) was founded as a joint venture 
company at the end of 2006, with the target of becoming a leading 
oil and gas player in the region. STEAŞ won the privatisation tender 
for the sale of 51% of the shares of PETKİM Petrochemicals, which 
stood out as the most significant privatisation in Turkey in 2007, and 
acquired the controlling shares on May 30, 2008, paying $ 2.04 billion 
to the Privatisation Administration. STEAŞ, with the synergy created 
by its partners, has focused on becoming an integrated oil/energy 
company in the fields of refining, petrochemicals, and natural gas. 
STEAŞ founded SOCAR & Turcas Petrochemicals in April 2008 as a fully 
owned subsidiary for the ownership of PETKİM.

TURCAS OVERVIEW
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Subsequent to this acquisition, STEAŞ initiated the development of a 
Feedstock Refinery Project (STAR Refinery) at the Petkim site, and, for 
this purpose, established SOCAR & Turcas Refining in September 2008 
as fully owned subsidiary. The Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA) study for the project has been completed and the Ministry 
approved the EIA Report and issued the Environmental Impact 
Positive Certificate on December 8, 2009. The Refinery License was 
obtained and a contract was signed with a project management 
consultancy (PMC) firm in 2010. Unicredit was mandated as the sole 
financial advisor in 2011 for arranging the required project finance. 
The Groundbreaking Ceremony of the Project was held in October 
2011, and construction works for the site preparation have already 
begun. It is planned to sign a lumpsum EPC Contract with an EPC firm 
and finalize the financial negotiations by the end of 2012, so that the 
facility can start commercial operations in 2016.

On the last business day of 2011, Turcas Petrol, within the purpose 
of restructuring its partnerships with SOCAR, transferred its 25% 
shareholding in STEAŞ to SOCAR. At the same time, Turcas Refining, 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Turcas purchased from STEAŞ 18.5% of 
the shares of SOCAR & Turcas Refining (STRAŞ), the project company 
of the STAR Refinery. The Title of the company was changed from 
"SOCAR & Turcas Refining" to "STAR Refining" on January 2, 2012.

As a result of these operations, Turcas Petrol no longer holds any 
direct or indirect shareholding in STEAŞ or Petkim Petrochemicals, 
but maintains an 18.5% shareholding in the SOCAR & Turcas Aegean 
Refinery Investment, which will have an annual refining capacity of 
10 million tonnes. The vertical integration and synergy that will be 
created between the current fuel retail operations of Turcas and the 
new refinery invesment will support the Turcas' strategy of creating 
long-term value.

Turcas, on the other hand, is a 5% shareholder of ATAŞ Anadolu 
Refining (ATAŞ), Turkey’s first privately owned oil refining company 
which had started operations in 1962. Having ceased its refining 
activities and completed new investments over the last 5 years, 
ATAŞ today operates as the largest oil products storage terminal in 
the Mediterranean region with a total installed storage capacity of 
570,000 cubic meters.

SHELL & TURCAS PETROL IS ONE OF THE LARGEST COMPANIES IN 
THE TURKISH ECONOMY, ALONG WITH ITS LEADING POSITION IN 
THE TURKISH FUEL AND LUBRICANTS SECTOR, WITH NET SALES 
REVENUE OF TL 10.8 BILLION IN 2011. 
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Power Generation and Trading

Turcas combined its power sector subsidiaries under the umbrella 
of Turcas Energy Holding. Turcas Energy Holding is the majority 
shareholder of Turcas Power Generation, Turcas Renewables and 
Turcas Power Trading, and a 30% shareholder of RWE & Turcas North 
Power Generation. 

Generation

Turcas Power Generation signed a Joint Venture Agreement in 
2009 with RWE AG of Germany, one of the world’s leading utility 
companies, to construct two large-scale power plants, one based on 
natural gas and the other based on imported coal (this agreement 
is the continued version of the joint venture agreement signed with 
E.ON of Germany in 2007 securing the continuity of the project). 
Within the scope of this agreement, two joint venture companies, 
namely RWE & Turcas South Power Generation and RWE & Turcas 
North Power Generation, were founded, in which Turcas subsidiaries 
own a 30% stake while RWE subsidiaries own the remaining 70% 
stake.

The construction permit and the operating license for the 775 
MW RWE & Turcas Natural Gas Fired Combined Cycle Power Plant 
being built in Denizli were obtained in 2010, and excavation and 
construction started in July of the same year. Progress on the 
construction of the Plant has already reached 75% by 2011-end, 
and it is expected to be operational by 2012-end. RWE & Turcas 
Energy Sales, a fully owned subsidiary of RWE & Turcas South Power 
Generation, was established in order to prepare the launch of the 
Denizli Plant on the energy market, and to manage its energy trading 
operations. This company obtained its Electricity Wholesale License 
from EMRA in 2011.

Renewable Energy

In order to make renewable and sustainable energy investments, 
Turcas Wind Energy, a fully owned subsidiary of Turcas Energy 
Holding, applied to the Energy Market Regulatory Authority (EMRA) 
for licenses to make wind farm investments, with a total targeted 

capacity of 400 MW at 6 different sites across Turkey. In accordance 
with the principle of investing in feasible profitable projects only, 
Turcas did not submit high (grid connection bids) in the tenders held 
by the Turkish Electricity Transmission Company (TEIAS), and thus was 
not awarded any license.

Turcas continues to evaluate wind energy projects in the local and 
international markets, and measures wind data at prospect fields. 
Turcas amended the Articles of Association of Turcas Wind Energy 
Generation on October 25, 2011, with the purpose of developing all 
types of renewable energy projects under this company. On the same 
date, the title of the company was changed to Turcas Renewable 
Energy Generation.

Turcas Renewable Energy Generation (Turcas Renewable) has already 
started development work for geothermal based power generation, 
with its exploration licenses, obtained in Aydın, Denizli and Izmir 
provinces. It aims to start drilling operations in the last quarter of 
2012 depending on the results of the geological and geophysical 
measurements and the discovery of the geothermal potential.

Apart from geothermal, Turcas Renewable continuously develops and 
looks for acquisition opportunities in feasible wind, solar and hydro 
energy projects as well.
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Wholesale and Trading

During 2011, Turcas Power Trading (TPT) increased its power sales 
volume by 100% and continued to prepare the infrastructure for 
a larger operation that will be possible with the coming online of 
further installed capacity under Turcas Energy Holding. TPT’s efforts to 
improve its infrastructure, diversify its sales and supply channels, and 
augment its know-how are expected to support Turcas’ financials in 
2012.

Natural Gas Import and Wholesale

Our natural gas subsidiary Turcas Gas played a leading role in the 
deregulation process of the Turkish natural gas market by starting 
to sell 100 million cubic metres per annum of natural gas to its 
eligible customers on December 19, 2007, thanks to the Natural 
Gas Wholesale License obtained from EMRA. Turcas Gas aims to 
considerably enhance its wholesale capacity in parallel with the 
liberalization of the market and to become one of the leading private 
sector companies in the gas import and wholesale market.

In the beginning of 2011, Turcas Gas temporarily ceased the sale 
of natural gas ultimately imported from Russia given the risk of 
continuous loss making due to the yet immature and unsustainable 
level of market liberalisation. 

Turcas Gas continues to look for gas import opportunities from 
different sources in neighboring countries for security and diversity of 
supply. Turcas Gas further lobbies actively for the liberalisation of the 
natural gas market in Turkey.

TURCAS CONTINUES TO 
EVALUATE WIND ENERGY 
PROJECTS IN THE LOCAL AND 
INTERNATIONAL MARKETS 
AND MEASURES WIND DATA 
AT PROSPECT FIELDS. 
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1931

Türkpetrol Ltd. was founded.

1936

Name of the company was changed to Türkpetrol and Lubricants Inc.

1953

Agreement signed with British Burmah Castrol for cooperation in 
Lubricants production and sales.

1958

Marmara Petroleum and Refining was founded as a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Türkpetrol.

1962

Marmara Petroleum’s 5% participation, Ataş Anadolu Refining, 
commenced operations.

1967

Türkpetrol entered the LPG market with the Alevgaz brand.

1970

Marmara Petroleum became a shareholder of the Ataş Refinery.

1972

Nationwide fuel station network surpassed 550 in number.

1980

Tabaş Petroleum was founded.

1985

New supply/storage tanks with direct links to the refineries were 
established.

1987

Lubricant Blending Plant with a capacity of 35,000 tonnes started 
operations in Yarımca.

1988

Turcas Petroleum was founded as a JV between Türkpetrol Holding 
and Burmah Castrol.

1992

Turcas Petroleum shares were IPO’d and commenced trading on the 
Istanbul Stock Exchange.

1996

Tabaş Petroleum, of which Conoco of USA was a principal shareholder, 
acquired 82% of Turcas Petroleum shares from Türkpetrol Holding and 
Burmah Castrol.

1999

Tabaş Petroleum and Turcas Petroleum were merged where the new 
entity was named Turcas Petrol. 

2004

Shareholders of the ATAŞ Refinery decided to cease refining activities 
and convert the site into a major oil products terminal.

2005

Conoco’s shares in Turcas Petrol were acquired by Aksoy Holding.

MILESTONES
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2006

The JV Company Shell & Turcas Petrol was founded following the 
spin-off merger of The Shell Company of Turkey Ltd and Turcas Petrol, 
and commenced operations with app. 1,300 fuel stations. 

The JV Company SOCAR & Turcas Energy (STEAŞ) was founded by 
Turcas Petrol and SOCAR, the State Oil Company of Azerbaijan 
Republic.

2007

STEAŞ won the tender for the privatisation of the majority shares of 
Petkim. 

Turcas established a new JV Company regarding power generation 
investments with E.ON AG of Germany.

2008

SOCAR & Turcas Petrochemicals acquired 51% of Petkim for $ 2.04 
billion from the Privatisation Administration on May 30, 2008. 

STEAŞ established the wholly-owned SOCAR & Turcas Refinery (STRAŞ) 
in order to build a 10 million ton per annum oil refinery within the 
Petkim complex.

2009

STRAŞ obtained the EIA (Environmental Impact Assessment) Positive 
Report from the Ministry of Environment for the proposed refinery. 

The Shareholders Agreement originally entered into with E.ON in 
2007 was replaced by RWE AG of Germany. 

RWE & Turcas South obtained the Power Generation License for the 
Natural Gas Fired Combined Cycle Power Plant Project in Denizli as 
well as the EIA Positive Report, and signed the EPC contract.

2010

Turcas Petrol received a note of 7.52 for its corporate governance 
practices and joined the prestigious Corporate Governance Index of 
the ISE. 

EMRA (Energy Market Regulatory Authority) granted SOCAR & Turcas 
Refinery the Refining License. 

RWE & Turcas South started the construction of its 775 MW Natural 
Gas Fired Combined Cycle Power Plant in Denizli.

2011

The Groundbreaking of the STAR Refinery was held in Izmir Aliağa. 

Turcas Petrol received an award as the Company with the greatest 
improvement in its Corporate Governance Rating Score in a year by 
boosting its score to 8.12. 

RWE & Turcas Energy Sales was founded. 

The name of Turcas Wind Energy Generation was changed to Turcas 
Renewable Energy Generation, in order to include the development 
activities of other renewable energy sources. Turcas Renewable 
started development works for geothermal based power generation 
in Aydın, Denizli and İzmir provinces upon the acquisition of 4 
exploration licenses. 

Turcas sold its stake in STEAŞ (and Petkim) to SOCAR and maintained 
an 18.5% shareholder of the STAR Refinery project. Title of SOCAR & 
Turcas Refining was changed to STAR Refining.
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The energy crisis of the mid 1970s served as a warning that the 
seemingly unlimited natural resources of the planet are not infinite. 
Following the crisis, a report titled “Limits of Growth”, published 
by the Club of Rome in 1972, underlined the relationship between 
economic growth and the amount of natural resources. The report 
concluded that in order to minimize potential problems, unchecked 
growth should be prohibited and abandoned. 

Natural resources should be used economically in order for the 
wealth created at this point in human history to be distributed equally 
and sustainably among all the people on the planet. Sustainable 
development philosophy underlines that financial performance is 
not the only remedy for the resolution of the common problems of 
humanity. As a global and corporate member of society, there should 
also be:

   - efficient resource management, 
   - the ability to innovate products according to future needs and 
     trends,
   - social and environmental awareness, and
   - attention to safety and development of workers.

Investing in renewable and domestic resources and new 
technologies

As Turcas Petrol, we are committed to: 

   - improving our environmental performance,
   - protecting natural resources,
   - meeting our needs today with consideration for the needs of 
     future generations,
   - contributing to the advancement of society by being a part of the       
     community, and
   - remembering that the most important resource is human    
     resources, while maintaining profitability, labour, investment and  
     quality of our operations.

The philosophy of sustainability is the long-term well being of society 
that gives all people, including future generations the same or more 
freedom, resources and lifestyle choices as we have today.

From this perspective, Turcas’ commitment to corporate responsibility 
is to ensure the balance of Turcas’ impact on society, the environment 
and climate by investing in 

   - new resources, and 
   - new technologies 

of power generation for the changing world in which social and 
environmental concerns are as important as financial ones.

Fossil fuels will continue to play an important role in the future while 
industrialization and urbanization are causing enormous growth in 
energy demand.

Turcas’ mission is to use energy wisely and efficiently. As a major 
energy company, Turcas’ responsibility is to provide power, natural gas 
and oil products affordably and reliably from a long-term perspective. 
To this end, Turcas draws on a wide-ranging energy portfolio 
comprising natural gas, coal and renewables based power generation 
assets to oil distribution and refining and import & wholesale of 
natural gas.

Wind energy is currently the most promising renewable energy 
source, highly competitive with other renewables and fossil fuels. 
Another competitive energy source, when found and operated in an 
eco-friendly manner, is geothermal energy. Currently, the favorite 
renewable energy sources for Turcas are wind and geothermal 
energy.

SUSTAINABILITY
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Turcas aims to have, in its portfolio, wind and geothermal energy 
plant investments which will contribute to;

   - protection of the environment,
   - safe, permanent, productive and quality procurement,
   - long-term price stability in the energy market, and
   - independence from limited, and more expensive than ever, 
     energy sources such as coal, oil, natural gas and uranium.

Besides reducing fossil fuel imports, the wind power station (WPS) 
investments will enable the use of a reliable, accessible and 
environmentally sound energy source. 

Turcas vigorously pursues its investigations and evaluations on wind 
energy projects in domestic and foreign markets, in order to invest in 
and purchase productive and profitable projects using its knowledge 
in wind farms accumulated since 2007.

Turcas also continues to measure and analyze geothermal energy 
sources and wind quality in investable areas.

Possessing a renewable plant portfolio is also an important target for 
Turcas, as is the case with partners Shell, RWE and SOCAR, the major 
players of the global energy industry.

Turcas’ investments in Turkey will continue to grow. Existing energy 
prices have to come down for sustainable growth. Determined as 
a strategic market of great importance for Turcas and its partners, 
Turkey plays a major role in our company’s future plans, just as it has 
in the past.

Sustainability is paramount in all activities of Turcas. Company 
strategies concerning ongoing operations and future projects are 
predicated upon this principal. 

Elements concerning sustainability, conducted in Shell & Turcas and 
RWE & Turcas and explained as follows, are the most important 
indicators of the principles applied to new Turcas projects.

Shell & Turcas and Sustainability

Shell & Turcas facilitates all of its operations in accordance with the 
principle of economic, social and environmental responsibility. Within 
this context, it supports cultural activities pertaining to our country, 
society and history.

AS A MAJOR ENERGY 
COMPANY, TURCAS’ 
RESPONSIBILITY IS TO 
PROVIDE POWER, NATURAL 
GAS AND OIL PRODUCTS 
AFFORDABLY AND RELIABLY 
FROM A LONG-TERM 
PERSPECTIVE.
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Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)

Shell & Turcas, habitually considering security and safety as its priority, 
meticulously applies Occupational Health, Safety and Environment 
(HSE) rules in each and every activity. Shell & Turcas commits itself to 
imposing these principles, and initiating educational projects, in order 
to raise “Safety” awareness among employees, business partners, 
suppliers and customers. Thereby Turcas significantly raises safety 
standards with this approach.

With this purpose in mind, Shell & Turcas continues to take further 
precautions regarding the potential dangers of delivering the product 
from the terminals to the dealers, and other issues such as drivers, 
safe driving rules, tanker rigs and technical equipment, and supply 
operations in and out of the plant, and to raise HSE consciousness 
among the drivers.

“Plant Technical Safety Education”, initiated in 2007, has been 
ongoing at almost all plants within Shell & Turcas. The theoretical 
parts of this program cover sector-related accidents by means of 
visual presentations, and their causes and elicitations are discussed 
and the necessary actions determined.

The practical section, which is the last part of the training, explains 
the required actions, duty descriptions, and devices and tools that 
will be used in case of emergency in plants, via practical exercises, 
including the owners or directors. 

Shell Work Safety Day and Shell Road Safety Programme

To ensure sustainability and improve HSE perception in the workplace, 
projects such as “Shell Work Safety Days” have been conducted since 
2006, while the “Shell Road Safety Programme”, which was initiated 
globally, has been applied since 2007. Shell & Turcas also enhances 
awareness about the program by training the contractors’ and drivers’ 
spouses.

These safety-focused operations by Shell & Turcas also raise social 
awareness. In this context, nearly 3000 heavy vehicle and automobile 
drivers participated in health checks and safety trainings, during 
which the vital importance of safety belts was explained by means of 
a rollover simulator in many cities and Shell ExtraMola stations around 
Turkey.

Cooperation with the World Health Organisation

According to data from the World Health Organisation (WHO), the 
primary cause of death among children, teenagers and young 
adults in the 5-29 age group is traffic accidents. Turkey is among 
the principal countries in which the WHO has chosen to kick off 
activities to reduce these accidents. Shell & Turcas has been a staunch 
supporter of the WHO’s "Decade of Action for Road Safety" Project 
since 2011.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Commitment to the Environment

The Health, Safety and Environmental (HSE) Policy was approved by 
Turcas’ Board of Directors and enacted in 2001. Within the framework 
of this policy, staff are trained according to the philosophy that all 
accidents are preventable. This policy is also introduced to third 
parties conducting business with the company, where its adoption 
is stipulated in all business transactions or actions. No suit has been 
filed against the company for damage to the environment within this 
period.
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Commitment to Society
The “Business Ethics Policy” for company staff was enacted by the 
Board on May 1, 1997. This policy defines the rules which staff have 
to obey in issues such as conflicts of interest, insider information, 
political favours, accounting standards and documentation, and gifts 
accepted. 

Ethical Rules

Elements that constitute the brand name Turcas are its;

   - respectability, 
   - ability to differentiate and to be a pioneer in what it does,
   - possession of the highest ethical and corporate governance 
     standards, and 
   - a culture of successful and sustainable cooperation with domestic 
     and especially international companies. 

Ethical rules, prescribed by our Board of Directors, constitute our 
Company’s main rules of conduct.

All of our employees obey these rules. Our Company aims to be 
reliable, responsible, accountable and transparent in the eyes of its 
partners, shareholders, employees, suppliers, business associates, 
competitors, environment, society and humanity. Turcas acts in 
compliance with domestic laws, international codes and business 
ethics in the achievement of its goals. These ethical rules are 
presented to investors and customers via the Corporate Governance 
Compliance Report.

Donations

Turcas has made various donations over the years to the Petroleum 
Industry Association (PETDER), Petroleum Platform Association 
(PETFORM), the Turkish Education Foundation (TEV), Turkish Police 
Forces’ Martyrs, Disabled, Widows and Orphans’ Education and 
Assistance Organization (TEYEV), and UNICEF Turkey National 
Committee as approved by its Board of Directors. These donations 
amounted to TL 18,081 in 2006, TL 20,784 in 2007, TL 23,240 in 2008, 
TL 21,055 in 2009, TL 13,575 in 2010 and TL 41,380 in 2011.

Shell & Turcas and Corporate Social Responsibility 

The projects organised to raise public consciousness with respect to 
energy efficiency and fuel economy are just some of the activities 
initiated by Shell & Turcas in order to respond positively to energy 
demand. The Shell Eco-Marathon event, which encourages teenagers 
to develop vehicles run by future energy sources, is one of the long-
standing global projects organised within this framework. Every year, 
Turkish teams participate in the Shell Eco-marathon and leave a mark 
with their successful performance.

Further enriching these value-creating projects with cultural activities, 
Shell & Turcas has contributed to the Çatalhöyük excavations, one 
of the largest archaeological research operations in the world, for 
16 years. Concurrently, by means of the “Archaeology Summer 
Workshop”, organised since 2003, Shell & Turcas aims to instil a new 
generation with responsibility towards sensitivity and a feeling of 
protection towards its cultural heritage. The company has managed 
to spread these projects to a much larger audience by promoting 
the books, “Bu Şehr-i İstanbul” (Istanbul: A Timeless Journey) and 
“Ayasofya” (Hagia Sophia), containing photographs by prominent 
photographer Tahsin Aydoğmuş and his exhibition, to the world of 
culture.

RWE & Turcas and Corporate Social Responsibility

RWE & Turcas South Power Generation, Turcas’ subsidiary in the power 
generation sector, has signed a protocol with Denizli Governorship, 
Kaklık Municipality and the Parent-Teacher Association to support and 
cover the expenses of the construction of Şehit Eyüp Altın Elementary 
School, and the annex building of Kaklık Elementary School. As 
a consequence of this project, 800 students will now have the 
opportunity to be educated in 23 new classrooms.

In addition, RWE & TURCAS sponsors the football teams Denizlispor 
and Kaklık Belediyespor.
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INTERNATIONAL PARTNERSHIPS 
Since its IPO in 1992, Turcas has had thousands of individual and 
institutional shareholders worldwide. 

Turcas, with the aim of becoming an “integrated energy company” 
based in Turkey, 

   - is able to derive maximum benefits from Turkey’s geopolitical 
     position, 
   - create opportunities for energy investments in the region, and 
   - minimize the emerging country risks for its investors through 
     successfully established international partnerships.

The first significant cooperation Turcas entered into with an 
international company was the agreement signed in 1954 with British 
Burmah Castrol for the lubricants sector. This cooperation evolved into 
a partnership in 1988.

Marmara Petrol ve Rafineri İşleri A.Ş. (Marmara Petroleum and 
Refining), established in 1958 as a fully owned subsidiary of Turcas, 
owns 5% of the shares of Anadolu Tasfiyehanesi A.Ş. (ATAŞ), which 
served as Turkey’s only private oil refinery for many years. Turcas 
purchased these shares for TL 7 million in 2009. ATAŞ, which began 
operations in 1962, is today a licensed Storage Terminal. BP and Shell 
are Turcas’ partners in ATAŞ.

Following the acquisition of Turcas shares by Tabaş in 1996, the US 
firm Conoco Inc., which became ConocoPhillips after merging with 
Phillips Petroleum, became a principle shareholder of the company.

After ConocoPhillips sold its Turcas shares to Aksoy Holding, as per its 
global strategies to divest from the region and Turkey in 2005, Turcas 
and Shell jointly established Shell & Turcas Petrol, a leading player 
in the Turkish fuel retail sector. Meanwhile, with its ATAŞ experience, 
Turcas established SOCAR & Turcas Energy (STEAŞ) jointly with the 
State Oil Company of Azerbaijan Republic (SOCAR), in order to bring 
about an oil-refinery-petrochemicals integration. The company 
acquired Petkim Petrochemicals Holding in May 2008, as the winner 
of the state tender, and is now involved in building a Feedstock 
Refinery at the Petkim site in Aliağa. 

STEAŞ established a fully owned SPV in 2008, STRAŞ (SOCAR & Turcas 
Refining), as the exclusive subsidiary of SOCAR to process the crude 
oil owned by SOCAR and the Azerbaijan Republic, in a refinery to 
be built at the Petkim site in Turkey. STRAŞ obtained the positive 
EIA (Environmental Impact Assessment) Report from the Ministry of 
Environment in 2009, and a storage and refining license from the 
Energy Market Regulatory Authority in June 2010. Turcas, within the 
framework of restructuring the partnership with SOCAR, transferred 
its 25% shares in STEAŞ to SOCAR, while purchasing 18.5% of the 
shares of SOCAR & Turcas Refining (STRAŞ), who is undertaking the 
SOCAR & Turcas Aegean Refinery Investment through Turcas Refinery 
Investments, its wholly-owned subsidiary, from STEAŞ. Title of "SOCAR 
& Turcas Refining (STRAŞ)", which is on 18.5% subsidiary of Turcas 
Refinery Investments, was changed to "STAR Refining" on January 2, 
2012. 

In the power generation sector, Turcas Power Generation, a 100% 
indirect subsidiary of Turcas, established in 2007 two Joint Venture 
Companies with E.ON of Germany, one of the largest energy 
companies worldwide, to build and operate two 800 MW power 
plants, one fired with imported coal and one with natural gas. 
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Although E.ON decided to exit Turkey in early 2009, Turcas signed 
a Shareholders’ Agreement with RWE, one of Germany’s leading 
energy firms, securing the continuity of its projects under the new 
partnership in the same rapid and professional manner.

RWE & Turcas South, one of the two companies established with 
RWE, began construction of the 775 MW natural gas fired power plant 
in Kaklık, Denizli in the second half of 2010, which is expected to 
become operational at the end of 2012. 

RWE & Turcas Energy Trading, a 100% subsidiary of RWE & Turcas 
South Power Generation was established in order to prepare the 
launch of the Denizli Plant on the energy market and to organize 
energy trading operations, and this new partnership obtained the 
Power Trading License in 2011.

Turcas’ business development activities for natural gas trading and oil 
& gas production in the energy-rich countries of the region such as 
Azerbaijan, Iraq and Iran continue as we plan to establish potential 
partnerships in various projects with multinational oil/energy 
companies experienced in this field.

TURCAS IS A COMPANY THAT 
CAN DERIVE MAXIMUM 
BENEFITS FROM TURKEY’S 
GEOPOLITICAL POSITION, 
CREATE OPPORTUNITIES FOR 
ENERGY INVESTMENTS IN 
THE REGION AND MINIMIZE 
THE EMERGING COUNTRY 
RISKS FOR ITS INVESTORS 
THROUGH SUCCESSFULLY 
ESTABLISHED INTERNATIONAL 
PARTNERSHIPS.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
Relations with, and requests regarding, shareholders are undertaken 
by the Shareholder Relations and Corporate Finance & Investor 
Relations Departments under the Finance Division.

With regard to the company’s investor relations, Board Member & CEO 
Mr. Batu Aksoy and Corporate Finance & Investor Relations Manager 
Mr. Erkan İlhantekin undertook the duty of meeting with local and 
foreign investors, representing Turcas in investor conferences, and 
responding to all questions from investors.

Turcas frequently meets with existing and potential investors 
domestically and abroad, transparently providing detailed information 
and updates related to every topic about the company’s and its 
subsidiaries’ activities, projects, and financial structures, as well as 
the macro economic situation and developments in Turkey. Since the 
establishment of the Investor Relations department, which started 
in 2006, Turcas met 69, 102, 85, 50, 184 and 200 international 
investors/funds and investment banks in 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009, 
2010 and 2011, respectively. Among the meetings held in 2011, 80 
of them took place via roadshows outside Turkey, while the rest were 
held domestically.

For the first time in 2010, a Corporate Governance Compliance Rating 
Report was issued about the Company by Kobirate International Credit 
Ratings and Corporate Governance Services Inc. (Kobirate), authorized 
by the Capital Market Board, in accordance with the methodology 
of Rating Compliance with Corporate Governance Principles, and 
the Company’s Corporate Governance Compliance Rating Score was 
revealed as 7.52.

Following the 2011 assessment, the Company’s Corporate Governance 
Compliance Rating Score was revised to 8.12. This result confirms that 
Turcas Petrol complies wholeheartedly with the Corporate Governance 
Principles published by the Capital Market Board, made progress on 
corporate governance over the last year, and earned its acceptance at 
the highest level of the Istanbul Stock Exchange Corporate Governance 
Index. In subsequent years, the Company aims to raise its compliance 
with Corporate Governance Principles by making all necessary and 
additional enhancements, even if its rate of compliance does not 
constitute any material risks.

TURCAS WON AN AWARD 
AS “THE COMPANY THAT 
ACHIEVED THE HIGHEST 
INCREASE IN ITS CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE RATING SCORE 
AMONG THE COMPANIES 
LISTED IN THE ISE CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE INDEX” 
FROM THE CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE ASSOCIATION 
OF TURKEY (CGAT) IN 2011.
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Turcas Share Price

Upon consideration of the rating outlines, the Company scored 83.00 
in the Section regarding Shareholders; 88.30 in the Section regarding 
Public Disclosure and Transparency; 87.80 in the Section regarding 
Beneficiaries; and finally 65.36 in the Section regarding Board of 
Directors.

Turcas won an award as “the Company that achieved the highest 
increase in its Corporate Governance Rating Score among the 
companies listed in the ISE Corporate Governance Index” from the 
Corporate Governance Association of Turkey (CGAT) in 2011.
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SUBSIDIARIES
FUEL RETAIL AND LUBRICANTS
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SHELL & TURCAS PETROL A.Ş.
Merger and Foundation

At present, the largest participation of Turcas is its 30% share in Shell 
& Turcas. Shell & Turcas is one of the leading companies in the Turkish 
fuel distribution sector with 1,006 fuel stations operating under the 
Shell brand, lube oil production facilities, retail and commercial sales.

The launch of Shell in the Turkish market dates back to 1923, the year 
of the establishment of the Turkish Republic. Shell, which has ever 
since introduced its customers to brand-new quality products and 
services, conducted a successful merger with Turcas Petrol, one of 
the long-established energy companies of Turkey, in 2006 in order to 
enlarge its current operations and distribution network. The partners 
have combined their business segments "Petroleum Products and 
Lubricants, Retail and Commercial Sales" under the umbrella of Shell 
& Turcas Petrol, in which Turcas has a 30% share and Shell has a 70% 
share. The company has expanded and become the 5th largest private 
company in Turkey as a superb example of a successful partnership 
between a domestic and an international company by 2008.

Officially founded on March 6, 2006, Shell & Turcas Petrol (STAŞ) 
obtained all regulatory approvals by June 12, 2006, and commenced 
operations on July 1 of that year.

Within the bigger picture of Turkey’s recent economic development 
and growth, STAŞ works towards the aim of fulfilling an important 
mission. This mission is to work towards sustainable growth, while 
implementing its work health and safety standards meticulously in 
Turkey, one of the world’s most dynamic and exciting markets.

As of the end of the year 2011, Shell & Turcas is the market leader in 
gasoline sales with a 26% share, second in the market in total white 
products, and third in the market in diesel and LPG (auto-gas) sales. 
Shell & Turcas, with a 19.4% market share in general automotive 
fuels, is again the market leader in differentiated products. Shell & 
Turcas succeeded in raising the number of registered vehicles in the 
Vehicle Identification System to 350,000, a threefold increase from 

2006. The Company also runs Turkey's largest independent loyalty 
card programme in the fuel sector with 1.5 million active customers.

Turkey’s Most Admired Fuel and Lubricants Company
Shell & Turcas

Shell & Turcas was chosen for the 9th time as “The Most Admired 
Company in the Fuel Distribution and Lubricants Sector” in the 
“Turkey’s Most Admired Companies” Survey conducted by the 
prominent economy magazine Capital. According to the same survey, 
Shell Gas, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shell & Turcas, was chosen 
as one of the two most admired brands in the LPG sector. In another 
survey which was again conducted by the magazine Capital, Shell & 
Turcas was in the top 20 of the “CEO’s Favourite Companies” list in 
Turkey. 

Shell & Turcas was also recognized in the international arena in 2010. 
In Royal Dutch Shell's “People Make the Difference Real” program 
which is conducted to identify which of the 14,000 Shell stations 
in 60 countries around the world abide by best practices from the 
standpoint of customer service and service quality, Shell and Turcas’ 
Shell Batman Boran Fuel Station became the European Champion 
in 2011. The previous world champion was 30 Ağustos Bulvar Fuel 
Station-Sompet Fuel from Kayseri.

Lubricants

Fuel stations are crucial for lubricant oil change. Lubricants and fuel 
distribution are related business activities. The sales & marketing 
organisation is based on consumer groups, and reaches more than 
800 direct customers through 3 separate channels, B2B Corporate 
Sales, B2C Consumer Sales, and INS-Distributors. In addition to these 
channels, the company also carries out sales through fuel stations.
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Lubricant sales consist primarily of sales made to the automotive 
sector, industrial sales, and marine lubricant sales. The most important 
sectors are automotive manufacturers and after-sales service 
providers, the energy, construction, and metalworking sectors, and 
other brand and value-focused consumer groups.

According to the 2011 data disclosed by the Turkish Petroleum 
Industry Association (PETDER), Shell & Turcas has retained its top 
position in the lubricants sector, repeating its success by becoming the 
market leader in total lubricant sales for the 5th time in a row, and has 
attained a market share of 25.2%. Among PETDER members, which 
represent 65% of the lubricants sector, Shell & Turcas claimed the 
highest lubricant sales in the market, with an annual 71.1 thousand 
tonnes. Shell & Turcas has become a model of success by showing 
the same market performance on a global scale as in Turkey. Shell 
has been named the “No.1 global lubricants supplier” for the fifth 
consecutive year in an annual research study carried out by the 
international consulting and research company, Kline & Company.

Shell & Turcas’ Lubricant and Grease Oil Production Plant in Derince 
currently exports oil products to approximately 48 countries. Products 
from the Derince plant are marketed domestically alongside imported 
products. Sales are made first to nearby markets, and then to other 
Shell countries in the network.

SHELL & TURCAS WAS 
CHOSEN FOR THE 9TH TIME 
AS “THE MOST ADMIRED 
COMPANY IN THE FUEL 
DISTRIBUTION AND 
LUBRICANTS SECTOR” 
IN THE “TURKEY’S MOST 
ADMIRED COMPANIES” 
SURVEY CONDUCTED BY 
THE PROMINENT ECONOMY 
MAGAZINE CAPITAL. 
ACCORDING TO THE SAME 
SURVEY, SHELL GAS A 
WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY 
OF SHELL & TURCAS, WAS 
CHOSEN AS ONE OF THE TWO 
MOST ADMIRED BRANDS IN 
THE LPG SECTOR.
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New Products
Distinguishing itself by virtue of its trailblazing solutions in the area 
of fuel efficiency, Shell & Turcas introduced “Shell FuelSave Diesel” 
for diesel-powered vehicles last year. The first low-sulphur entry in 
its main product line-up, this new product went on sale all around 
Turkey in January 2011. Another feature that gives Shell FuelSave 
Unleaded 95 and Shell FuelSave Diesel an unchallenged advantage 
is that it contains an additive that enhances engine efficiency. This 
product, which helps prevent the accumulation of soot and residues 
that degrade engine efficiency, achieves fuel efficiency by ensuring 
that fuel is ignited and burned better.

Shell continues its studies in order to encourage its customers, 
business partners and employees 'to consume less and reduce 
emissions' within the context of the 'Smarter Mobility' approach 
applied worldwide. Over 200,000 people have been trained in 
the area of fuel efficiency by means of the 'Shell FuelSave Driver 
Training Programme' since 2009. Furthermore, a huge number of 
drivers in Turkey were given training in efficient driving after the 
creation of a 'Shell FuelSave Team' in 2011. Shell set a Guinness 
World Record for conducting the "Largest Fuel Efficiency Lesson" 
during its FuelSave Day on October 2011, when training sessions 
were simultaneously held in many countries, placing the concept of 
efficiency onto society’s agenda.

Commercial Sales

In order to better serve the customers and bring their satisfaction 
to a higher level even after the distribution of fuel, the commercial 
sales department conducts activities such as card sales, Vehicle 
Recognition System (the sector leader with 350,000 vehicles 
registered), bulk fuel and home base (supplying large companies’ 
storage facilities).

Terminals

PLANT Capacity Belonging to Shell & Turcas (m3)
Çekisan Çekmece 33,869
Çekisan Antalya 15,908
Ambarlı Ltd. 26,784
ATAŞ 182,506
SADAŞ Samsun 19,180
SADAŞ Gebze 46,652
Shell Ambarlı 54,135
Shell & Turcas Körfez 25,400
Shell & Turcas Derince 51,250
Shell & Turcas Kırıkkale 20,100
Shell & Turcas Antalya 30,342

Gebze SADAŞ JV Terminal

The Gebze SADAŞ Terminal was originally built by Total Oil Türkiye 
A.Ş. in 1989, and has an overall storage capacity of 98,000 m³. 
Under an agreement concluded between Total and Shell & Turcas, 
46,000 m³ of this facility’s capacity was made available for Shell & 
Turcas’ use as of November 15, 2010. As a result of this agreement, 
Shell & Turcas has boosted both its mandatory stock reserve 
capacity and its total stock reserve capacity in one of Turkey’s most 
concentrated industrial regions.

The facility is supplied with products brought by ships from 
refineries in Turkey and imported from abroad. All tanks and 
equipment must comply with Shell Health, Safety, & Environment 
Standards (HSE). The terminal will be operated jointly together 
with Total through a Board of Directors and Executive Committee. 
It will continue to conduct its activities by serving other companies 
operating in the region as well.
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Ataş Anadolu Refining

Turcas Petrol owns 5% of Ataş, which originally started operating in 
1962 in Mersin. Turcas Petrol’s partners in Ataş are BP (68%) and 
Shell (27%).

As a result of investments made after the decision to close the ATAŞ 
Refinery and transform it into a large-scale oil products terminal on 
the Mediterranean in 2004, ATAŞ Terminal today performs licensed 
storage activities.

The Terminal has an oil products storage capacity of 570,000 m3 and 
its own pier, where high-capacity ships can dock.

As 27% and 5% owners respectively, 32% of Ataş’s total storage 
capacity has been allocated to Shell and Turcas, and consequently to 
Shell & Turcas.

Market and Operational Risks

Price changes resulting from high volatility in demand/supply 
conditions represent a risk for oil companies and for companies that 
have a large share of oil in their cost structures. Rapid rises in crude 
oil prices were observed in late 2010 and the early quarters of 2011 
as a result of the revolutionary wave of demonstrations and protests 
that began in Tunisia and subsequently spread to other Middle Eastern 
and North African countries such as Egypt, Libya, Bahrain, and Yemen. 
The price of a barrel of Brent crude, which was averaging $ 83 in 
October 2010, rose 11% to a $ 92 / barrel average by December. 
During the same period however, pump prices were unable to rise 
by more than 4%. Because consumer prices are unable to keep 
pace with hikes in world oil prices, profit margins naturally shrink 
whenever rapid price rises take place.

Besides demand and price risks, there are also operational risks 
embedded in the sector. All preventive and safety measures should 
be implemented regarding the transportation and storage of 
flammable materials, in order to prevent potential damage to the 
environment and society. Accordingly, it is essential that there be full 
technical support, that due precautions be taken, and that risks be 
insured.

In March 2009, the Competition Authority published a ruling that 
imposes a five-year limit on the duration of long-term agreements 
that are entered into with fuel and LPG stations. As a result of this 
ruling, distribution companies engaged in an intensive process 
of contract renewal negotiations with their dealers, and found 
themselves obliged to make substantial prepayments that resulted in 
their having to incur investment outlays two or three times normal 
levels. Despite this, it was observed that the market shares of the 
sector’s five major players remained essentially the same. Petrol Ofisi, 
Shell & Turcas, BP, Opet, and Total’s combined market share amounted 
to 83% at year-end 2010, compared to 84% in 2009, and finally 82% 
in 2011.

DISTINGUISHING ITSELF BY 
VIRTUE OF ITS TRAILBLAZING 
SOLUTIONS IN THE AREA OF 
FUEL EFFICIENCY, SHELL & 
TURCAS INTRODUCED “SHELL 
FUELSAVE DIESEL” FOR 
DIESEL-POWERED VEHICLES 
LAST YEAR.THE FIRST LOW-
SULPHUR ENTRY IN ITS MAIN 
PRODUCT LINEUP, THIS NEW 
PRODUCT WENT ON SALE 
ALL AROUND TURKEY IN 
JANUARY 2011.
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STAR IS PLANNED AS A HIGH COMPLEXITY REFINERY ABLE TO 
CONVERT LOWER VALUE BLACK PRODUCTS INTO HIGHER VALUE 
AND ENVIRONMENT-FRIENDLY WHITE PRODUCTS, COMPLIANT 
WITH CURRENT AND FUTURE EUROPEAN UNION STANDARDS.
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STAR REFINING  
“SOCAR & Turcas Refining” was established on September 10, 2008. 
Title of the company was changed to STAR Refining as of January 
2012.

STAR Refining applied to The Energy Market Regulatory Authority 
(EMRA) of Turkey on November 4, 2008 for a license to undertake the 
SOCAR & Turcas Aegean Refinery (STAR) project in Aliağa/Izmir, which 
will have 10 million tonnes per annum of oil processing capacity. 
STAR was awarded a 49-year Refining License, numbered RAF/2610-
3/27891 on June 23, 2010. 

STAR is planned to be installed within the existing Petkim site and will 
meet Petkim’s feedstock requirements including LPG, Naphtha and 
Xylenes, and supply Diesel and Jet Fuel to the domestic market, which 
currently suffers considerable deficiency and relies on imports. There 
is no plan to produce either gasoline or fuel oil in STAR.

The planned investment will ensure feedstock supply security for 
Petkim and create synergy by sharing the infrastructure and side 
streams with Petkim thus creating additional value through Refinery-
Petrochemicals integration.

STAR is planned as a high complexity refinery able to convert lower 
value black products into higher value and environment-friendly 
white products, compliant with current and future European Union 
standards.

The Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) study for the Project has 
been completed and the Turkish Ministry of Environment and Forestry 
issued an Environmental Impact Positive Certificate on December 8, 
2009. In line with the Equator Principles, fulfilling the requirements 
of international financing institutions, an Environmental and Social 
Impact Assessment (ESIA) study was commenced in July 2010 and 
was completed in 2011.

The conceptual design and feasibility studies of the project were 
carried out by Technip (Italy) and UOP (UK). The concept phase was 
completed in July 2009, and the feasibility phase was completed at 
the end of February 2010. As a result of the technology selection 
study, which is part of the feasibility phase, the process technology 
licenses for 10 different units have been procured from 5 different 
licensors. The Basic Engineering Design (BED) packages of the 
associated process units were prepared in 2010.

In order to prepare BEDs of the unlicensed units, to coordinate the 
licensor activities, and to complete basic engineering works for off-
site facilities and utilities, Foster Wheeler Italiana began operations 
as the Front End Engineering Design (FEED) contractor in March 2010. 
The FEED package was completed at the end of March 2011.

Unicredit was mandated to arrange the financing for the refinery 
project as the sole financial advisor in 2011. The Groundbreaking 
Ceremony of the Project was held in October 2011 and construction 
works for the site preparation have already begun. It is planned 
to sign the EPC Contract with an EPC firm and finalize the financial 
negotiations by the end of 2012, so that the facility can commence 
commercial operations by 2016.

REFINING
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TURCAS REFINERY INVESTMENTS
Turcas Refinery Investments, established on December 28, 2011 
as a fully owned subsidiary of Turcas, owns an 18.5% share of Star 
Refining, which is the company that will build the STAR Refinery. STAR 
Refinery will have an annual processing capacity of 10 million tonnes 
of crude oil within the Petkim Complex in Izmir, Aliağa.

STAR IS PLANNED TO BE INSTALLED WITHIN THE EXISTING 
PETKİM SITE AND WILL MEET PETKİM’S FEEDSTOCK 
REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING LPG, NAPHTHA AND XYLENES, 
AND SUPPLY DIESEL AND JET FUEL TO THE DOMESTIC MARKET 
WHICH CURRENTLY SUFFERS CONSIDERABLE DEFICIENCY AND 
RELIES ON IMPORTS.
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TURCAS PLANS TO DIVERSIFY ITS PORTFOLIO WITH DOMESTIC 
AND RENEWABLE PROJECTS AND IS BUILDING A MAJOR GAS 
FIRED POWER PLANT IN PARTNERSHIP WITH GERMAN RWE, ONE 
OF THE WORLD’S LARGEST ENERGY COMPANIES. 
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TURCAS ENERGY HOLDING
Turcas Petrol, recognizing the significant rise in demand for electricity, 
and the potential of the electricity market in parallel with Turkish 
economic and industrial growth, took steps in accordance with its 
strategies and started operating in this particular sector.

Turcas combined its power generation, trading and distribution 
subsidiaries in 2008 under the umbrella of a sub-holding company, 
namely Turcas Energy Holding.

With investments and subsidiaries in power generation, trading and 
distribution, Turcas Energy Holding aims to be one of the leading 
energy companies in and around Turkey. Going public via capital 
markets as an integrated power and gas utility is another one of the 
company’s fundamental aims.

Electricity Generation and Trading

Turcas Energy Holding (TEH) is a 97.5% shareholder of Turcas Power 
Generation (TPG), which owns 30% of the shares of RWE & Turcas 
South Power Generation; a 67% shareholder of Turcas Power Trading 
(TPT); a 100% shareholder of Turcas Renewable Energy Generation, 
and a 30% shareholder of RWE & Turcas North Power Generation. The 
remaining shares of TPG and TPT, 2.5% and 33% respectively, belong 
to Turcas Petrol.

The main aims of Turcas Power Generation (TPG) and Turcas 
Renewable Energy Generation, subsidiaries of Turcas Energy Holding, 
are;

   - to make investments by building new power plants and/or 
     acquiring profitable power plants,
   - to become one of the top power generation companies in Turkey 
     and its surrounding region with a diversified generation portfolio.

As independent generation companies, Turcas Power Generation and 
Turcas Renewable Energy Generation develop projects in Turkey and 
in the international arena.

Turcas Power Generation and Turcas Renewable Energy Generation 
are focused on generation projects based on resources such as wind, 
natural gas, coal, lignite, liquid fuels, nuclear, hydraulic, biomass, 
geothermal, and solar in its fields of activity.

TPG and TWP are responsible for;
   - establishing the financial structure of its projects, either alone or in 
      partnership with domestic/international investors and/or   
      developers,
   - securing the required permits and approvals,
   - contracting projects in terms of engineering, procurement, 
     construction (EPC) and commissioning,
   - undertaking the commercial operation of power plants, and 
   - applying productivity-growing measures.

Through its subsidiaries, Turcas Energy Holding aims to enhance 
its installed capacity by the end of 2012 to 232.5 MW based on 
natural gas, to 340 MW in 2014, with the addition of hydroelectric, 
geothermal and wind investments to the portfolio, and then to 
around 580 MW by 2018, with the operation of domestic lignite 
sources or imported coal fired generation.

Market and Operational Risks

3,530 MW of new capacity has been added in 2011, with a notable 
portion of this in the form of renewable energy. Not only has this new 
addition matched rising demand during the year but it also enabled 
the accumulation of auxiliary reserves for 20% of the generation 
capacity. As well as this development naturally creating a risk for 
power generators, rising demand in parallel with Turkey’s economic 
growth also causes a faster-than-expected depletion of auxiliary 
reserves. Average electricity prices are determined in parallel with the 
natural gas market, because natural gas fired power plants occupy 
an important part of the generation (supply) portfolio and base-load 
demand satisfaction. Therefore, seasonal changes in the availability 
of hydro-sources, existence of natural gas and precipitation ratios 
can cause major fluctuations in electricity prices. The generation 
and trading companies, cyclically, aim to guarantee their expected 
profitability by optimizing their portfolios with generation as well as 
third-party supplies.

POWER AND GAS
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In the mid to long term, however, prices formed in the Market 
Financial Conciliation Centre (MFCC) system, and the prices offered by 
the Turkish Electricity Trade and Contracting Corporation (TETAŞ) and 
Electricity Generation Corporation (EÜAŞ) to Distributors are expected 
to rise. This is expected to be reflected in the national energy tariff.

Firstly, the exorbitant tender prices of the electricity distribution assets 
tendered by the state in 2010 and 2011 will create a costly financing 
requirement for the buyers. Letters of guarantee of the distributors, 
who have retail sales licenses, collaterals, and heavy repayment 
schedules to banks, may apply upward pressure on electricity prices.

Likewise, tender prices for the planned power generation assets 
expected to be sold in 2012-2013 may again be excessive. In order 
to secure supply for their distribution operations, Distributors may be 
willing to overpay for these assets and further intensify the financing 
burden on their companies. Together with the upgrade and revamp 
needs of these somewhat outdated assets, the upward pressure on 
electricity prices may grow.

Furthermore, incentives and feed-in tariffs granted to nuclear projects 
will represent another upward risk for electricity prices. 

The proposed incentives to be offered to renewable energy 
investments will pressure the prices offered by fossil fuel fired 
generators (natural gas and coal). Additionally, funds that are 
expected to be formed in the balancing and settlement mechanism in 
order to incentivize the renewable energy investments may result in 
a shift from fossil to renewable investments, which may create a risk 
for the Interconnectivity Grid’s feedstock security.

Legislation Changes

Spontaneous changes in legislation usually result in incompatibility 
between separate legislations and implementation difficulties. 
Foreign investors who may bring capital do not trust in the 
energy market due to the application, which lacks a planned and 
sustainable development. Low profit margins, hurdles to new project 
development (not being able to receive commitment views due to 
interrupted projects, difficulties in permit and license procedures, 
etc.), and expensive valuations of the projects per MW are deterrents 
to inviting new foreign investors and capital to the market. 

EMRA may be expected to take proactive measures with respect 
to the demand safety by canceling licenses that don't progress for 
completion. Electricity prices would naturally rise where supply cannot 
meet demand.

WITH INVESTMENTS AND 
SUBSIDIARIES IN POWER 
GENERATION AND TRADING, 
TURCAS ENERGY HOLDING 
AIMS TO BE ONE OF THE 
LEADING ENERGY COMPANIES 
IN AND AROUND TURKEY. 
GOING PUBLIC VIA CAPITAL 
MARKETS AS AN INTEGRATED 
POWER AND GAS UTILITY IS 
ALSO ONE OF THE COMPANY’S 
FUNDAMENTAL AIMS.
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TURCAS POWER GENERATION
Apart from the operation of plants, main target of Turcas Power 
Generation (TPG) is to focus on large-scale and diversified 
power generation investments by establishing partnerships with 
international companies.

TPG is in an intermediate holding status which participates in the 
companies to be founded within this context. 

With this aim in mind, TPG entered into a partnership with RWE, one 
of the world’s top energy companies, in order to invest in two large 
scale power plants, one based on natural gas and the other based on 
imported coal. TPG’s share within this partnership is 30%. Within the 
scope of these agreements, the joint venture companies were called 
RWE & Turcas South Power Generation (RTG) and RWE & Turcas North 
Power Generation. All shares of Turcas Power Generation in RWE & 
Turcas North Power Generation were transferred to Turcas Energy 
Holding in 2009.

For its 30% share in RWE & Turcas South’s 775 MW Natural Gas fired 
Combined Cycle Power Plant in Kaklık, Denizli, which is currently 
under construction with an approximate investment value of EUR 
550 million, TPG signed an Export Credit Agency (ECA) covered Loan 
Agreement with West Landesbank-Bayerische Landesbank Banks 
Consortium, under Euler Hermes German ECA insurance, for an 
amount of EUR 149,351,984, with a 13-year term including a 3-year 
grace period, and a Commercial Loan Agreement with the Industrial 
Development Bank of Turkey (TSKB) for an amount of $ 55,000,000 
with a 10-year term including a 3-year grace period, on November 
11, 2010. EUR 149,351,984 includes the Hermes premium and 
interest payments during construction.

As of December 31, 2011, the construction work is 75% complete. 
TPG aims to enhance its installed power capacity to a level of around 
232.5 MW by 2012 with investment.

RWE & Turcas Energy Sales, a 100% subsidiary of RTG was established 
in order to prepare the launch of the Denizli Plant into the energy 
market, and to organize energy trading operations. The company 
obtained the Electricity Wholesale License in 2011.

TPG, having obtained its Electricity Generation License from EMRA, 
operates a fully owned cogeneration (combined heat and power) 
plant with an installed capacity of 1.66 MW in Istanbul. This plant, 
approved by the Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources on April 
5, 2007, is now among the most efficient cogeneration plants in 
Turkey. An agreement was signed in 2011 in order to transfer this 
plant to Yeditepe Beynelmilel Otelcilik Turizm ve Ticaret A.Ş., and this 
transfer is subject to the approval of EMRA. The transfer is slated for 
completion in 2012.

During the last quarter of 2007, in order to diversify its portfolio 
with renewable and sustainable energy investments, Turcas Power 
Generation established Turcas Wind Power Generation as a fully 
owned subsidiary. Later, all of Turcas Power Generation’ shares in 
Turcas Wind Power Generation were transferred to Turcas Energy 
Holding. Turcas Wind Power Generation continues its operations under 
its new title, Turcas Renewable Energy Generation.

RWE & TURCAS SOUTH POWER 
GENERATION
RWE & Turcas South Power Generation (RTG) will operate a 775 MW 
natural gas fired combined cycle power plant in Kaklık, Denizli, which 
would generate approximately 6.5 billion kWh of electricity per 
annum.

RTG received its 49-year license in April 2009. 

RTG completed the land acquisition, finalized the feasibility studies 
and received the Environmental Impact Assessment Positive 
Certificate in 2008. All the approvals necessary for the construction of 
the plant were obtained, and Metka S.A. of Greece was selected as 
the lumpsum turnkey EPC contractor in 2009.
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In 2010, the International Environmental and Social Impact 
Assessment study reports were closed and the Public Participation 
Meeting was held. Following receipt of the construction permit, a final 
investment decision was made and the construction commenced. 
The Investment Incentive Certificate, which will ensure customs tax 
and VAT exemption for imported and local equipment, was obtained 
in May 2010. A Connection Agreement was signed with the Turkish 
Electricity Transmission Company (TEİAŞ), the Electricity Transmission 
Line routing was defined, and the permitting process and construction 
were initiated. As of December 31, 2011, 75% of the construction has 
been completed. The paid-in capital of RWE & Turcas South was raised 
to TL 430,000,000.

In November 2010, Turcas Power Generation signed an export credit 
contract with the West Landesbank-Bayerische Landesbank Banks 
Consortium, under Euler Hermes German Export Credit Agency 
insurance, and a commercial credit contract with the Industrial 
Development Bank of Turkey, for the financing of 30% of the 
investment cost of the Denizli Natural Gas fired Combined Cycle 
Power Plant. 

The commercial operation is slated to commence by the end of 2012 
and the total investment cost is estimated to be approximately Euro 
550 million.

RWE & TURCAS ENERGY SALES
RWE & Turcas Energy Sales (RTE Sales) signed the EFET General 
Contract pertaining to the supply, delivery and receipt of Electric 
Power in September 2011. This is the first agreement compatible with 
the standards of the European Federation of Energy Traders (EFET) 
organization. RTE Sales plans to continue and expand its activities 
based on physical delivery and financial derivative operations in 
over-the-counter markets, and day-ahead markets in line with 
developments in the Organized Energy Markets.

RWE & TURCAS NORTH POWER 
GENERATION
RWE & Turcas North aims to build and operate on imported coal fired 
power plant.

The project, which has been shelved as of 2012, will be ready for re-
launch by the partners between the years 2013 and 2015, in parallel 
with the liberalization of the Turkish energy market.

TURCAS RENEWABLE ENERGY 
GENERATION
Turcas Renewable Energy Generation follows a strategy that is 
focused on clean energy investments. 

Turcas Wind Energy Generation (Turcas Wind) was established by 
Turcas Power Generation on October 25, 2007 as a fully owned 
subsidiary with the intention of diversifying its power generation 
portfolio and completing green-field renewable and sustainable 
energy investments. 

Turcas Wind applied to EMRA on November 1, 2007 to obtain Power 
Generation Licenses for a total of 400 MW of wind farm projects.

In accordance with the principle of investing in profitable energy 
projects, the company did not submit the high accretion values which 
would negatively impact the project feasibilities in the capacity 
tenders of transformer substations, organized by the Turkish Electricity 
Transmission Company (TETC) in 2011 for wind energy licenses dated 
November 1, 2007, and thus was not awarded with any license.
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Turcas vigorously pursues its investigations and evaluations on wind-
sourced energy projects in domestic and foreign markets in order to 
invest in and purchase profitable projects. Turcas also continues to 
measure and analyze wind quality in prospect fields.

Turcas changed the Articles of Association of Turcas Wind Energy 
Generation on October 25, 2011 with the purpose of developing 
projects related to other renewable energy sources as well. On the 
same date, title of the company was changed to Turcas Renewable 
Energy Generation in order to reflect the new business segments in 
the company name.

Turcas Renewable Energy Generation (Turcas Renewable) has 
initiated research and explorations with four geothermal source 
exploration licenses, under the supervision of the Provincial Special 
Administration. The geothermal potential of the areas in Aydın, Izmir 
and Denizli will be assessed and decisions with respect to energy 
Investments will be made accordingly. 

Turcas Energy Holding continues negotiations with various investors to 
establish partnerships regarding the wind and geothermal projects of 
Turcas Renewable.

TURCAS POWER TRADING 
Turcas Power Trading (TPT), established in 2000, obtained the first 
private sector electricity wholesale license in Turkey on June 5, 2003. 

Turcas Power Trading is a subsidiary of Turcas Energy Holding.

Turcas Power Trading aims to wholesale and trade power supplied by 
Turcas Power Generation and Turcas Renewable Energy Generation in 
the domestic market.

The primary mission of TPT is;
   - to help power generation facilities operate at optimum efficiency,
   - to benefit from the advantages of Turkey’s strategic position as an 
     energy bridge and terminal, and
   - to contribute to the domestic and international competitive 
     strength of energy consuming industrial and commercial facilities 
     throughout Turkey by supplying them with reliable energy under 
     the best possible terms.

The company also aims to sustain its growth while expanding its 
activities in the area of energy market derivatives with the supportive 
liquidity.

TURCAS VIGOROUSLY 
PURSUES ITS INVESTIGATIONS 
AND EVALUATIONS ON 
WIND-SOURCED ENERGY 
PROJECTS IN DOMESTIC AND 
FOREIGN MARKETS IN ORDER 
TO INVEST IN AND PURCHASE 
PROFITABLE PROJECTS. 
TURCAS ALSO CONTINUES 
TO MEASURE AND ANALYZE 
WIND QUALITY IN PROSPECT 
FIELDS.
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With the enactment of the Balancing and Reconciliation Regulation in 
August 2006, electricity pricing began to be determined by real-time 
supply and demand of active energy. Achieving a growth rate of 
248% compared to 2010, TPT sold a total of over 61,000,000 kWh of 
electricity to its customers and TEİAŞ in 2011. TPT maintains activities 
to broaden its customer and supplier portfolio based on bilateral 
contracts in 2011. 

TURCAS GAS TRADING
Today, energy is one of the biggest cost components of industrial 
production, although the amount changes from one sector to another.

Better energy management boosts the competitiveness of industrial 
companies in comparison with their peers that are in the same 
category and have similar input costs.

Bearing this target in mind, Turcas Gas Trading (Turcas Gas), a fully 
owned subsidiary of Turcas Petrol, was established in June 2005. As 
an active participant in the natural gas market liberalisation process, 
the company obtained a 30-year Natural Gas Wholesale License from 
EMRA on May 17, 2007, to conduct natural gas import and wholesale 
operations.

With the commencement of natural gas imports on December 19, 
2007, Turcas Gas took a leading role in the natural gas market. 
However, according to the rate of development of current natural gas 
liquidity in the market, the company decided to cease its natural gas 
and spot LNG activities temporarily, on condition that the contractual 
rights and obligations are reserved.

2011 was a year of strategic development and planning for Turcas 
Gas. In this period, Turcas Gas evaluated the steps that will be taken 
by BOTAŞ and the Turkish Government, and it is intended that these 
activities will continue through various purchases and sales. During 
this period of deregulation, in which trading mechanisms began 
operating better and market oriented legislation was formed and 
improved, Turcas Gas aims to be one of the leading private companies 
in the import/wholesale market by growing its trade volumes 
significantly every year.

When natural gas imports are fully liberalised in near future, Turcas 
Gas’ business development activities and cooperation with resource 
rich neighboring countries such as Azerbaijan, Iraq and Iran are 
expected to provide Turcas with major advantages.

Market and Operational Risks

Cost of natural gas fell sharply in the second and third quarters of 
2009 due to the global economic crisis. BOTAŞ did not reduce prices 
to the same extent, allowing private importers to record profits during 
this period. However, in the last quarter of 2009, BOTAŞ did not reflect 
the rise in purchase cost to its customers, and most of the suppliers 
ended the year with losses. As a result of the declining demand and 
contracting natural gas market in 2009, BOTAŞ focused on big-ticket 
customers and gave them large discounts in order to attract their 
business. Relatively small private players were left with small and 
irregular buyers that were riskier in terms of revenues and stability, 
or had to offer even larger discounts. Accordingly, 2011 closed with 
losses for private suppliers.

It is highly significant that natural gas amount and price risks are 
controllable by means of the liquidity provided by the private sector.

As a result of market conditions, Turcas Gas was not involved in any 
natural gas trading activity during 2011.

Legislation Changes

The private sector expects a new applicable law to replace the 
existing one during 2012, since the original one (Natural Gas Market 
Law No. 4646) is no longer applicable given certain clauses. Since 
it is not known what the new law will bring, almost all players in 
the sector are cautious and risk-averse. Short, mid and long term 
strategies will be developed while the natural gas market is expected 
to be liberalised with the necessary legislation changes and to be 
made financially robust, stable and transparent.
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1- Declaration of Compliance with Corporate Governance Principles

The corporate governance approach acquired a place of importance on business world agendas after a stream of scandals emerged 
in the wake of the Asian financial crisis in the late 1990s and the early 2000s among companies which had hitherto been held up 
as exemplary models for the world to follow. In order to restore investor confidence, which had been seriously impaired by these 
developments, there eventually emerged an approach that focused on access to information that was both truthful and complete 
and on an approach to management that was both transparent and accountable. In this way, “Corporate Governance” came to be an 
approach that investments and other stakeholders demanded because of its confidence-building features.

When the global contraction that began in 2008 resulted in bankruptcies even among companies that had the highest levels of 
corporate governance, the need to internalize corporate governance and to make it an element of corporate culture encompassing 
all stakeholders was further reinforced. We are of the opinion that only a corporate governance approach which has been accepted 
within such a framework is capable of raising a company’s competitive strength by virtue of its ability to allow limited resources to 
be managed more effectively, to permit quicker access to financing, and to attract human resources.

The Board of Directors of Turcas Petrol A.Ş. oversees the compliance and implementation of the Corporate Governance Principles. 
Reasons for not complying with the mentioned principles or conflicts of interest arising from noncompliance are explained in the 
related sections of the Corporate Governance Principles Compliance Report.

A group of specialists in the Finance Division work on all the various aspects of the relations with Company’s shareholders as 
specified in the Corporate Governance Principles of the Capital Markets Board. This group is focused on shareholders’ rights, public 
disclosures and information, relations with stakeholders, social responsibility, audit and the activities of the Board of Directors, in 
conformity with the provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code, the Company’s Articles of Association and the principles of the Capital 
Markets Board.

In accordance with the general principles, any events which may affect the financial situation or results of operations of the Company 
are disclosed promptly, accurately and completely.

The Company’s human resources policy and business ethics policy and practices are maintained, and our basic principles relating to 
employees’ rights are published in the annual reports.

As an industry requirement, and as part of our social responsibility, a Safety Health and Environment (SHE) policy was established 
in 2001. This policy is also communicated to service providers and contractors working with the Company, and they are required 
to work in strict compliance with the policy. During the current period, no lawsuit or investigation has been initiated against the 
Company due to alleged damages to the environment.

The Company’s Board of Directors fulfils its functions and responsibilities in strict conformity with the provisions of the Turkish 
Commercial Code, the Company’s Articles of Association, principles of the Capital Markets Board and the generally accepted rules 
of ethics. The Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee comprised of two non-executive members in accordance with 
the relevant notifications of the Capital Markets Board. In line with the focus given to Corporate Governance Principles, the Board 
of Directors established a Corporate Governance Committee comprised of three non-executive members, a Risk Management 
Committee comprised of three members and a Business Development Committee comprised of
three members in 2011.

As a consequence of its belief that corporate governance principles should be internalized and become a part of a corporate culture 
that encompasses all stakeholders, the Board of Directors held an extraordinary general meeting convened on 30 November 2010, at 
which articles 3, 4, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 19, 22, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 34, 41, 47, 48, and 52 of the Company’s Articles of 
Incorporation were amended and another article (§ 53) was also added in line with those principles.

The company’s Articles of Incorporation contain no provisions pertaining to:
• Requests to have a special auditor appointed being granted as an individual right
• The participation of employees or other stakeholders on the Board of Directors
• Any use of the cumulative voting system in the election of members of the Board of Directors
• The presence of independent members of the Board of Directors as defined in articles 3.3.4 or 3.3.5 of section IV of the CMB 
Corporate Governance Principles.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT
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Article 26 of the Articles of Incorporation contains a provision stating that decisions about demergers or transfers of shares that would 
create changes in the company’s capital or management structure or in its assets are to be taken at a general meeting. However 
it contains no provisions that would require general meeting resolutions to be taken about buying, selling, leasing, or renting 
substantial amounts of tangible or intangible assets or about providing guarantees, surety, mortgages, or the like to third parties. It is 
thought that the conduct of such transactions by means of a general meeting resolution could lead to significant delays in company 
action when confronted by business opportunities that might arise in competitive markets and that such a situation would hinder 
management’s ability to make decisions expeditiously and thus would be detrimental to the interests both of the company and of 
its shareholders. For this reason, it is deemed to be appropriate to inform all shareholders about such transactions at the first general 
meeting that is held after they take place.

As stated in the Capital Markets Board Corporate Governance Principles, the rating study which was concluded by reviewing 313 
criteria under the main topics of Shareholders, Public Disclosure and Transparency, Stakeholders and Board of Directors and by 
evaluation via Kobirate Uluslararası Kredi Derecelendirme ve Kurumsal Yönetim Hizmetleri A.Ş. methodology revealed that Corporate 
Governance Compliance Rating Score of Turcas Petrol A.Ş. is 7.52. This result shows that Turcas complies with Corporate Governance 
Principles published by the Capital Markets Board on a large scale and deserves to be included into the Corporate Governance Index 
of the Istanbul Stock Exchange. As a result of the assessment carried out by KOBIRATE in 2011, the Company’s Corporate Governance 
Compliance Rating Score was revised to 8.12.

PART I - SHAREHOLDERS

2- Relations with Shareholders

Relations with shareholders are managed by the Investor Relations and Strategic Planning Department and Shareholder Relations 
Department. The principal persons with regard this issue are:

C. Yusuf Ata Shareholders Relations Manager  +902122590000 (x1205) yusuf.ata@turcas.com.tr       
Nurettin Demircan Accounting Manager  +902122590000 (x1251) nurettin.demircan@turcas.com.tr 
Erkan İlhantekin Corporate Finance & Investor Relations Manager  +902122590000 (x1282) erkan.ilhantekin@turcas.com.tr  
Engin Çaylan Accounting Assistant Manager   +902122590000 (x1253) engin.caylan@turcas.com.tr 
Nesrin Aşula Accounting Expert  +902122590000 (x1256) nesrin.asula@turcas.com.tr 

Included among the main activities of these groups are relations with CMB-ISE-Custody Bank, capital increases, public offerings, 
dividends and distributions, share book updating, share transfers, relations with the Central Registry Agency and transactions 
with regard to the Public Information and Automation Project, ordinary and extraordinary meetings of the General Assembly of 
Shareholders, public disclosures and duties mentioned in section 1.1.2 of Corporate Governance Principles.

Regarding the Investor Relations of the Company, CEO & Board Member Mr. Batu Aksoy and Board Member Mr. Süreyya Serdengeçti 
and Corporate Finance & Investor Relations Manager Mr. Erkan İlhantekin have undertaken the task of meeting with local and 
international investors, participating in investment conferences on behalf of and representing Turcas, and answering all possible 
questions of the investors.

Turcas makes regular meetings with existing and potential investors at home and abroad, provides detailed information and updates 
about all subjects such as the activities, projects and financials of the Company and its subsidiaries, macro economic forecasts and 
developments about Turkey in the most transparent way. The Investor Relations Department met with 200 national/international 
investors and analysts in 2011.

3- Use of Information Rights by Shareholders

During the current period, shareholders have made approximately 125 requests for data and information on a variety of issues. 
The information requested is mostly about exchange of shares, share transfers, dividends and other distributions, capital increases, 
financial statements, annual reports, share prices, current period profit, special event disclosures, etc. The information requests are 
responded both verbally and/or in writing. Since 2004, any and all developments affecting shareholding rights are made public via 
electronic medium as a part of the Public Information and Automation Project, being a joint project of CMB-TÜBİTAK/Bilten. 
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Article 22 of the Company’s Articles of Association provides that: “The General Assembly of Shareholders will elect and appoint 
special auditors if and when required for audit and examination of certain issues”. However no such request has been made during 
the current period.

4- Information on General Assembly Meetings

The Annual Ordinary Meeting of the General Assembly of Shareholders relating to the 2010 accounting period of the Company was 
held at the Conrad Hotel on 27.04.2011. Shareholders representing 68.35% of the total 225,000,000 shares, as well as stakeholders 
and some media representatives attended the meeting. The reasons as to why members cannot attend the General Assembly are 
duly shared with the participants and the Meeting Council.

Pursuant to Article 27 of the Articles of Association, announcements of General Assembly Meetings are published by the Board 
of Directors in the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette and also in two daily newspapers with high circulation. In addition, the agenda, 
acknowledgment documents, Balance Sheet and Profit-Loss Statement for the period, Profit Distribution Table and a sample of the 
Power of Attorney have been made available in the company website.

All the share certificates of the Company are registered, and the updated shareholder information is recorded in the share book of 
the Company. The holders of shares quoted and traded in the Istanbul Stock Exchange are, as also stated in the calls for the General 
Assembly meetings, requested to apply to the Company head offices no later than one week prior to the meeting date in order to 
receive a meeting entrance card and to submit information pertaining to the shares they hold. Thus, the list of attendees is prepared 
one week before the meeting.

Starting from 15 days before the General Assembly meeting, the related financial statements and reports are made available in 
the Company head offices for inspection by the shareholders. Balance Sheet and the Income Statement of the relevant period are 
attached to the letters of invitation sent to the shareholders by registered mail. Various questions asked by the shareholders in the 
General Assembly meetings are answered by the meeting council. Questions that could not be answered immediately are responded 
within 7 working days.

The last item of the General Assembly meeting agenda is requests and questions. These are evaluated by the meeting council and 
responded to at the discretion of the General Assembly of Shareholders.

The General Assembly Meeting was open to the public. Stakeholders and the media were invited to attend. Representatives of some 
media concerns attended the meeting.

According to Article 26 of the Articles of Association of the Company, matters concerning split-off and change of shares resulting 
in change in the capital structure and organizational structure as well as assets of the Company shall be discussed and ratified by 
the General Assembly. Article 26 of the Articles of Incorporation contains a provision stating that decisions about demergers or 
transfers of shares that would create changes in the company’s capital or management structure or in its assets are to be taken at 
a general meeting. However it contains no provisions that would require general meeting resolutions to be taken about buying, 
selling, leasing, or renting substantial amounts of tangible or intangible assets or about providing guarantees, surety, mortgages, 
or the like to third parties. It is thought that the conduct of such transactions by means of a general meeting resolution could lead 
to significant delays in company action when confronted by business opportunities that might arise in competitive markets and 
that such a situation would hinder management’s ability to make decisions expeditiously and thus would be detrimental to the 
interests both of the company and of its shareholders. For this reason, it is deemed to be appropriate to inform all shareholders 
about such transactions at the first general meeting that is held after they take place. For the sake of facilitating participation in the 
General Assembly meetings, advertisements are published in newspapers and letters of invitation are sent by registered mail to the 
shareholders of the Company.

Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting of Turcas Petrol Anonim Şirketi was held on on Tuesday 30.11.2010 at 11.00 a.m. in 
İstanbul. It was decided that the Draft Amendment of Article 6 titled “Capital and Shares” of the Company’s Articles of Association for 
increase of the Company’s capital to TL 225,000,000.- from TL 136,500,000.- by an increase of TL 88,500,000; TL 85,153,605.97 of 
which is to be paid from the Previous Years’ Profit; and TL 3,346,394.03 from the Extraordinary Reserves, would be accepted.

Also, the amendment of Articles 3-4-7-8-9-10-11-12-13-14-15-19-22-26-27-28-29-30-31-34-41-47-48 and 52 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company and insertion of Article 53 into the same to ensure compliance with the Corporate Governance Principles 
and transition to book entry system of the shares would be accepted. The minutes of the General Assembly meetings are made 
available in both the Trade Registry, the Company head offices and Company’s website for inspection by shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT
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5- Voting Rights and Minority Rights

No shareholders are entitled to any privileges in voting rights in the General Assembly meetings of the Company. However, in 
accordance with Articles 13 and 22 of the Articles of Association, the Privileged Shareholders hold privilege of nomination in 
elections for the Board of Directors and Audit Committee. The Board of Directors consists of 7 members. At least three members of 
the Board of Directors are elected from among the candidates nominated by Class “B” Shareholders. At least two members of the 
Board of Directors are elected from among the candidates nominated by Class “C” Shareholders. In the event Class C Shareholders 
hold at least forty percent (40%) Class A Shares on the date of the General Assembly, they shall be entitled to nominate and elect at 
least three (3) Members. However, the other Board members shall be nominated and elected by the Class B Shareholders. The Audit 
Committee consists of 2 members. One member is chosen among the candidates nominated by Class C Shareholders and the other 
member is chosen among the candidates nominated by Class B Shareholders.

The Board of Directors call the Class C Shareholders and Class B Shareholders for a meeting to nominate and elect member 
candidates at least seven days prior to the General Assembly. This Board separately convenes with the majority of the Class C 
Shareholders or Class B Shareholders and separately passes resolutions with the majority of the Class C Shareholders or Class B 
Shareholders.

There is no partnership in the Company that results in reciprocal and/or dominant ownership. Cumulative voting rights are not 
allowed in the general assembly meetings.

6- Dividend Policy and Time of Distribution

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, there is no preference in the participation of the Company profit.

Turcas Petrol A.Ş. takes into consideration the Company’s Articles of Association, related laws and regulations and market conditions 
in deciding dividend distribution. In dividend distribution, the Company’s shareholders’ equity rate, sustainable growth rate, market 
value and cash flows are taken into account by paying utmost attention to protection of the balance between the investments 
required for the growth of the Company and the financing of such investments. Within this frame, the Company made up principle 
the distribution of dividend at the rate, which shall not adversely affect the Company’s market value and shall meet the expectations 
of the shareholders to the highest level.

The “Dividend Policy” is hereby determined by considering the Turkish Commercial Code, Capital Market Law, Regulations and 
Communiqués and arrangements thereof, tax laws and other legal laws and regulations as well as the Company’s Articles of 
Association.

Determination of Profit

Profit of the Company is the net amount remained after deduction of activity and general management expenses, depreciation and 
provisions as well as other costs and expenses from income and other incomes generated from the activities set forth in the Articles 
of Association within a fiscal period. Distribution of the net profit is determined is as follows:

Procedure for Dividend Distribution

a. The base of initial legal reserve is the amount remaining after deduction of the previous year’s loss, if any, from net period profit 
(after-tax profit) set forth in the legal records. 5% of the remaining net profit is set aside as the Initial Legal Reserve within the 
framework of Article 466 of the Turkish Commercial Code (TCC).

b. Net distributable period profit is the amount remaining after deduction of previous years’ losses and the initial legal reserve from 
the net period profit (if any). As per Article 4 of the Communiqué Series IV and No. 40 of the Capital Markets Board, the initial tier 
dividend of the Company may not be less than 20% of the distributable profit remained after deduction of legal reserves, required to 
be set aside as per the laws, funds and financial payments and previous years’ losses (if any). This rate may vary upon the Capital s 
Board’s decision of change. Upon recommendation of the Board of Directors, the General Assembly may resolve on distribution of the 
initial legal reserve in cash and/or as shares or on non-distribution and retention of the same.
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c. Unless the legal reserves obligated to be set aside as per the provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code and the Capital Markets 
Law and the initial legal reserve determined for the shareholders in the Articles of Association are set aside, it shall not be resolved 
that any other legal reserve be set aside, transferred to the next year and distributed as dividend to the members of the Board of 
Directors, employees, servants and workers.

d. Out of the amount remaining after distribution of initial tier dividend as per the Company’s Articles of Association, upon the 
proposal of the Board of Directors and approval of the General Assembly,

• Any profit share may be distributed to the Members of the Board of Auditors, Personnel or personnel funds,
• Second tier dividend may be distributed to the Shareholders (In this case, a reserve fund is set aside as per Article 466/3 of the 
Turkish Commercial Code),
• Or the remaining profit is transferred to the extraordinary reserve funds or is not distributed partially or entirely for a determined or 
undetermined period or may be transferred to a provisional account.

e. Out of the amount resolved to be distributed to the shareholders as the second tier legal reserve or distributed to the participants 
of the profit; 10% is set aside and transferred to the legal reserve fund as per Subparagraph 3 of Paragraph 2 of Article 466 of the 
Turkish Commercial Code.

f. Board of Directors, being approved by the General Assembly and in compliance with Capital Markets Board’s regulations, may 
distribute dividends in advance. The authority given to distribute advance dividends to the Board of Directors by the General 
Assembly is limited to the year the authority is rendered. Unless the advance dividends in the previous year are fully distributed 
and/or accounted for, new advance or regular dividends cannot be paid.

Other Provisions

• In application of the dividend policy, a stable policy is applicable between the interests of the shareholders and the interests of the 
Company.

• The General Assembly shall resolve when the dividend is to be distributed to the shareholders upon the proposal of the Board of 
Directors. However, if the entire of the dividend is to be distributed in cash, best effort is made to ensure that the same shall be paid 
latest until the end of the 5th month. In the event of other distribution methods, the related laws, regulations, communiqués and 
arrangements of the Capital Markets Board shall be applicable.

• The dividend pro rata to the shares is distributed to the existing shares, regardless of the issuance and acquisitions dates thereof, as 
of the end of the fiscal period without application of principle of per diem deduction.

• In the event the calculated “net distributable period profit” remains below 5% of the issued capital, no dividend may be distributed.

• In the event of non-distribution of dividend, the Board of Directors submits to the information of the shareholders at the General 
Assembly why the dividend is not distributed and stipulates where the retained profit is used.

At the Company General Meeting held on 27 April 2011, it was decided that, of the TL 56.382.591 in current net profit shown as 
secured in the IFRS prepared financial statements for 2011, the TL 11.250.000  remaining after TL 2.866.664,57  had been set aside 
as a statutory reserve pursuant to CMB Communique IV:27 and to article 466 of the Turkish Commercial Code, was to be paid out–in 
cash, in a lump sum, and on 23 May 2011–as a gross dividend of TL 0.05, corresponding to a net dividend of TL 0.0425 for each share 
with a par value of TL 1.00. These payments were made on that date.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT
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7- Transfer of Shares

Article 7 of the Articles of Association stipulates that, transfer of the registered shares in Group A is validated by the prior consent of 
the Board of Directors and the Transfers and Assignments effected by “Simple Endorsement”. For the transfer of the shares in Groups 
B and C, holding the privilege of nomination in elections for the Board of Directors and the Board of Auditors of the Company, the 
prior consent of the Board of Directors is required.

In accordance with this Article, the restriction on the transfer of the shares in Group A has been eliminated by the prior consent of 
the Board of Directors. However, the holders of shares in Groups B and C are obliged to comply with the conditions in the event of 
transfer of shares in Groups B and C.

PART II - PUBLIC DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

8- Company Disclosure Policy

Turcas Petrol A.Ş. (“Turcas”) applies an effective disclosure policy so as to ensure concurrent, complete, express and accurate 
disclosure to related persons and legal entities such as local and foreign shareholders, investors, capital market specialists and 
intermediary institutions within the framework of the provisions of the related laws and Capital Markets Legislation. In application of 
the disclosure policy, it is essential that necessary information and explanations other than the trade secrets be disclosed to all the 
beneficiaries particularly shareholders and investors accurately, completely and apparently.

Turcas takes into consideration the Capital Market Laws and Regulations, arrangements of the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) and 
Istanbul Securities Exchange (“ISE”) as well as Corporate Governance Principles of the Capital Market.

Turcas Petrol A.Ş. Disclosure Policy has been issued as per Article 23 of the Communiqué Series VIII, No. 54 regarding Principles on 
“Significant Events of Disclosure” and is announced to all the beneficiaries through Turcas website (www.turcas.com.tr).

I- Authority and Responsibility

Turcas Disclosure Policy has been prepared by the Board of Directors. Disclosure to the public as well as follow-up, observations and 
development of the disclosure policy are all under the responsibility of the Board of Directors. For coordination of the disclosure 
function; Coordination and Regulatory Affairs Department, Corporate Finance & Investor Relations Management, Accounting 
Department and Corporate Treasury Management are all authorized; and related personnel fulfil their responsibilities in close 
cooperation with the Auditing Committee and the Board of Directors.

II- Methods and Instruments

Disclosures are made by disclosure instruments such as significant events of disclosure, financial statements and reports, annual 
reports, internet website, disclosure letters, press releases.

Methods and instruments of public disclosure as per the Capital Market Laws and Regulations, provisions of the Turkish Commercial 
Code and requirements of the Istanbul Securities Exchange are as follows:

• Notifications and significant events of disclosure made within the scope of the ISE and Public Disclosure Platform (“PDP”);
• Financial statements and footnotes, independent audit report, statements and annual reports transmitted to the ISE in closed 
envelope periodically. The relevant reports are published in the Company’s website (www.turcas.com.tr) to enable access at any 
time;
• Publications and announcements made through the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette and Daily Newspapers (prospectus, circulars, calls 
for general assembly etc.)
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• Press disclosures made by written and visual media upon occurrence of significant events within the year;
• Annual reports (relevant reports are presented and disclosed in printed form or in electronic medium in website); 
• The Company’s web-site (www.turcas.com.tr);
• Face-to-face or teleconference conversations with the investors and analysts;
• Disclosures made by the communication methods and means such as telephone, electronic mail, letter, fax etc.

III- Significant Events of Disclosure and Authorized Persons

Significant events of disclosure are prepared by the Coordination and Regulatory Affairs Department and Shareholders Relations 
Department and signed by the members of the Board of Directors or managers with the capacities of signatories and transmitted in 
electronic medium as “Public Disclosure Platform”. Confirmation that the same has been published as “Public Disclosure Platform” is 
taken.

IV- Annual Report

The Annual Report is published in compliance with the Capital Market Laws and Regulations and Corporate Governance Principles of 
the Capital Markets Law. Activity Report, ratified by the Board of Directors, is disclosed to the public via our web-site (www.turcas.
com.tr). At the same time, the Annual Report is published in print for delivery to the related persons.

V- Disclosure of Financial Statements to the Public

Financial Statements of Turcas are prepared within the frame of the provisions determined by the Capital Markets Board and 
disclosed to the public upon an independent audit carried out according to the International Audit Standards. The Financial 
Statements and footnotes are presented to the Board of Directors for ratification within the frame of the Capital Market Laws and 
Regulations before disclosure to public upon consent of the Audit Committee and accuracy evidence is issued by the Accounting 
Department and signed by the Board of Directors; then the financial statements, footnotes, independent audit report, if any, and 
interim report are transmitted via electronic medium as the Public Disclosure Platform (“PDP”). Confirmation is taken stating that the 
same has been published as “Public Disclosure Platform”.

VI- Explanations Regarding Expectations

Future expectations on sales, efficiency, market share, income generation capacity, profitability, indebtedness, shareholders’ equity 
rate and similar matters may be disclosed from time to time within the frame of the strategic targets. That these statements are 
made according to specific assumptions and may differ from the generated outcomes are disclosed to whom these may concern. 
In the event of any change in future expectations or awareness that the expectations would not come true, the public is informed 
by the same means. The Coordination and Regulatory Affairs Department, Corporate Finance & Investor Relations Management, 
Shareholder Relations Department, Accounting Department and Finance Department are all authorized for disclosure of such 
information and these departments fulfil their responsibilities in close cooperation with the Audit Committee and the Board of 
Directors.

VII- Company Website

With regard to public disclosure, Turcas web site (www.turcas.com.tr) is actively used. Explanations set forth in the Company’s 
website do not substitute notifications and significant events of disclosure required by the provisions of the Capital Market Laws and 
Regulations. Access in all the public disclosures is possible through the website. The website is prepared in the form and substance 
stipulated by the Corporate Governance Principles of the Capital Markets Board. Information on the website contents is enclosed 
hereto.
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VIII- Announcements and Declarations Made through the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette and Daily Newspapers

As per the Capital Markets Law, Turkish Commercial Code and the Company’s Articles of Association, announcements regarding 
General Assembly, Annual Balance Sheet and Income Statement are made through the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette and daily 
newspapers.

The Company’s Board of Directors enables controlled news flows to the written and visual media on the significant updates and 
developments that have occurred within the year and the public is informed of details. Such a disclosure may also be made by way 
of press conference based on the contents of the developments.

Various developments and questions relating to general flow or information requests are all valuated by the press in writing, and 
then an answer, positive or negative, is absolutely given.

IX- Criteria Applicable in Determination of the Persons Bearing Administrative Responsibility

The persons bearing administrative responsibility and regularly accessing the internal information are determined according to the 
scope of the related information. Accordingly, managers and other personnel, not being aware of the information to the extent that 
it affects the value of the capital market instrument and investors and investment decisions of the investors, in other words, having 
detailed information only on any part of the company and being limitedly grounded with the entire company are not considered 
to be the persons bearing administrative responsibility and accessing the internal information. However, members of the Board 
of Auditors and Board of Directors, Executive Officers (Chairman of the Executive Board (CEO), Members and Company Directors) 
and Authorized Managers, having detailed information on the entire Company related to not only today but also future plans are 
considered to be the persons bearing administrative responsibility and accessing the internal information.

X- Disclosure of Insider Information to Public

Disclosure of Internal Information is prepared by the Directorate of Coordination and Regulatory Affairs and the Shareholder Relations 
Department. The Disclosure is usually signed by two employees among the Authorized Managers and the Board of Directors. The 
names and titles of these employees are posted on the Company website. Any changes in these names are amended accordingly. 
The list of the persons and employees who are able to access the internal information of the Company is kept in order to be 
presented to the CMB and/or the ISE, if required.

XI- Maintaining Confidentiality of Insider Information

The Company personnel are informed on the performance of the tasks regarding the Company or keeping the internal information, 
acquired by the personnel during the conduct of the activities and transactions for and on behalf of the Company and not disclosed 
to the public yet, prohibition of utilization of the same for their own or third parties’ accounts or non-disclosure to third parties 
without permission.

If any employee of the Company detects that significant and specific information, not disclosed to the public before, has been 
disclosed to the public unintentionally or detects such an existing disclosure, he shall immediately notify the event to the 
Coordination and Regulatory Affairs Department and Shareholder Relations Department. In such a case, the Coordination and 
Regulatory Affairs Department and Shareholder Relations Department prepare Internal Information Disclosure as per the provisions of 
the Capital Market Laws and Regulations and ensure its transmission to the ISE.

Besides, a list is made for the persons employed by or affiliated to The Company through an employment contract or otherwise 
and the persons regularly accessing the internal information in accordance with the Capital Market Laws and Regulations and in the 
event of any change in the list, the list is updated accordingly. The list of the persons able to access the internal information and 
the updates in the list are sent to the CMB and the ISE, if required. All the persons included in the list are informed and given due 
warning on protection of the internal information and compliance with the rules of confidentiality.
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XII- Postponement of Public Disclosure of Insider Information

The Company may delay disclosure of the internal information to the public in order to prevent its legal interest to be impaired, 
bearing all the related responsibilities; provided that this shall not mislead the public and the Company shall be able to ensure 
confidentiality of this internal information. As soon as the reasons for delay of the public disclosure of the internal information are 
eliminated, this information is disclosed to the public in accordance with the related laws and regulations. The explanation shall 
include the decision of delay and the reasons thereof.

Delay of the public disclosure of the internal information in the Company is subject to the Board of Directors Resolution or written 
consent of the any person authorized by the Board of Directors. This decision shall entail the delayed internal information, effect 
of the delay on the Company’s legal rights, whether such a delay creates the risk of misleading the investors and what kind of 
measures are to be taken for the confidentiality of this information throughout the term of delay.

All the measures are taken in order to ensure the delayed information is kept confidential. During the term of delay, in the event of 
speculations relating to the delayed internal information or in case several details are disclosed to the public and the confidentiality 
of the internal data is failed to be procured, then the internal information, failed to be kept confidential, is immediately disclosed to 
the public. However, if the speculations do not arise as a result of gross negligence of the Company, then the delay shall continue.

XIII- Insider Trading (Utilization of Confidential Company Information for Personnel Interest Purposes)

Members of the Board of Directors may not utilize the confidential information and/or information in the form of trade secret 
and the non-disclosed information for its own or third parties’ account and may not provide misleading information and spread 
misleading news about the Company.

The Board of Directors applies and takes necessary measures in order to prevent the spread of this information by other employees 
of the Company.

XIV- Follow Up of the News and Speculations

In Principle, no opinion is disclosed relating to the speculations in the market and/or in internet medium.

However, in the event that the news and speculations not originated from the Company are different from the Significant Events of 
Disclosure and the information disclosed to the public through documents such as prospectuses, circulars, financial reports etc., in 
respect of content, then the internal information is disclosed without any warning, notification or request from the ISE and the CMB 
whether these are accurate or adequate.

XV- Disclosures by Press

Demands and requests from the written and visual media and various press channels are firstly directed to the Press and 
Advertisement Agency with which the Company enters an agreement. All the organizations and arrangements related to the 
requests are performed by the relevant agency.

In these visual and written press releases, the significant events of disclosure required to be disclosed to the public as per the related 
communiqués of the CMB are notified to the public via electronic medium before disclosure to the press.
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XVI- Communication with the Capital Market Participants

The “Investor Relations Department” and “Corporate Finance & Investor Relations Management” are established in order to ensure 
communication between the Company and our investors as per the related communiqués of the CMB. This department fulfils verbal 
and written requests of the investors except for the non-disclosed, confidential information and trade secrets. In addition, meetings 
or teleconferences are organized from time-to-time by the Board of Directors in order to inform the local and foreign investors.

XVII- Analyst Reports

The Company does not overview, confirm, acknowledge, assume and publish in its website analyst reports issued by various 
companies. The analyst reports may only be overviewed so as to prevent the public to be ill-informed in certain cases and under 
limited circumstances and in the event of requests, provided that common information and historical information are used.

XVIII- Disclosures Regarding Exercising Shareholder Rights

Significant Event of Disclosure is made with respect to the Company’s shareholders and for the following matters finalized upon 
resolution of the Board of Directors:

i) Meeting date, time, place, agenda of Ordinary and Extraordinary General Assembly and the way the shareholders would exercise 
their rights to attend the General Assemblies, the voting procedure or conditions for casting vote in proxy,
ii) The outcome of the General Assembly Meeting and total number of shares of the attendees and attendance list including total 
voting rights,
iii) Dividend payments, rights issues and bonus issues and announcements regarding exercise of the right to acquire new shares in 
rights issues.

XIX- Change in Disclosure Policy

In the event of any change in this disclosure policy, changes and the grounds thereof are ratified by the Board of Directors and then 
submitted for the information of the General Assembly and lastly disclosed to the public.
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9- Significant Event Disclosures

During 2011, in accordance with the CMB Notifications, 27 Significant Event Disclosures were issued promptly. The shares of the 
Company are not quoted on any foreign stock exchange.

10- Board of Directors’ and Managers’ Relations with the Company

There have been no transactions on Company shares owned by the members of the Board of Directors, Managers or Shareholders 
who are holding 5% of the Company’s total shares either directly or indirectly in 2011.

11- Company Internet Web Site and Its Contents

The Company’s web site is www.turcas.com.tr

The Internet web site contains the following information as listed in Article 1.11.5, Part II of the CMB Corporate Governance Principles:

About Us  Investor Relations    Speeches & Presentations    
Turcas Petrol A.Ş. Corporate Governance    Analyst Coverage                       
Milestones  Entry Calendar                
Chairman`s Message  The Main Contract FAQ                            
Mission, Vision & Values  Explanation Note and Circulars   Investor Relations Contact        
Management and Organization Trade Registry Information                   
Board of Directors and CEO Capital and Shareholding Structure  Sustainability                         
Organizational Chart    Preferential Shares and Scope of Preference      Sustainability Efforts                 
Executive Management Disclosure Policy Corporate Social Responsibility 
Group Chart    Committees and Working Principles    Ethics Principles and Values      
International Partnerships  Dividend Policy                
Awards  List of Insiders                
Human Resources     Corporate Governance Compliance Report                      
Contact  Board Resolutions                
 Significant Event Disclosures                 
BUSINESS Corporate Governance Rating Reports                   
Oil & Petrochemicals  General Assembly                 
Natural Gas  Financial Information                   
Power Annual Reports                 
 Financial Statements and Auditors' Reports                  
 Selected Historic Data (Summary Data)                   
 Capital Increases                   
PRESS  Stock market data                
Newspaper Clippings Stock ID                 
TV Interviews Stock Graph                  
Corporate Announcements   Stock Calculator                 
Logos & Photos Company News                 
 Dividends and Bonus Shares                 
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12- Disclosure of Individual Shareholder(s) who are Ultimate Owners

The Company’s Ultimate Controlling Individual Shareholders and the relevant share transfers are, in conformity with the CMB 
notifications, disclosed by Significant Event Disclosure, Annual Report, and in the footnotes of the quarterly financial statements.

13- Disclosure of Potential Insider Traders to the Public

As the names of the Directors, Senior Executives and Managers of the Company who are potential insider traders are already 
disclosed to the public in the Annual Report, and as listed below, no separate disclosure relating to them has been issued.

• Erdal Aksoy, Chairman of the Board
• Yılmaz Tecmen, Vice Chairman of the Board
• S. Batu Aksoy, Member of the Board and CEO
• Banu Aksoy Tarakçıoğlu, Member of the Board
• Bülent Çorapçı, Member of the Board
• M. İlhan Nebioğlu, Member of the Board
• Necip Süreyya Serdengeçti, Member of the Board
• Hasan Demir, Audit Committee Member
• Nedret Ergene, Audit Committee Member
• Refik Ediz Günsel, Independent Auditor, Partner
• Cabbar Yılmaz, Coordination & Regulatory Affairs Director
• Arkın Akbay, Power & Gas Group Director
• Esra Ünal, Legal Counsel
• Cemal Yusuf Ata, Shareholder Relations Manager
• Nurettin Demircan, Accounting Manager
• Adem Bülent Büyükgüner, Corporate Treasury Manager
• Erkan İlhantekin, Corporate Finance Manager
• Mehmet Levent Savrun, Administration Manager
• Hasan Evin, IT Manager
• Ruhsar Beyazıdoğlu, Project and Business Development Manager

PART III - STAKEHOLDERS

14- Disclosure to Stakeholders

The stakeholders of the Company are duly informed about the relevant issues in the Ordinary Annual Meetings of the General 
Assembly of Shareholders. In addition, verbal questions are answered by the Company officers. Furthermore, other information, 
annual reports and audit reports of the Company, are published on the Company’s internet web site.

15- Participation of Stakeholders in the Company Management

Non-managerial company employees and other stakeholders do not have a significant level of participation in the management of 
the Company.
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16- Human Resources Policy

Personnel Relations, Philosophy and Ancillary Allowances

Policy of Turcas Petrol is to treat its personnel and candidates filing job application regardless of race, colour, religion, ethnic and 
national background, gender, marital status, age or disability. The Company provides equal opportunity to all of its personnel for 
improvement based on their abilities and potentials.

The Human Resources Policy of Turcas Petrol creates an encouraging and incentive oriented environment in all the units of the 
organization. Management based on targets and personnel performance rating are regularly used to ensure personnel optimization, 
motivation, communication, development and determine training needs as well as reward each employee according to his/her own 
performance.

In addition to the remuneration legally paid, the Company provides the following social benefits:

• Paid Leave
• Health Insurance
• Marriage Assistance
• Accommodation and Transportation

Our Employees

Turcas Petrol A.Ş. employs a total of 32 persons consisting 11 female and 21 male employees as of December 31, 2011.

Total of 10 persons consisting 4 female and 6 male are employed at Turcas Enerji Holding A.Ş., the wholly-owned subsidiary of Turcas 
Petrol A.Ş., and at Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., Turcas Elektrik Toptan Satış A.Ş., Turcas Gaz Toptan Satış A.Ş. Turcas Yenilenebilir Enerji 
Üretim A.Ş. and Turcas Rafineri Yatırımları A.Ş., the indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Turcas Petrol A.Ş.

Shell & Turcas Petrol, in which Turcas Petrol has a 30% share, and its controlled subsidiaries, employ a total of 621 people, including 
185 female and 436 male employees. 

ATAŞ Anadolu Tasfiyehanesi A.Ş., in which Turcas Petrol A.Ş. has a 5% share, employs a total of 45 people, including 2 female and 43 
male employees.

STAR Rafineri A.Ş., in which Turcas Petrol A.Ş. has an 18.5% share, employs a total of 38 people, including 5 female and 33 male 
employees.

RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., in which Turcas Petrol A.Ş. has a 30% share, employs a total of 44 people, including 7 
female and 37 male employees.

Salaries and Collective Bargaining Agreements

Turcas Petrol is not a party to any Collective Bargaining Agreement. General increase was made once in the year 2011 due to the 
economic conditions and in line with practices of the competitors. In addition, and within the framework of the remuneration policy 
based on the Company’s performance, the employees were rewarded based on their personal performance for the previous year.

Liability of Severance Pay

The severance pay liability of the Company as of December 2011 as per the regulation was recorded as TL 1,695,714.49. The e-mail 
address for job applications to be filed with Turcas Petrol Group is ik@turcas.com.tr.
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The Coordination and Organization Department executes the formulation and implementation of the above-mentioned policies.

No complaint of discrimination has been received from the employees.

17- Information on Relations with Customers and Suppliers

All of the activities mentioned in this article are undertaken by our subsidiary Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş. and adhere to global 
standards.

18- Corporate Social Responsibility

Our Commitment to the Environment

The Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) Policy was approved by the Board of Directors of Turcas and enacted in 2001. Within the 
framework of this policy, staff is trained with the philosophy that all accidents are preventable. This policy is also introduced to third 
parties conducting business with the Company where its adoption is stipulated in all business acts. No suit has been filed against the 
company for damages to the environment within this period.

Our Commitment to Society

The “Business Ethics Policy” for company staff was enacted by the Board on May 1, 1997. This policy defines the rules which staff 
have to obey in issues such as conflicts of interest, insider information, political favours, accounting standards and documentation, 
and gifts accepted. A written statement and commitment, namely “Business Ethics Policy and Regulations Personal Compliance 
Form”, is completed and received from all staff at the end of each year as required by this policy.

Turcas has made various donations over the years to the Petroleum Industry Association (PETDER), the Turkish Education Foundation 
(TEV) and UNICEF Turkey National Committee as approved by its Board of Directors. These donations were TL 18,081 in 2006, TL 
20,784 in 2007, TL 23,240 in 2008, TL 21,055 in 2009, TL 13,575 in 2010 and TL 41,380 in 2011.

The Company has not been notified of any court cases, against the Board of Directors and the Management of Turcas in 2011.

BÖLÜM IV BOARD OF DIRECTORS

19- Composition and Structure of the Board of Directors, and Independent Members

Pursuant to Article 13 of the Articles of Association, the Board of Directors consists of 7 members. At least three members of the 
Board of Directors are elected from among the candidates nominated by Class “B” Shareholders. At least two members of the Board 
of Directors are elected from among the candidates nominated by Class “C” Shareholders. If the Class C Shareholders hold at least 
forty percent (40%) Class A Shares on the date of General Assembly, they shall be entitled to nominate and elect at least three (3) 
Members. However, the other Board members shall be nominated and elected by the Class B Shareholders. The Board of Directors 
calls the Class C Shareholders and Class B Shareholders for a meeting to nominate and elect member candidates at least seven days 
prior to the General Assembly. This Board separately convenes with the majority of the Class C Shareholders or Class B Shareholders 
and separately passes resolutions with the majority of the Class C Shareholders or Class B Shareholders. The Chairman of this Board 
notifies to the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the candidates as to be submitted to the General Assembly for approval. The 
discharged member may be re-elected.
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If the General Assembly deems it necessary, it may, at any time, change the members of the Board of Directors regardless of the 
term. New members are appointed by the Board of Directors to the vacant memberships, arising for whatsoever reason, also in the 
appointments to be made as per Article 315 of the Turkish Commercial Code, by considering the Class memberships. These members 
are submitted to the initial General Assembly for approval. If the appointments are approved, these members shall complete the 
terms of office of the former members.

Executive Members of the Board:
• Erdal Aksoy, Chairman of the Board
• Yılmaz Tecmen, Vice Chairman of the Board
• S. Batu Aksoy, Member of the Board and CEO
• Banu Aksoy Tarakçıoğlu, Member of the Board

Non-Executive, Members of the Board:
• Bülent Çorapçı, Member of the Board and Audit Committee
• M. İlhan Nebioğlu, Member of the Board and Audit Committee
• N. Süreyya Serdengeçti, Member of the Board

The indirect shares of the seven Members of the Board of Directors in the Company’s capital are as follows: Chairman Mr. Erdal 
Aksoy’s indirect share is 30.86%, Member Mrs. Banu Aksoy Tarakçıoğlu’s indirect share is 10.32% and Member Mr. Saffet Batu Aksoy’s 
indirect share is 10.32%. Vice Chairman Mr. Yılmaz Tecmen’s share in the Company capital is 2.21%. He is also a shareholder of YTC 
Tourism and Energy Ltd., which holds 4.02% share in the company. The other Members, Bülent Çorapçı, M. İlhan Nebioğlu and N. 
Süreyya Serdengeçti have no shares in the Company.

In the Company’s Articles of Association, there is no rule or clause restricting Board Members from working outside the Company. 
However, as required by our internal regulations and corporate culture, it is necessary for Board Members to allocate appropriate time 
for the Company.

20- Qualifications of the Members of the Board of Directors

The persons, with the following minimum qualifications, may be appointed to the Board of Directors;

a. Preferably, University or College graduate,
b. Adequate occupational and market experience,
c. Being determined to attend to the meetings to be held throughout the term of office.

The persons, not possessing the necessary qualifications, but appointed to the Board of Directors due to their other qualities, are 
provided with the necessary training as soon as practically possible. Completion of the adaptation program rapidly and efficiently is 
provided. In this program, at least, the following matters are included;

• Meeting with the managers and visits to the manufacturing departments of the Company
• Resumes and performance evaluations of the managers
• Strategic targets, updated status and problems of the Company
• Market share and financial performance indicators of the Company

The curriculum vitae (CV) of the Board of Directors of the Company appear on the website and the Annual Report of the Company.
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21- Vision, Values, Mission and Strategic Targets of the Company

Turcas’ vision is to become the most respected, dynamic and efficient “Integrated Energy Company” in Turkey and its region. In light 
of this vision, Turcas, with 81 years of experience in the main sub-sectors of energy namely oil, petrochemicals, gas and power, 
focuses on domestic and international investments, operations and projects that create synergy and added value in the fields of 
exploration, production, transportation, distribution, storage and trading of energy.

The principle values of Turcas are; its respectability, its ability to differentiate and to become a leader in what it does, its possession 
of the highest levels of ethics and commitment to good Corporate Governance at global standards, and its tradition of cooperating 
and partnering with global companies successfully and sustainably.

Turcas has adopted the mission of offering its customers the highest quality products and services under the most secure, 
environment-friendly and ethical standards of behaviour. The main goals of Turcas are to sustain growth and continue creating value 
for its shareholders by providing the training and improvement of its employees and protecting the heritage and values of Turkey.

The strategic goals and targets proposed by the managers for the coming year are, before the end of the prior year, discussed and 
approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors and the Company managers review both the targets and the actual 
results, at the end of each month, in light of past performance and market comparative reports. The Company’s vision, corporate 
values and mission are published in the yearly annual reports as well as on the website of the Company.

22- Risk Management and Internal Audit

A Risk Management Committee has been proposed and established under the framework of Corporate Governance Principles in 
March 2010. Mr. Yılmaz Tecmen, Mrs. Banu Aksoy Tarakçıoğlu and Mr. Cemal Şafak Ayışığı are selected to the committee. Corporate 
Finance and Investor Relations Manager Mr. Erhan İlhantekin was appointed in place of Mr. Cemal Şafak Ayışığı in 2011.

Purpose of this Committee, affiliated to the Board of Directors, is to follow up the risks possibly arising to the Company and develop 
policies necessary for the conduct of risk management processes.

Every year, depending on the risk assessments of divisions and activities, reports are prepared and shared with the relevant divisions, 
and action plans and commitments are made. The Audit Committee monitors the entire process.

The Board of Directors, with the decision dated 07.04.2011 and no 2011/5, approved the 2010 financial statements, which were 
examined and approved by the Audit Committee, to be sent to  the Istanbul Stock Exchange (ISE), to be published. 

Based on this approval, the Board of Directors; 

a. examined Audited Year-end Financial Statements and Notes to the Financial Statements,
b. in the context of their knowledge, within the task and responsibility area of the Company, the financial statements do not include 
any false claims with regard significant issues or any omissions that can affect the results to cause a false statement, for the date of 
the declaration,
c. in the context of their knowledge, within the task and responsibility area of the Company, the financial statements and the notes 
to the financial statements reflect the truth about the Company’s financial condition and operating results, for the period they belong 
to and accepted these with the Conclusion of The Board of Directors, dated 07.04.2011 and no 2010/5, the financial statements 
and approved to be sent to the Istanbul Stock Exchange (ISE), to be published. This way, the Board of Directors of the Company has 
fulfilled the requirement of article 26 of the second part of the Capital Markets Board’s Announcement with the Series: XI, No: 29.
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23- Functions and Powers of the Board of Directors and Managers

Functions of the Board of Directors according to the Company’s Articles of Association, Article 16:

a. The Board of Directors represents the Company against the management and shareholders as well as third parties and before the 
courts.

b. The Board of Directors has an absolute power in possession and management of all the movable and immovable assets and in 
performance of any and all connections and transactions related to the Company’s subject of activity. The Board of Directors uses the 
signature of the Company, reconciles or applies to the arbitrator with this capacity.

c. The Board of Directors passes resolution on any matters, not subject to the General Assembly and other than the powers of the 
General Assembly.

d. Functions of the Board of Directors are to determine the powers of the Chief Executive Officer, issue regulations for the internal 
management of the Company, approve budgets and personnel and entrust and dismiss the managers and officials.

e. The Board of Directors fulfils and exercises the functions and powers given by the applicable laws, Articles of Association and, if 
required, by the General Assembly resolutions.

f. The Board of Directors ensures that the necessary books shall duly be kept in accordance with the applicable laws. It ensures 
preparation of the profit and loss statements and timely delivery of the same to the auditors and necessary powers.

g. The Board of Directors submits the Annual Report including the general status and activities of the Company and proposals 
regarding dividend, legal reserve and provisions; and calls the ordinary and extraordinary general assemblies for a meeting.

Besides the functions set forth in the Articles of Association, the Board of Directors also fulfils the following functions listed among 
the functions of the Board of Directors in the Corporate Governance Principles of the Capital Markets Board:

a. The Board of Directors continuously and efficiently revises the degree of achievement of the objectives by the Company, activities 
and past performance of the Company. While revising the same, the Company tries to comply with the international standards on 
any matter. If required, the Board of Directors takes measures without any delay and problem. Effective revision refers to detection of 
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations and international accounting standards in reflection of the Company’s activities, 
degree of achievement of the objectives by the Company; financial status and activity results in the accounting records and the 
degree of accuracy of the financial information regarding the Company.

b. The Board of Directors establishes a risk management and internal control mechanism, minimizing the risks which may adversely 
affect the interest holders of the Company particularly the shareholders and that the Company may encounter; and takes necessary 
measures for effective operation of such a system.

c. The Board of Directors forms committees in order to fulfil its functions and responsibilities in a sound manner.

d. The Board of Directors observes the qualifications which the managers are required to possess according to their positions.

e. The Board of Directors takes measures and applies incentives to ensure that the qualified personnel would serve the Company for 
a long term. If required, the Board of Directors removes the managers from office without any delay and appoints appropriate and 
qualified managers in lieu of the removed ones.

f. The Board of Directors acts as a leader in elimination and settlement of the disputes which may arise between the Company and 
the shareholders.

g. The Board of Directors shall ensure full compliance with the laws, regulations, provisions of the Articles of Association, intra-
company arrangements and the policies established in exercising the shareholders’ rights; and for this purpose, the Board of Directors 
shall act in close cooperation with the Corporate Governance Committee and Shareholder Relations Department established in the 
body of this committee.
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h. The Board of Directors takes necessary measures to prevent any possible dispute between the shareholders and the Company 
and/or the Company personnel; and in case of dispute, develops solutions and suggestions.

i. All members of the Board of Directors fulfils its tasks prudently within the framework of the rules of good faith. Performance of any 
task prudently and within the framework of the rules of good faith means that due care and utmost attention required to be paid in 
similar cases and under similar circumstances is paid.

j. Mechanisms are established to enable the Members of the Board of Directors to timely and accurately be informed of the updates 
that affect the Company significantly.

k. While the Board of Directors fulfils its tasks and responsibilities, it acts in a continuous and efficient cooperation with the managers. 
In necessary cases, the managers attend to the Board of Directors meetings.

l. The members of the Board of Directors, other than the executive members, cannot shed their responsibilities by asserting that 
adequate information has not been provided to them during performance of their tasks. Therefore, not limited to the information 
provided, the members of the Board of Directors may request additional information.

m. Major tasks and responsibilities, which the Board of Directors would assume in addition to the basic functions of the Board of 
Directors, by considering the opinions and suggestions of the committees, are as follows:

i. To ratify the annual budget and strategic business plans of the Company;
ii. To prepare the annual reports of the Company and finalize the same as to be submitted to the General Assembly;
iii. To ensure that the General Assembly meetings would be held in accordance with the related laws and regulations and the Articles 
of Association; and to adopt the General Assembly resolutions;
iv. To control expenses deemed to be significant exceeding 10% of the total assets in the Company’s recent Balance Sheet;
v. To ratify the career planning and rewards of the managers;
vi. To determine the policies of the Company regarding the shareholders, interest holders and public relations;
vii. To determine the disclosure policy of the Company;
viii. To determine the ethic rules for the Company and its personnel;
ix. To determine the working principles of the committees; and to ensure effective and efficient operation of the same;
x. To take necessary measures to ensure that the Company’s organizational structure meets the conditions of the day;
xi. To overview the activities of the former Board of Directors.

24- Operating Principles of the Board of Directors

The operating principles of the Board of Directors are formulated on the basis of the Turkish Commercial Code, the Capital Markets 
Law, the company’s Articles of Incorporation, and other laws and regulations. They are publicly disclosed on the company’s website.

Article 16 of the Articles of Incorporation requires the Board of Directors to convene at least once a month. An invitation to 
convene an ordinary meeting must be sent out at least seven days before the meeting date and a copy of the meeting agenda 
and other documents pertaining thereto must be included with the invitation. The chairman of the Board of Directors determines 
meeting agendas in consultation with the head of the Executive Committee and/or with other members of the board. Agendas 
and documents pertaining thereto are sent to Board Members by email, fax, and similar means. Under article 15 of the Articles of 
Incorporation, the Board of Directors may also convene upon a demand by shareholders who qualify as institutional investors and 
who control at least a 5% stake in the company’s capital. Such requests are made to the Chairman of the Board. If the Chairman 
deems the request to be of merit but concludes that an immediate board meeting is not necessary, the matter is placed on the 
agenda of the very next meeting of the board. During 2011, the Board of Directors passed 15 resolutions.

The Board of Directors decisions taken in 2011 were passed by a majority of those attending the meetings.
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Personal attendance is required at Board of Directors meetings concerning the issues mentioned in CMB Communiqué IV:2.17.4. Each 
member of the Board of Directors is entitled to one (1) vote; however article 15 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation requires 
that the consenting votes of the representatives of Group C shareholders are required for decisions that are to be taken by the Board 
on a number of specific matters. These matters are enumerated below.

i) Appointing and dismissing general managers; granting authorities to general managers;
ii) Discussing and approving strategic plans; making changes or revisions to strategic plans;
iii) Discussing and approving annual budgets;
iv) Entering into any commitments which would result, actually or contingently, in Turcas’ incurring any liability or expenditure in 
the amount of USD 500,000 (five hundred thousand United States dollars) or more and which are not in the annual budget or the 
strategic plan;
v) Making decisions pertaining to contracts or dealings involving Turcas on the one hand and, on the other, its shareholders and/
or their subsidiaries or affiliates or any other third party and with regard contracts which are extraneous to the ordinary conduct of 
Turcas’ activities;
vi) Making decisions with respect to development projects which parties propose, including those that involve entering into mergers, 
acquisitions, and joint ventures;
vii) Any single-transaction purchase or sale or technology, patent, trade name, or trademark licensing agreement whose pre-tax 
value (taking all other considerations into account as well) is the Turkish lira equivalent of more than USD 100,000 (One hundred 
thousand United States dollars);
viii) To the degree that they are extraneous to Turcas’ ordinary business and activities, making any decisions about strategic policies 
pertaining to exports and imports outside the Republic of Turkey;
ix) Amending the Articles of Incorporation;
x) Disposing of significant assets outside the ordinary conduct of businesses and activities;
xi) Winding up or liquidating Turcas;
xii) Transferring Group B shares to any competitor (as defined by the mutual agreement of Group B and Group C shareholders).

25- Prohibition to Deal and Compete with the Company

Although the Directors are permitted and authorized to deal with the Company on certain issues by approval of the General Assembly 
of Shareholders in its Ordinary General Annual Meetings, as specified in Articles 334 and 335 of the Turkish Commercial Code, none 
of the Directors may enter into deals nor compete with the Company in accordance with the Company policies, and therefore, there 
are no conflicts of interests.

26- Ethical Rules

What constitutes the brand name Turcas are its respectability, ability to create a difference and ability to become a pioneer in its 
work, its having the highest ethical and corporate governance standards and the custom of successful and sustainable cooperation 
and partnership with the local and particularly foreign investors. Ethical rules, prescribed by the Board of Directors and summarized 
below, constitute the main rules of conduct of the Company. All of our employees obey these rules. Our Company aims at being 
reliable, responsible, accountable and transparent towards its partners, shareholders, employees, suppliers, business associates, 
competitors, the environment, society and humanity. Turcas acts in compliance with the domestic laws, international laws and 
business ethics in achievement of its goals. Furthermore, the Company strictly obeys in its entirety the following rules of ethics:

• Trade secrets given by the Company as required for the business of the Company or possibly acquired or accessed in the work place 
and information not disclosed to public yet, information regarding personal rights of the employees and agreements entered into 
with third parties are evaluated within the scope of the confidentiality and the protection of trade secrets.

• All the official disclosures are made to the investors, shareholders and public completely, concurrently and apparently through the 
departments specified by the Company within the framework of the equity principle and utmost attention is paid to protection of 
such information. Accordingly all the shareholders are able to access in the information concurrently and equally.

• Utilization of any information and document of Turcas within the scope of the insider trading or benefiting through the stock 
exchange or in any other way are absolutely prohibited and unacceptable.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT
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• Turcas personnel diligently abstain from any and all acts and activities resulting in conflict of interest and pays utmost attention 
to safeguard the interests of the Company. They also refrain from acts and actions that result in benefit to themselves and/or their 
dependents. Derivation of personal inappropriate interests by the personnel based on their positions and providing any interest to the 
dependents or third parties cannot be overlooked in any case.

• Turcas conducts all of its activities in compliance with the national and international laws and regulations and stands against all the 
institutions and organizations without any expectation of interest, impartially and equally.

• Turcas ensures that all kind of reports, financial statements or records are kept and retained in accordance with the accounting 
principles specified as per the applicable laws and regulations.

• Turcas tries to ensure the highest level of customer satisfaction and approaches its customers in an honest and fair manner 
producing fast and permanent solutions by approaching its customers’ problems sensitively.

• Turcas recognizes efficient exercise of organization or association and collective bargaining rights of its employees and tries to 
conduct studies for enhancement and optimization;

• Turcas expends efforts in providing its employees a reliable and an appropriate working environment and to conduct studies for 
continuous optimization.

• Turcas determines and applies training programs targeting achievement of information, ability, attitude and behavior required 
in order to enable its employees to have access to updates and changes in the nature of the business. Turcas raises the level 
of employee satisfaction and encourages its personnel to become more successful in the business environment and evaluates 
the results in favor of the Company. It provides its employees with domestic as well as training programs abroad by which the 
employees may develop their occupational backgrounds and abilities within the framework of the possibilities.

• Turcas develops performance management systems, enabling its employees to have access to the results of their own work 
and evaluate personal achievement results and provides equal and fair opportunities in application of this system. Furthermore, it 
establishes a career management system and ensures operation of the same. These criteria are taken into account in promotions and 
career advancements.

• Turcas ensures “Corporate Culture and Awareness”, which will raise levels of loyalty to the corporation and provide a platform 
of work incentives by the way of fulfillment of their social and cultural requirements in order to enhance the level efficiency and 
productivity of its employees.

• Turcas obtains opinions of its employees by the way of inquiries and the like, directs the practices to be made and ensure 
participation of the employees in management and decision-making processes.

• Turcas is managed and directed to maximize the Company’s share value, however, it abstains from assuming unnecessary risks. 
Turcas makes its decisions with the understanding of accountability and responsibility and tries to manage the resources and assets 
in the most efficient manner.

• Turcas acts in compliance with the principles of continuous development of human health, work place security and environmental 
protection in its investment preferences.

• Turcas employees actively participate in non-governmental organizations and partake in services for the benefit of the public. In 
addition, the Company also supports social, training, health and sports activities as a legal entity.

• Turcas employees abstain from unethical behavior such as bribery, corruption, gross misconduct and support efforts for elimination 
of such offenses; and abstain from granting and accepting gifts in exchange for providing privilege, priority or interest.

27- Number, Composition and Independence of Committees Formed by the Board of Directors

A Corporate Governance Committee has been proposed and established under the framework of “Corporate Governance Principles”. 
Member of the Board Mr. Necip Süreyya Serdengeçti, Member of the Board Mrs. Banu Aksoy Tarakçıoğlu and Coordination & 
Regulatory Affairs Director Mr. Cabbar Yılmaz have been selected as members of the committee. The Corporate Governance 
Committee was established to ensure that the Company will comply with the Corporate Governance Principles, to determine 
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the members of the Board of Directors and senior executive candidates, to determine remuneration, rewards and performance 
evaluation and career planning principles of the Company, to support and assist the Board of Directors by carrying out studies on the 
matters of investor relations and public disclosure and to revise and assess systems and processes, established or to be established 
by the Company, and to make recommendations for activation of the management practices, raising and encouraging the Company’s 
performance.

A Risk Management Committee has been proposed and established under the framework of “Corporate Governance Principles”. 
Vice Chairman of the Board Mr. Yılmaz Tecmen, Member of the Board Mrs. Banu Aksoy Tarakçıoğlu and Group Finance Director 
Mr. Cemal Şafak Ayışığı have been selected as members of the committee. Corporate Finance and Investor Relations Manager Mr. 
Erhan İlhantekin was appointed in place of Mr. Cemal Şafak Ayışığı in 2011. The purpose of this Committee, affiliated to the Board 
of Directors, is to follow up and mitigate risks possibly arising in the Company and develop policies necessary for the conduct of risk 
management processes.

A Business Development Committee has been proposed and established under the framework of “Corporate Governance Principles” 
in 2010. Mr. Erdal Aksoy, Mr. Saffet Batu Aksoy and Mr. Fikret Şehsuvar Aladağ have been selected as members of the committee. 
The Power and Gas Group Director Mr. Arkın Akbay was appointed in place of Mr. Fikret Şehsuvar Aladağ, who left the Company 
in 2011.The purpose of this committee is to make innovations a part of the corporate culture, to detect the swift changes in the 
business environment while assessing the company’s internal needs, to restructure and optimize the business development process 
in order to make the necessary changes to the company policy.

The Audit Committee was established in the body of the Turcas Petrol A.Ş. Board of Directors upon Resolution dated 22.04.2004 and 
numbered 2004/10 as per Article 3 of Communiqué Series. X and No. 19 issued by the Capital Markets Board in order to ensure 
fulfilment by the Board of Directors of financial and operational tasks and responsibilities in a sound manner. Members of the Board 
of Directors, M. İlhan Nebioğlu and H. Bülent Çorapçı, were elected to the Committee. The Committee shall operate as affiliated to 
the Board of Directors so as to ensure audit and public disclosure of the Company’s accounting system, financial information and 
observance of operation and efficiency of the internal control system.

Furthermore, an Executive Committee provides guidance to the upper Management, and matters falling within the authority of the 
Board are first reviewed by the Executive Committee.

Executive Committee Members:
• Erdal Aksoy, Chairman of the Board
• Yılmaz Tecmen, Vice Chairman of the Board
• S. Batu Aksoy, Member of the Board and CEO
• Banu Aksoy Tarakçıoğlu, Member of the Board
• Cabbar Yılmaz, Coordination & Regulatory Affairs Director 
• Arkın Akbay, Power & Gas Group Director
• Erkan İlhantekin, Corporate Finance & Investor Relations Manager
• M. Selin Çınar Tunguç, Corporate Communications Manager

Directors are not assigned to more than one committee except for Mrs. Banu Aksoy Tarakçıoğlu who is both in the Corporate 
Governance Committee and Risk Management Committee. As the Directors operate within the framework of certain rules and 
principles, no conflicts of interests have emerged.

28- Remuneration of Directors

It is stated in the Articles of Association of the Company that a monthly or yearly fee or remuneration per meeting, to be decided 
at the General Assembly of Shareholders, may be paid to the Chairman and Members of the Board of Directors. During the General 
Assembly Meeting held on 24.04.2010, it was approved that the Board of Directors will be paid TL 1,000,000 (one million) annually 
until the General Assembly Meeting in 2012. There are no other rights, interests or performance-based rewards conferred on the 
Directors.

The Company does not lend any money or loan to or stand as a surety for or gives any guarantee in favour of the Directors and the 
managers.
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29- Statutory Auditors’ Report

Statutory Auditors’ Report for 2011
To the General Assembly of Turcas Petrol A.Ş.:

Company name  : Turcas Petrol A.Ş.
Headquartered in  : İstanbul
Capital  : TL 225,000,000

Object and scope: 
Manufacturing, buying, selling, importing, exporting, and distributing any and all manner of petroleum products, lubricants, and 
greases as well as petrochemical products, chemicals, paints, and artificial fertilizers; and other businesses as specified in the 
amended Articles of Incorporation registered on 15 April 1985.

Names, terms of office, and company shareholder and/or employee status of the statutory auditors:
Nedret Ergene: 27 April 2011 to 2011 General Meeting, not a company shareholder or employee.

Hasan Demir: 27 April 2011 to 2011 General Meeting, not a company shareholder or employee.

Number of Board of Directors meetings attended and number of statutory auditor meetings held:
During the year, the statutory auditors took part in three meetings of the Board of Directors and convened three times themselves.
Scope, dates, and subject and obtained results of examinations performed on the company’s accounts, books, and documents: 
The company’s books of accounts and documents were examined on 30 June 2011, 30 September 2011, and 31 December 2011, 
at which times it was ascertained that they had been maintained in accordance with the requirements of law and with generally 
accepted accounting principles.

Number of cash counts performed at the Company’s cashier’s office in accordance with the requirements of 
subparagraph 3 of paragraph 1 of article 353 of the Turkish Commercial Code:
Three inventories were conducted at the Company cashier’s office in 2011 and it was ascertained that the cash items on hand 
conformed to records.

Dates on which examinations were performed in accordance with the requirements of subparagraph 4 of paragraph 1 of 
article 353 of the Turkish Commercial Code and the conclusions that were reached:
Examinations were conducted on the first business day of each month during our term of office, at which times it was ascertained 
that all negotiable instruments shown in the records were present.

Charges or complaints of improprieties received and the action taken:
No charges or complaints of improprieties were referred to us during our term of office.

We have examined the accounts and transactions of the Company, Turcas Petrol A.Ş. for 2011 and the documents and company 
books and records on which those transactions are based for their compliance with the Turkish Commercial Code, with tax laws, 
with capital market laws, with regulations and administrative provisions issued pursuant to such laws, with the company’s Articles 
of Incorporation, and with generally accepted accounting principles and standards. Based on our examinations and assessments, we 
have reached the conclusion that the enclosed Balance Sheet dated 31 December 2011 and its accompanying financial statements 
truthfully and accurately reflect the results of the company’s activities in 2011. For this reason, we hereby recommend that the 
Balance Sheet and Income Statement dated 31 December 2011 be approved as they are and that the members of the Board of 
Directors be acquitted of their responsibilities and we the statutory auditors be acquitted of our fiduciary responsibilities.

Statutory Auditors’:

Nedret Ergene                    Hasan Demir
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TURCAS PETROL A.Ş.

REGARDING THE APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DATE: 12.04.2012

NO: 2011/08

OUR STATEMENT PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 9 OF SECTION 3 OF CMB COMMUNIQUE XI:29:

We hereby declare:
a) That we have examined the independently-audited balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement, and statement of 
changes in shareholders’ equity for the period 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011, which were approved by the Board of Directors 
and by the Audit Committee and which were prepared in accordance with the consolidated provisions of IAS and IFRS as well as the 
footnotes appended to these and the annual report;

b) That, to the best of our knowledge within the framework of our duties and responsibilities at the company, neither the financial 
statements nor the footnotes contain § any assertion that is untrue insofar as matters of material importance are concerned or § any 
omission that would lead to the conclusion that such assertions were misleading as of the date on which they were made;

c) That, to the best of our knowledge within the framework of our duties and responsibilities at the company, these financial 
statements and footnotes truthfully reflect the company’s financial standing and results for the period to which they pertain; that we 
endorse Board of Directors resolution 2012/8 dated 4 April 2012 and approve sending these financial statements and footnotes for 
publication on the Public Disclosure Platform (www.kap.gov.tr).

Very truly yours,

Member of the Board and CEO Member of the Board
Saffet Batu Aksoy                                      Banu Aksoy Tarakçıoğlu

Chairman of the Board
Erdal Aksoy

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF
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To the Board of Directors of Turcas Petrol A.Ş.

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Turcas Petrol A.Ş. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred 
to as the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of 31 December 2011 and the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Group management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with the financial reporting standards issued by the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”). This responsibility includes: designing, 
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting 
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the auditing standards issued by the CMB. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance on whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Group management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

4. In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of Turcas Petrol A.S. as of 31 December 2011, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting standards accepted by the CMB (Note 2).

Additional paragraph for convenience translation into English

5. The financial reporting standards described in Note 2 (defined as “CMB Financial Reporting Standards”) to the consolidated 
financial statements differ from International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board with respect to the application of inflation accounting for the period between 1 January - 31 December 2005. Accordingly, 
the accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with IFRS.

Başaran Nas Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş. 
a member of PricewaterhouseCoopers
 

Ediz Günsel, SMMM Partner
Istanbul, 13 April 2011

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TURCAS PETROL A.Ş.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011 AND 2010
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise indicated.)

                  Notes        31 December 2011         31 December 2010
ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 118.261.958 45.882.464
Trade receivables 7 1.610.552 6.813.869
  Trade receivables from related parties 25 185.650 5.243.824
  Trade receivables from third parties  1.424.902 1.570.045
Other receivables 8 49.654.537 140.913
  Other receivables from related parties 25 12.575.456 116.884
  Other receivables from third parties 8 37.079.081 24.029
Other current assets 15 2.252.179 2.345.756

  171.779.226 55.183.002

Assets held for sale 10 246.953 1.098.871

Total currents assets  172.026.179 56.281.873

Non-current assets
Other receivables 8 138.320.236 54.509
  Other receivables from related parties 25 138.243.752 -
  Other receivables from third parties  76.484 54.509
Financial assets 5 58.240 58.240
Associates 9 541.927.870 496.994.264
Property, plant and equipment 10 3.506.354 4.081.814
Intangible assets 11 14.077 65.525
Other non-current assets 15 4.141.217 3.676.319
Deferred tax assets  23 126.057 -

Total non-current assets  688.094.051 504.930.671

TOTAL ASSETS  860.120.230 561.212.544

These consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011 have been approved for issue by the 
Board of Directors on 13 April 2012 and signed on its behalf by Cabbar Yılmaz, Coordination and Regulatory Director and by Nurettin 
Demircan, Accounting Department Manager. These consolidated financial statements are subject to the approval of General Assembly.
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 Notes 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 6 - 258.930
Trade payables 7 2.333.533 7.007.726
  Trade payables to related parties 25 253.531 238.716
  Trade payables to third parties  2.080.002 6.769.010
Other payables 8 11.688.970 716.502
  Other payables to related parties 25 544.517 184.453
  Other payables to third parties  11.144.453 532.049
Current income tax liabilities 23 1.788.605 -
Provisions  6.500 866.500
Provisions for employee benefits  516.024 234.938
Other current liabilities  15.816 12.626

Total current liabilities  16.349.448 9.097.222

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 6 212.212.104 529.417
Provisions for employee benefits 14 332.968 250.319
Other non-current liabilities  15 1.948.570 3.708.076
Deferred tax liabilities 23 - 19.297

Total non-current liabilities  214.493.642 4.507.109

EQUITY

Paid-in capital 16 225.000.000 225.000.000
Adjustment to share capital 16 41.247.788 41.247.788
Treasury shares 16 (22.850.916) (22.850.916)
Restricted reserves 16 29.863.083 26.996.418
Retained earnings  258.095.696 220.825.272
Net income for year  97.915.312 56.382.717

Attributable to
   equity holders of the parent  629.270.963 547.601.279
Minority interest  6.177 6.934

Total equity  629.277.140 547.608.213
   
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  860.120.230 561.212.544
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 Notes 2011 2010

Net sales 17 10.984.619 52.337.960
Cost of sales 17 (9.712.549) (51.813.309)

Gross profit  1.272.070 524.651

Marketing, sales and distribution expenses 18 (1.413.084) -
General administrative expenses 18 (10.265.125) (10.877.437)
Other income 20 101.122.476 18.285.273
Other expenses 20 (149.360) (326.790)

Operating profit  90.566.977 7.605.697

Income from associates 9 13.709.962 48.010.950
Financial incomes 21 24.345.780 10.706.679
Financial expenses 22 (25.828.178) (6.596.345)

Income before tax   102.794.541 59.726.981

Income tax expense
  - Taxes on income 23 (5.025.626) (3.119.707)
  - Deferred tax (expense)/income 23 145.354 (224.683)

Net income  97.914.269 56.382.591

Other comprehensive income  - -

Total comprehensive income  97.914.269 56.382.591

Attributable to:

Minority interest  97.915.312 56.382.717
Equity holders of the parent  (1.043) (126)

Earnings per share (Kr) 24 0,4352 0,250

TURCAS PETROL A.Ş.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
31 DECEMBER 2011 AND 2010
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise indicated.)
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       Equity

       attributable  

  Adjustment    Net income to equity  

 Paid in to share Treasury Restricted Retained Net holders of the Minority Total 

 capital  capital shares reserves earnings  for year parent interest equity

Balances at

1 January 2010 136.500.000 41.247.788 (22.850.916) 24.842.674 296.755.739 27.641.671 504.136.956 5.471 504.142.427

Transfers - - - 2.153.744 25.487.927 (27.641.671) - - -

Capital increase - minority interest - - - - - - - 1.589 1.589 

Capital increase 88.500.000 - - - (88.500.000) - - - -

Dividends paid - - - - (12.918.394) - (12.918.394) - (12.918.394) 

Total comprehensive income - - - - - 56.382.717 56.382.717 (126) 56.382.591

Balances at 

31 December 2010 225.000.000 41.247.788 (22.850.916) 26.996.418 220.825.272 56.382.717 547.601.279 6.934 547.608.213

Transfers - - - 2.866.665 53.516.052 (56.382.717) - - -

Capital increase - minority interest - - - - - - - 286 286

Purchase of Shell Gaz A.Ş.(Note 19) - - - - (5.598.600) - (5.598.600) - (5.598.600)

Dividends paid - - - - (10.647.028) - (10.647.028) - (10.647.028) 

Total comprehensive income - - - - - 97.915.312 97.915.312 (1.043) 97.914.269

Balances at

31 December 2011 225.000.000 41.247.788 (22.850.916) 29.863.083 258.095.696 97.915.312 629.270.963 6.177 629.277.140

TURCAS PETROL A.Ş.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 AND 2010
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise indicated.)
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 Notes 31 December  2011 31 December 2010

Operating activities:

Income before tax  102.794.541 59.726.981

Adjustments to reconcile net cash provided from
  operating activities to income before taxes 
Depreciation and amortization 3,19 1.343.187 1.502.747
Fixed asset sales expense 20  (57.041)
Sales income of assets held for sales  20 492.239 -
Profit from sales of associates 20 (83.818.943) -
Provision for employee benefits 14 82.649 51.555
Provision for  unused vacation  281.086 129.703
Income from associates 9 (13.709.962) (48.010.950)
Interest expenses 22 6.620.656 690.097
Interest income 21 (11.516.182) (5.169.364)

Cash flows before
  changes in operating assets and liabilities  2.569.271 8.863.728

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
Changes in trade receivables 7 5.203.315 (481.710)
Changes in other receivables and assets  (59.339.726) (89.939)
Changes in other payables and liabilities  8.356.154 886.130
Changes in trade payables and related party payables 7,25 (4.674.196) (49.503)
Corporate taxes paid 23 (3.237.021) (3.437.049)

Cash flows used in / (provided by) operating activities  (51.122.203) 5.691.657

Investing activities:
Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets 10,11 (963.232) (1.015.020)
Cash provided to associates for capital expenditure 25 (138.265.730) -
Cash provided from sales of tangible and intangible assets  - 76.617
Cash provided by sales of assets held for sale  811.418 -
Capital increase in associates 9 (58.395.114) (58.236.112)
Cash-used from sales of associates 20 83.818.943 -
Capital increase in available-for-sale financial investments  - (30.000)
Dividends received 9 30.822.870 45.000.000

Cash flows used in investing activities  (82.170.845) (14.204.515)

Financing activities:
Proceeds from bank borrowings 6 221.986.848 304.386
Repayment of bank borrowings 6 (10.563.091) (404.487)
Interest received 21 11.492.531 5.345.557
Interest paid 22 (6.620.656) (690.097)
Capital increase-minority interest  286 1.589
Dividends paid  (10.647.028) (12.918.394)

Cash flows provided from / (used in) financing activities  205.648.890 (8.361.446)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  72.355.842 (16.874.304)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  45.825.298 62.699.602

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4 118.181.140 45.825.298
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NOTE 1 - GROUP’S ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Turcas Petrol A.Ş. and its subsidiaries (“The Group”) consist of Turcas Petrol A.Ş. (“The Company”), 6 subsidiaries and 3 associates.

Turcas Petrolcülük A.Ş. was established in 1988 by Türkpetrol Holding and Burmah-Castrol. In 1996, Tabaş Petrolcülük A.Ş. (“Tabaş”) 
purchased shares of Turcas Petrolcülük A.Ş, resulting in an ownership of 82.16%.

On 30 September 1999, Tabaş merged with Turcas Petrolcülük A.Ş.. As a result of the merger, the assets and liabilities of Turcas 
Petrolcülük A.Ş. were transferred to Tabaş and Turcas Petrolcülük A.Ş. was dissolved. As of the same date, the commercial title of 
Tabaş was changed to Turcas Petrol A.Ş.

As of 1 July 2006, Turcas Petrol A.Ş. transferred its part of shares to Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş.(“STAŞ”) by partial spin-off. 30% shares 
of STAŞ. were owned by Turcas Petrol A.Ş. and 70% of shares were owned by The Shell Company of Turkey Ltd(“Shell Türkiye”). Since 
this date, main operations of Turcas Petrol A.Ş.; which were purchasing, selling, importing, exporting of petroleum products, have 
been carried by STAŞ whose selling and export activities has recently begun. By the decision of the Company’s Board of Directors, the 
main operations of the Company changed into search, research, production, transportation, distribution, storage, export, import, re-
export, and national and international investments about trade in the energy sector and its subsectors like petroleum, fuel, electricity 
and natural gas; and to establish new companies and/or to join the management and establishment of the companies that focus on 
developing new business lines with commercial, industrial, agricultural and financial purposes.

The Company is incorporated in Turkey and the address of the registered office is as follows:

Dikilitaş mah. Emirhan Caddesi No: 109 Beşiktaş / İstanbul 

The shares of the Company have been traded on İstanbul Stock Exchange since 1992.

The Company’s main shareholder is Aksoy Holding A.Ş. The capital structure of the Company as of the related balance sheet dates 
have been provided at Note 16.

The number of employees of the Group at the end of the period is 42 (31 December 2010: 34).

Subsidiaries Country Nature of business

Turcas Enerji Holding A.Ş. (former “Marmara Petrol ve Rafineri İşleri A.Ş.”) Turkey Holding
Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. Turkey Electricity
Turcas Elektrik Toptan Satış A.Ş. Turkey Electricity
Turcas Gaz Toptan Satış A.Ş. Turkey Gas
Turcas Yenilenebilir Enerji Üretim A.Ş. Turkey Electricity
Turcas Rafineri Yatırımları A.Ş. Turkey Petroleum refineries

In 1996, the Company acquired 100% of Turcas Enerji Holding A.Ş (“Marmara”). During the year, The Company also bought Turcas 
Enerji Holding A.Ş shares (5%) from Ataş Anadolu Tasfiyehanesi A.Ş, which was established in 1958, owned by “Marmara”. 

Based on the resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company dated 7 June 2004, the Company’s subsidiary Marmara Petrol ve 
Rafineri İşleri A.Ş. and the other ATAŞ partners returned their Certificate of Refinery to the General Directorate of Petroleum Affairs, 
put an end to the refining operations of ATAŞ and obtained a Terminal License for ATAŞ from the Energy Market Regulatory Authority 
(“EMRA”). The entity continues its storage and service operations as of the balance sheet date.

TURCAS PETROL A.Ş.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise indicated.)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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As a result of the Extraordinary General Assembly meeting held on 27 May 2008, the company resolved for the change of its title 
from “Marmara Petrol ve  Rafineri İşleri A.Ş.” to “Turcas Enerji Holding A.Ş.”. This decision was published on the Turkish Trade Registry 
Gazzette numbered 7105 on 15 July 2008 and the title is registered and declared as Turcas Enerji Holding A.Ş.

Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. has been established on 23 December 2003 and obtained Electric Production License with the EMRA’s 
decision numbered 658-2 dated 16 February 2006, for 20 years starting from 16 February 2006.

Turcas Elektrik Toptan Satış A.Ş. has been established on 30 October 2000 and obtained the license to operate in electric wholesale 
business for 10 years starting from 5 June 2003 in accordance with the Electricity Market Regulation numbered 4628.

Turcas Gaz Toptan Satış A.Ş. has been established on 6 June 2005, in order to operate in the import of natural gas and wholesale 
activities. The company has obtained sales licence for 30 years period on 17 May 2007.

Turcas Rüzgar Enerji Üretim A.Ş. has been established on 25 October 2007 and it operates in the installation and administration of 
electric energy production facilities, electric energy production, the sale of the energy or capacity that has been generated. Turcas 
Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. owns 99.99% of Turcas Yenilenebilir Enerji Üretim A.Ş.

Turcas Rafineri Yatırımları A.Ş.has been established on 28 December 2011. It operates in the installation of petroleum refineries and 
additional plants, purchasing and operating of these plants, processing raw petroleum and ensuring that raw petroleum is processed 
both in domestic and abroad refineries.

Associates Country Nature of business

Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş. (“STAŞ”) Turkey Petroleum products
Star Rafineri A.Ş. (“STAR”)(*) Turkey Refinery
RWE&Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. Turkey Energy, electricity

(*)  It was acquired from Socar Turkey Enerji A.Ş. at an amount of TRY9,250,000 on 29 December 2011 and included in scope of 
consolidation.

STAŞ operates in every aspect of the purchase, sale, import, export, storage and distribution of all types of fuel and oil.

Socar & Turcas Rafineri A.Ş.(newly established name as Star Rafineri A.Ş. (“STAR”)) has been established on 10 September 2008. 
Turcas Petrol A.Ş. has 18.5% of the Company’s shares and the rest 81.5% of shares are owned by SOCAR Turkey Enerji A.Ş. which is 
100% subsidiary of State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic (“SOCAR”) in Turkey. In order to realize SOCAR&Turcas Ege Rafinerisi 
project in Izmir Aliaga, STAR applied to the Energy Market Regulatory Authority (“EMRA”) for the licence and obtained Refinery 
Licence numbered RAF/2610-3/27891 dated 23 June 2010, for 49 years starting from 23 June 2010.

RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş has been established on 7 December 2007 in order to construct and operate electricity 
power plant, generate electrical energy, heat and steam from power plants, perform maintenance services and market the recycled 
and waste materials(Note 9).

SOCAR & Turcas Enerji A.Ş. (“STEAŞ”) has been established on 28 December 2006 by registering Turkish Trade gazette with TRY50,000 
capital. Since the date of 26 December 2011; Turcas had 25%, Aksoy Holding A.Ş. had 24% and State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan 
Republic (“SOCAR”) had 51% of the shares. The shares, which the Group has TRY50,000,000, out of TRY200,000,000 paid-in capital 
of SOCAR & Turkey Enerji A.Ş., was sold to SOCAR on 26 December 2011 amounting to USD44,000,000 in accordance with “Share 
Sale&Purchase Agreement” (Note 2.1.d). 

The detailed information about the associates are given in Note 9.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of presentation

Financial reporting standards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting principles 
published by the CMB, namely “CMB Financial Reporting Standards”. CMB regulated the principles and procedures of preparation, 
presentation and announcement of financial statements prepared by the entities with Communiqué No. XI-29, “Principles of Financial 
Reporting in Capital Markets” (“the Communiqué”). The Communiqué is effective for the annual periods starting from 1 January 2008 
and supersedes Communiqué No. XI-25, “The Accounting Standards in the Capital Markets”. According to the Communiqué, entities 
shall prepare their financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IAS/IFRS”) endorsed by the 
European Union. Until the differences of the IAS/IFRS as endorsed by the European Union from the ones issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) are announced by Turkish Accounting Standards Board (“TASB”), IAS/IFRS issued by the IASB 
shall be applied. Accordingly, Turkish Accounting Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TAS/TFRS”) issued by the TASB 
which are in line with the aforementioned standards shall be considered.

With the decision taken on 17 March 2005, the CMB announced that, effective from 1 January 2005, the application of inflation 
accounting is no longer required for companies operating in Turkey and preparing their financial statements in accordance with CMB 
Financial Reporting Standards. Accordingly, IAS 29, “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies”, issued by the IASB, has not 
been applied in the financial statements for the accounting year commencing from 1 January 2005.

As the differences of the IAS/IFRS endorsed by the European Union from the ones issued by the IASB have not been announced 
by TASB as of the date of preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared within the framework of Communiqué XI, No: 29 and related promulgations to this Communiqué as issued by the CMB, in 
accordance with the CMB Financial Reporting Standards which are based on IAS/IFRS. The consolidated financial statements and the 
related notes to them are presented in accordance with the formats recommended by the CMB, with the announcement dated 14 
April 2008 and 9 January 2009, including the compulsory disclosures.

The Company maintains its books of account and prepares its statutory financial statements in TRY in accordance with the Turkish 
Commercial Code (“TCC”), tax legislation and the Uniform Chart of Accounts issued by the Ministry of Finance and accounting 
principles issued by the CMB. These consolidated financial statements are based on the statutory records, which are maintained 
under historical cost conversion, with the required adjustments and reclassifications reflected for the purpose of fair presentation in 
accordance with the CMB Financial Reporting Standards. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by taking into 
consideration the historical costs.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of 
applying the group’s accounting policies. The significant assumptions and estimates applied in the preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements, are disclosed in note 2.4.

Amendments in International Financial Reporting Standards

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2011:

• IAS 24 (amendment), “Related party disclosures”.
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(b)  Amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2011 but hasn’t material impact on Group’s financial statements:

 •IAS 32 (amendment), “Financial instruments: Presentation”;
 •IFRIC 19, “Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments”;
 •IFRS 1 (amendment), “First-time adoption of IFRS”;
 • IFRIC 14 (amendment), “IAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction”;
 • Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010. Amendments effect six standards and one interpretation IFRS 1, IFRS 3, IFRS 7, IAS 27, IAS 34 
and IFRIC 13.

c)  Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective as of 2011 and have not been early 
adopted by the Group

 •IFRS 1 (amendment), “First-time adoption of IFRS”;
 •IAS 12 (amendment), “Income taxes”;
 •IAS 1, (amendment), “Presentation of financial statements”;
 •IAS 19 (amendment), “Employee benefits”;
 •IFRS 9, “Financial instruments”;
 •IFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements”;
 •IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”;
 •IFRS 12, “Disclosures of interests in other entities”;
 •IFRS 13, “Fair value measurement” ;
 •IAS 27 (revised), “Separate financial statements” ;
 •IAS 28 (revised), “Associates and joint ventures”;
 •IFRIC 20, “Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine”.

The Group will evaluate the effects of the changes mentioned above and apply the ones applicable to the Group starting from 1 
January 2012. It has not been estimated that the standarts and applications above will cause any major changes in the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in TRY, 
which is the functional currency of Turcas and the presentation currency of the Group.

Consolidation Principles

(a)  The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the parent company, Turcas, and its Subsidiaries and Associates 
on the basis set out in sections (b) to (d) below. The financial statements of the companies included in the consolidation have been 
prepared as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and are based on the statutory records, which are maintained under 
the historical cost convention, with adjustments and reclassifications for the purpose of presentation in conformity with CMB Financial 
Reporting Standards and applying uniform accounting policies and presentations 

(b)  Subsidiaries are companies over which Turcas has capability to control the financial and operating policies for the benefit of 
Turcas through the power to exercise more than 50% of the voting rights relating to shares in the companies owned directly and 
indirectly by itself. 

(c)  Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the control is transferred to the Group and are no longer consolidated from 
the date that the control ceases. Where necessary, accounting policies for Subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with 
the policies adopted by the Group. 
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The balance sheets and statements of income of the Subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and the carrying value of 
the investment held by Turcas and its Subsidiaries is eliminated against the related shareholders’ equity. Intercompany transactions 
and balances between Turcas and its Subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation. The cost of, and the dividends arising from, shares 
held by Turcas in its Subsidiaries are eliminated from shareholders’ equity and income for the year, respectively.

The table below sets out all Subsidiaries included in the scope of consolidation and shows their direct and indirect ownership, which 
are identical to their economic interests, at years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010(%):

                                                                                                      31 December 2011                              31 December 2010 
 Ownership Economic Ownership Economic
 interest interest interest interest
 (%) (%) (%) (%)

Turcas Enerji Holding A.Ş. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Turcas Elektrik Toptan Satış A.Ş. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Turcas Gaz Toptan Satış A.Ş. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Turcas Yenilenebilir Enerji Üretim A.Ş. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Turcas Rafineri Yatırımları A.Ş.(*) 99,60 99,60 - -

(*) Turcas Rafineri Yatırımları A.Ş. has been established on 28 December 2011.

(d) Associates are companies in which the Group has attributable interest of more than 20% and less than 50% of the ordinary 
share capital held for the long-term and over which a significant influence is exercised. Associates are accounted for using the equity 
method.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the 
associates. When the group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other 
unsecured receivables or the significant influence ceases the Group does not continue to apply the equity method, unless it has 
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Subsequent to the date of the caesura of the significant influence 
the investment is carried either at fair value when the fair values can be measured reliably or otherwise at cost when the fair values 
cannot be reliably measured.

The table below sets out all Associates and shows their direct and indirect ownership at 31 December 2011 and 2010:

 2011 2010
        (%)  (%)   

Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş. 30,00 30,00
SOCAR & Turcas Enerji A.Ş.(*) - 25,00
RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. 30,00 30,00
Star Rafineri A.Ş.(**) 18,50 -

(*)  The shares, which the Group has TRY50,000,000, out of TRY200,000,000 paid-in capital of SOCAR & Turkey Enerji A.Ş., was sold to 
SOCAR on 26 December 2011 amounting to USD44,000,000 (TRY83,818,943) in accordance with “Share Sale&Purchase Agreement”.
(**)  The group has purchased 18.5% of the shares of STAR Rafineri A.Ş.whose TRY49,996,996 out of TRY50,000,000 paid-in capital is 
owned by SOCAR Turkey Enerji A.Ş at 29 December 2011 for TRY9,250,000. Financial statements of STAR was included to the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements with the method of equity accounting considering the significant influence of the Group accordance 
with “Shareholders Agreement”.
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(e)  Available-for-sale investments, in which the Group has controlling interests equal to or above 20%, or over which are either 
immaterial or where a significant influence is not exercised by the Group, that do not have quoted market prices in active markets 
and whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less any provision for impairment.

Available-for-sale investments, in which the Group has attributable interests below 20% or in which a significant influence is not 
exercised by the Group, that have quoted market prices in active markets and whose fair values can be reliably measured are carried 
at fair value(Note 5).

(f)  The minority shareholders’ share in the net assets and results of Subsidiaries for the year are separately classified as minority 
interest in the consolidated balance sheets and statements of income.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables that are created by the Group by way of providing goods or services directly to a debtor are carried at amortised 
cost. Short duration receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount unless the effect of imputing 
interest is significant (Note 7).

A doubtful receivable provision for trade receivables is established if there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to 
collect all amounts due. The amount of provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being 
the present value of all cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted based on the original 
effective interest rate of the originated receivables at inception.

If the amount of the impairment subsequently decreases due to an event occurring after the write-down, the release of the provision 
is credited to other income.

Credit finance income/charges

Credit finance income/charges represent imputed finance income/charges on credit sales and purchases. Such income/charges 
calculated by using the effective interest method are recognised as financial income or expenses over the period of credit sale and 
purchases, and included under financial income and expenses (Notes 21,22).

Financial investments

Classification

The group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale investments. The 
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its 
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. Those with 
maturities greater than 12 months are classified as non-current assets. The group’s loans and receivables are classified as “trade and 
other receivables” in the balance sheet. 
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(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in this category or not classified in any 
of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the related investments 
within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the group commits to purchase 
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value 
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognised at fair value and transaction 
costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
investments have expired or have been transferred and the group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans 
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are 
included in the income statement as “gains and losses from investment securities”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the income statement as part 
of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement as part of other income 
when the group’s right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted 
securities), the group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, 
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models.

The group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value 
of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, 
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in 
the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the 
income statement. Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in the related accounting policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts (Note 4).
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Property, plant, equipment and related depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on restated amounts of 
property, plant and equipment using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets, except for land due 
to their indefinite useful life. The depreciation periods for property and equipment, which approximate the economic useful lives of 
assets concerned, are as follows:

Machinery and equipment 5 - 10 years
Motor vehicles, furniture and fixtures 5 - 10 years
Special costs 5 years

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of asset net selling price or value in use. The recoverable amount of the 
property, plant and equipment is the higher of future net cash flows from the utilisation of this property, plant and equipment or fair 
value less cost to sell.

Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are included in the related income or expense accounts, as appropriate.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits with the item will flow to the company. Repairs and maintenance are charged to the 
statements of income during the financial year in which they are incurred (Note 10).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are comprised of acquired brands, trademarks, patents, developments costs and computer software (Note 11).

a) Trademark licenses

Separately acquired trademark licenses and patents are carried at their acquisition costs. Trademarks and licenses have a finite useful 
life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the 
cost of trademarks and licenses over their estimated useful lives (five years).

b) Computer software

Computer software is recognised at its acquisition cost. Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated 
useful lives of five years and carried at cost less accumulated amortization.
 
Financial liabilities and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated 
at amortised cost using the effective yield method; any difference between proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the redemption 
value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings. Borrowing costs are charged to the income 
statement when they are incurred (Note 6). Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right 
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity. In such case, the tax is also recognised in shareholders’ equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated in accordance with the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet 
date in the countries where the subsidiaries and associates of the Group operate.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the consolidated financial statements. Currently enacted tax rates are used to 
determine deferred income tax at the balance sheet date (Note 23).

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, where deferred tax assets resulting from deductible 
temporary differences are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

Provided that deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and it is 
legally eligible, they may be offset against one another.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Employment termination benefits

Employment termination benefits, as required by the Turkish Labour Law, represent the estimated present value of the total reserve 
of the future probable obligation of the Company arising in case of the retirement of the employees, termination of employment 
without due cause, call for military service, be retired or death upon the completion of a minimum one year service. Provision which 
is allocated by using defined benefit pension’s current value is calculated by using estimated liability method. All actuarial profits and 
losses are recognised in consolidated statements of income(Note 14).

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies during the period have been translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been translated into TRY at the exchange rates 
prevailing at the balance sheet dates. Exchange gains or losses arising from the settlement and translation of foreign currency items 
have been included in the consolidated statements of income.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognized on an accrual basis when the electricity is delivered (risk and rewards are transferred), the amount of the 
revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
Group, at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Net sales represent the invoiced value of electricity delivered less 
sales returns and commission. Transmission revenue are netted off with its related costs in consolidated financial statements (Notes 
21 and 22).

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis that takes into account the effective yield on the assets.
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Dividends

Dividends receivable are recognised as income in the period when they are declared. Dividends payable are recognised as an 
appropriation of profit in the period in which they are declared .

Paid-in capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in 
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Treasury Shares

Where any group company purcases the company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any 
directly attributable incremental costs( net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the company’s equity holders 
until the shares are cancelled or resissued and is 
shown as treasury shares in balance sheet. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any 
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the 
company’s equity holders (Note 16).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. No provision is 
recognised for operating losses expected in later periods (Note 13).

Contingent assets and liabilities

Possible assets or obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group are not included in the consolidated 
balance sheets and are disclosed as contingent assets or liabilities (Note 12).

Earnings per share

Earnings per share presented in the consolidated statement of income are determined by dividing consolidated net income 
attributable to that class of shares by the weighted average number of such shares outstanding during the year concerned.

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares (“bonus shares”) to existing 
shareholders from retained earnings. For the purpose of earnings per share computations, the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year has been adjusted in respect of bonus shares issued without a corresponding change in resources by 
giving them retroactive effect for the year in which they were issued and for each earlier period.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a  manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. 
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating 
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions (Note 3).
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Reporting of cash flows

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and cash equivalents with 
maturity periods of less than three months.

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made regarding the amounts for 
the assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date, and explanations for the contingent assets and liabilities as well as the amounts 
of income and expenses realised in the reporting period. The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The 
accounting estimates and assumptions, by definition, may not be equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions 
that may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed 
below:

Deferred Taxes:

Group accounts the deferred tax assets and liabilities for the temporary differences arising from the timing differences between 
the statutory financial statements and the financial statements prepared in accordance with the CMB financial reporting standards. 
Subsidiaries of the Group have deferred tax assets consisting of carry forward tax losses which may be deducted from the future 
taxable income and other deductible temporary differences. Amount of the deferred tax assets which may be partially or completely 
recovered are anticipated according to the current conditions. During the projections, future taxable income, current period losses, 
expiration dates of the carry forward tax losses, other tax assets and the tax planning strategies, if necessary, are taken into account. 
Group has carry forward tax losses amounting to TRY32,187,479 from which can be utilized with future profits, as of 31 December 
2011 (31 December 2010: TRY20,021,270). The Group has not booked any deferred tax asset related to carry forward tax losses 
considering the projections (Note 23).

NOTE 3 - SEGMENT REPORTING

The reportable segments of Turcas have been organized by management as oil, petrochemicals, electricity and natural gas. The 
products which are included in oil are lubricants, engine oil and fuel products. Petrochemicals group mainly consists of the production 
and distribution of thermoplacstics and other petrochemicals. The Group has sold all its shares in Socar&Turcas Enerji A.Ş. which is 
an associate of the Group operates in petrochemical section on 26 December 2011 (Note 2.1.d.). Correspondingly, the Group has 
no activity in petrochemical section since then. Electricity group consists of the production, wholesale and distribution of electricity 
products. Natural gas group consists of wholesale business of natural gas.

Accounting policies applied by each operational segment of Turcas are the same as those are applied in Turcas’s consolidated 
financial statements prepared in accordance with CMB Financial Reporting Standards.

Turcas’s reportable segments are strategical business units which presents various products and services. Each of these segments are 
administrated seperately by the necessity of requiring different technologies and marketing strategies.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) have been taken into consideration for evaluation of the 
performance of the operational segments. Management considers EBITDA as the most adequate indicator for making comparison 
with competitors in the sector.
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a)  Operational segments which have been prepared in accordance with the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 
2011 are as follows:

 Oil   Petrochemicals    Natural gas Electricity Other Total

Total segment revenue - - - 10.984.619 - 10.984.619
EBITDA (79.671) - (285.383) (1.704.245) (6.993.653) (9.062.952)
Financial income - - 867.829 14.345.821 9.132.130 24.345.780
Financial expenses - - (223.153) (22.957.468) (2.647.557) (25.828.178)
Amortization and
   depreciation expenses - - (380) (384.445) (958.362) (1.343.187)
Income/(expense) from 
   associates 15.950.400 - - (2.240.438) - 13.709.962
Purchase of tangible
   and intangible assets - - - 77.842 885.390 963.232

b)  Operational segments which have been prepared in accordance with the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 
2010 are as folllows:
 Oil   Petrochemicals    Natural gas Electricity Other Total

Total segment revenue - - 48.396.993 3.940.967 - 52.337.960
EBITDA - - (644.062) (2.262.328) (5.943.649) (8.850.039)
Financial income - - 1.593.466 965.685 8.147.528 10.706.679
Financial expenses - - (1.195.837) (949.718) (4.450.790) (6.596.345)
Amortization and 
   depreciation expenses - - (32) (379.627) (1.123.088) (1.502.747)
Income/(expense) from 
   associates 49.230.900 - - (1.219.950) - 48.010.950
Purchase of tangible
   and intangible assets  - - - 3.346 1.011.674 1.015.020

c) Operating segment information as of 31 December 2011 is shown below:

 Oil Petrochemicals Natural gas Electricity Other Eliminations Total

Segment Assets  50.000 - 7.571.135 232.444.018 290.922.449 (212.795.241) 321.429.381
Associates 417.346.300 - - 124.581.570 -  541.927.870
Segment Liabilities  9.329.847 - 7.294 233.984.256 1.852.225 (14.330.531) 234.080.111
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d) Operating segment information as of 31 December 2010 is shown below:
     
 Oil Petrochemicals Natural gas Electricity Other Eliminations Total

Segment Assets  - - 15.220.724 53.596.178 233.896.041 (238.494.663) 64.218.280
Associates 428.567.400 - - 68.426.864 -  496.994.264
Segment Liabilities  - - 5.286.025 22.217.811 7.402.596  (21.302.102) 13.604.331

(*) Other segment consists of holding activity of Turcas Petrol.

e)  Reconciliation between reportable segment income, EBITDA, assets and liabilities and other significant items are as follows:

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Income
Segment revenue 10.984.619 52.337.960

Consolidated income 10.984.619 52.337.960

 31 Aralık 2011 31 Aralık 2010
EBITDA
Segment EBITDA (2.069.299) (2.906.390)
Other EBITDA (6.993.653) (5.943.649)

Consolidated EBITDA (9.062.952) (8.850.039)

Financial income 24.345.780 10.706.679
Financial expense (25.828.178) (6.596.345)
Other operational income 100.973.116 17.958.483
Income from associates 13.709.962 48.010.950
Amortization and depreciation (1.343.187) (1.502.747)

Consolidated income before tax 102.794.541 59.726.981

NOTE 4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Cash 7.095 19.705
Banks
 - demand deposits 428.653 15.985.322
 - time deposits 117.826.210 29.877.437

 118.261.958 45.882.464

The maturities of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

Up to 30 days 118.261.958 45.882.464

 118.261.958 45.882.464
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The effective interest rates (%) of time deposits are as follows:

 2011 2010

TRY 10,55 7,63
US Dollars 2,40 3,39
Euro 2,50 -

The analysis of cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended 2011 and 2010 
are as follows:
   
 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Cash and cash equivalents - maturities of
   less than 3 months (Note 4) 118.261.958 45.882.464
Less: Interest Accrual (80.818) (57.166)

 118.181.140 45.825.298

The company has no restricted deposits as of 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010: None).

NOTE 5 - FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets available for sale

         31 December 2011            31 December 2010 
 Participation Participation Participation Participation
 amount rate (%) amount rate (%)

ATAŞ 13.240 5,00 13.240 5,00
RWE & Turcas Kuzey 
  Elektrik Üretim A.Ş.(*) 45.000 30,00 45.000 30,00

 58.240  58.240 

(*)  Since the company is currently non-operating and does not have significant effect on the consolidated financial statements, it has 
been stated at cost in the financial statements rather than being accounted for by the equity method.
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NOTE 6 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
 2011 2010

Short-term bank borrowings - 258.930
Long-term bank borrowings 212.212.104 529.417

 212.212.104 788.347

Long-term financial liabilities:
  31 December 2011 
 Yearly 
 average effective
 interest rate(%) Original amount TRY

EUR borrowings
 - Floating interest rate(*) 2,88 86.704.971 211.889.608
 - Fixed interest rate 6,20 113.924 278.407
 - Interest accrual of floating rate loan   18.041 44.089

Total long term financial liabilities   212.212.104

Total financial liabilities   212.212.104

(*)  Original amount of loan obtained from consortium of Bayern LB and West LB  is TRY241,218,174 (EUR98,706,185). ECA premium of 
TRY27,929,346 (EUR13,687,207) and management fee of TRY1,399,220 (EUR746,760) have been deducted from the original amount. 
These amounts will be amortised until the end of loan agreement.

Floating interest rated financial debts denominated in foreign currencies are valuated to TRY using effective exchange rates at period 
end. Interest rates of floating interest rated financial debts are redetermined in 6 month periods, therefore carrying values are 
considered to be approximate fair values.

  31 December 2010 
 Yearly
 average effective
 interest rate(%) Original amount TRY
Short-term financial liabilities:

EUR borrowings  6,25 126.363 258.930

Total short term financial liabilities   258.930

EUR borrowings
 - Fixed interest rate 6,29 258.365 529.417

Total long term financial liabilities   529.417

Total financial liabilities   788.347
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The redemption schedule of financial liabilities is as follows:

 2011 2010
0 - 1 year - 258.930
1 - 2 years 21.249.961 363.214
2 - 3 years 21.253.534 65.896
3 - 4 years 21.257.461 70.164
4 - 5 years 21.261.612 30.143
After 5 years 127.189.536 -
 212.212.104 788.347

The redemption schedule of borrowings as of 31 December 2011 according to their contractual repricing dates of the Group is as 
follows:
 2011 2010

1 - 3 years 42.503.496 502.100
3 - 5 years 42.519.073 286.247
5 - 7 years 42.416.055 -
7 - 10 years 42.386.740 -
10 - 13 years 42.386.740 -

 212.212.104 788.347

The following is the information compiled regarding the loans made available for the 775 MW Natural Gas Combined Cycle Power 
Plant investment, currently under construction within the scope of financing corresponding to the share of Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., 
an associate of the Group, in the Denizli Project:

-  The loan agreement was entered into with the bank consortium composing of Bayerische Landesbank (“Bayern LB”) and West 
Landesbank (“West LB”) with respect to the amount EUR149,351,984, with a maturity of 13 years and no-payback (grace) period of 
three years at the interest rate Euribor + 1.65%, under the guarantee of Euler Hermes German Export Loan Agency,

-  The loan agreement was entered into with Türkiye Sınai Kalkınma Bankası A.Ş. (“TSKB”) with respect to the amount USD55,000,000, 
with a maturity of 10 years and no-payback (grace) period of three years at the interest rate Libor + 3.40%.

The portion EUR98,706,185 of the loan received from the bank consortium formed by Bayern LB and West LB has been utilised as of 
31 December 2011, whereas the loan which is available by TSKB is yet to be utilized as of 31 December 2011.

Turcas Petrol A.Ş. has provided a Corporate Guarantee as collateral amounting to USD77,000,000 in favor of TSKB and EUR149,351,984 
in favor of Bayern LB and West LB consortium within the scope of the respective loan agreements.

As a requirement of the loan agreement signed with West LB and Bayern LB, a DSRA Standby Letter of Credit has been arranged 
by Türkiye Garanti Bankası A.Ş. on behalf of Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. with Bayern LB as the drawee bank in the amount of 
EUR21,656,038, with maturity ending 15 July 2014. As a collateral to this DSRA Standby Letter of Credit, Turcas Petrol A.Ş. has 
provided a Corporate Guarantee amounting to EUR21,656,038 in favor of Türkiye Garanti Bankası A.Ş..

Within the scope of the Share Pledge Agreements and Shareholder Assignment of Receivables Agreements entered into by and 
between Turcas Enerji Holding A.Ş., Turcas Petrol A.Ş., Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., and WestLB, Bayern LB and TSKB, on 11 November 
2010 a first degree pledge and assignment of receivables were established, (i)on the shares owned by Turcas Enerji Holding A.Ş. 
and Turcas Petrol A.Ş. in Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. and their receivables from Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., (ii) on the shares owned by 
Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. in RWE &Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. and its receivables from RWE &Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. 
on behalf of WestLB, Bayern LB and TSKB o pari passu and pro rata basis.
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NOTES 7 - TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Short-term trade receivables 2011 2010

Trade receivables 2.639.639 2.867.638
Due from related parties (Note 25) 185.650 5.243.824
Other trade receivables 12.045 61.341

 2.837.334 8.172.803

Less:Provision for doubtful trade receivables (881.398) (1.341.153)
Less:Deferred financial income (Note 23) (345.384) (17.781)

Short-term trade receivables (net) 1.610.552 6.813.869

Movement of provision for doubtful receivables are as follows:

 2011 2010

Balance at the beginning of the year 1.341.153 1.449.958

Recovery of doubtful receivables (Note 20) (458.755) (108.805)

Balance at the end of the year  882.398 1.341.153

Short-term trade payables 2011 2010

Trade payables 2.186.358 6.787.175
Due to related parties (Note 25) 253.531 238.716

 2.439.889 7.025.891

Less: Deferred financial expense (Note 23) (106.356) (18.165)

Short-term trade payables (net) 2.333.533 7.007.726

NOTE 8 - OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Short term other receivables 2011 2010

Receivables from related parties (Note 25) 12.575.456 116.884
Other(*) 37.079.081 24.029

 49.654.537 140.913

(*)  TRY37,074,862 of other receivables balance consist of the debt which was given to Socar Turkey Enerji A.Ş.. Interest income is 
accounted for amounting to TRY1,726,517 using the current market interest rates.
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Long term other receivables 2011 2010

Receivables from related parties (Note 25) 138.243.752 -
Other 76.484 54.509

 138.320.236 54.509

Other payables 2011 2010

Taxes and duties payables 544.517 184.453
Due to related parties (Note 25) 1.826.015 531.193
Other(*) 9.318.438 856

 11.688.970 716.502

(*) TRY9,250,000 of other payables consist of the debt payables regarding the purchase of 18.5% of STAR Rafineri A.Ş.’s shares from 
Socar Turkey Enerji A.Ş.

NOTE 9 - ASSOCIATES

 % 31 December 2011 % 31 December 2010

STAŞ 30,00 408.096.300 30,00 428.567.400
RWE & Turcas Güney
  Elektrik Üretim A.Ş.  30,00 124.581.570 30,00 68.426.864
STAR 18,50 9.250.000 - -
STEAŞ(*) - - 25,00 -

  541.927.870  496.994.264

(*)  SThe shares, which the Group has TRY50,000,000 (25%) out of TRY200,000,000 paid in capital of Socar & Turkey Enerji A.Ş. was 
sold to SOCAR on 26 December 2011 amounting to USD44,000,000 in accordance with “Shares Sales & Purchase Agreement”. The 
purchase consideration as a whole was accounted for as an income in the consolidated financial statements, since Socar & Turkey 
Enerji A.Ş. has no carrying value.

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Balance at the beginning of the year 496.994.264 435.747.202

Income from associates (net) 13.709.962 48.010.950
Dividends received (30.822.870) (45.000.000)
Acqusition of Shell Gaz A.Ş. (*) (5.598.600) -
Additions to the scope of consolidation (**) 9.250.000 -
Capital increases of associates (***) 58.395.114 58.236.112

Balance at the end of the year 541.927.870 496.994.264
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(*)  STAŞ, one of the group subsidiaries, acquired Shell Gaz Ticaret ve Sanayi A.Ş. on 10 February 2011 in return for USD34,750,000. As 
the companies are operating under common control before and after the transaction, the transaction in question was not evaluated 
under IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” and acquisition method was not applied. As a result of the transaction performed under 
common control, the assets and liabilities of Shell Gaz Ticaret ve Sanayi A.Ş. were included in the consolidated financial statements 
of the Group, with their historical values. Income statements were also included in the consolidated financial statements beginning 
from the date of the acquisition. No goodwill was calculated as a result of these transactions. The TRY5,598,600 of the difference 
belonging to the Group composed after the amounts of the contribution and the share in the capital of the acquired company was 
accounted in the equity capital as “Fund outflow resulting from Shell Gaz A.Ş. acquisition”.
(**)  The group has purchased 18.5% of the shares of STAR Rafineri A.Ş.whose TRY49,996,996 out of TRY50,000,000 paid-in capital 
is owned by SOCAR Turkey Enerji A.Ş at 29 December 2011. Financial statements of STAR was included to the Group’s consolidated 
financial statements with the method of equity accounting considering the significant influence of the Group accordance with 
“Shareholders Agreement”.
(***) The capital increase is due to RWE&Turcas Güney.

STAŞ

As explained in Note 1, STAŞ operates for the sales, purchase, export and import, storage and distribution of each kind of fuel 
products.

The Shell Company of Turkey Ltd. and Turcas Petrol A.Ş. have established Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş. on 1 July 2006 by merging part of 
their assets. Turcas Petrol A.Ş. owns %30 of the new company. The main fields of activity of Turcas Petrol A.Ş., i.e. purchasing, selling, 
export and import of petroleum and petroleum products have started to be undertaken by Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş. as of  1 July 
2006. 

STAŞ, as one of the most important associates of the group, has generated TRY 10,760,269 thousands of sales revenue for the year 
2011 and continues to strengthen its place in the Turkey’s oil & lubricants market. The company maintains its first place in gasoline 
and lubricants sales and second place in white products (total of gasoline and diesel sales) sales with its 1,000 stations all over the 
country.

The summarized financial information of STAŞ, which is an associate of the Group accounted using the equity method is as follows:

STAŞ 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Total assets 2.835.487.000 2.465.606.000
Total liabilities (1.475.166.000) (1.037.049.000)
Net assets 1.360.321.000 1.428.557.000

Group’s share of associate’s net assets 408.096.300 428.567.400

 1 Ocak - 1 Ocak -
 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Net sales 10.760.269.000 9.395.195.000
Profit for the period 53.168.000 164.103.000

Group’s share of associate’s profit for the period 15.950.400 49.230.900
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RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş.
 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Total assets 906.959.648 236.593.984
Total liabilities (491.687.749) (8.504.435)
Net assets 415.271.899 228.089.549

Group’s share of associate’s net assets 124.581.570 68.426.864

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Loss for the period (7.468.128) (4.066.499)
Group’s share of loss for the period (2.240.438) (1.219.950)

Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. which is a %100 subsidiary of Turcas Petrol through the direct and indirect shares and the world’s leading 
energy companies, RWE Holding A.Ş., a subsidiary of RWE AG in Turkey, have established 2 joint ventures companies named RWE & 
Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. and RWE & Turcas Kuzey Elektrik Üretim A.Ş.. The share percentage of Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. is 
%30 in these companies. RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., in order to establish natural gas thermal power plant with775 MW 
in Denizli, has obtained the certificate of Environmental Impact Assesment from Ministry of Environment and Forestry in 2008 and 
applied to Energy Market Regulatory Authority for Electricity Production Pre-Licence, and received the license in 2009.

Moreover, for the power plant to be established by RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. in Denizli, a turnkey engineering, 
procurement and construction contract was signed with the Greek “METKA” firm on 27 October 2009. The construction licence of 
the power plant was also obtained during the same period. In 2010 system connection agreements were finalised with the Turkish 
Electricity Transmission Corporation and the final investment decision was reached. At the end of 2010 loan agreements have been 
signed with West LB, Bayern LB and TSKB for the financing of the project. The second phase of the construction was initiated on 30 
April 2010 as planned. 

The construction of the power plant  started on 19 July 2010. Agreements for gas provision, usage and connection were signed 
with BOTAŞ and Kentgaz (the local gas distribution company) in 2011. The gas procurement agreement covering 2012 was signed 
in February 2012 with BOTAŞ. The progress of power plant’s construction is 79% as of 31.12.2011. Afyon-Denizli line which is linked 
with the energy tranmission lines has been energized and now in use. The commercial operation of the plant is targeted to be 
achieved before the end of 2012.

Star Rafineri A.Ş.

The Group has purchased 18.5% of the shares of Star Rafineri A.Ş., whose TRY49,996,996 out of TRY50,000,000 paid-in share capital 
is owned by SOCAR Turkey Enerji A.Ş, at 29 December 2011. Production of LPG, naphta, products of xylene, diesel and fuel oil are the 
main activities of Star Rafineri A.Ş.
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The summarized financial information of STAR, which is an associate of the Group accounted using the equity method is as follows:

 31 December 2011

Total assets 111.064.251
Total liabilities (70.893.934)

Net assets 40.170.317

Group’s share of associate’s net assets 7.431.508

Goodwill 1.818.492

Total 9.250.000

NOTE 10 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
     
 1 January 2011 Additions Disposals Transfers(*) 31 December 2011

Cost
Machinery and equipment 11.465.783 777.598 - (470.387) 11.772.994
Motor vehicles, furniture    
  and fixtures 1.722.338 81.214 (73) - 1.803.479
Leasehold improvements 310.819 26.654 - - 337.473
Investment on Progress  91.527 - - - 91.527

 13.590.467 885.466 (73) (470.387) 14.005.473
 
Accumulated depreciation
Machinery and equipment 8.026.088 1.025.296 - (223.434) 8.827.950
Motor vehicles, furniture 
  and fixtures 1.290.786 133.156 (73) - 1.423.869
Leasehold improvements 191.779 55.521 - - 247.300

 9.508.653 1.213.973 (73) (223.434) 10.499.119

Net book value 4.081.814    3.506.354

(*) Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. has decided to sell the electricity generator which is constructed in need of Yeditepe Beynelmilel 
Otelcilik Turizm ve Ticaret A.Ş. The transaction of sale was singed at 19 July 2011and the sales of 75% of the generator has been 
occurred. 25% of the electricity generator has been reclassed to "Assets held for sale" account. 
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 1 January 2010 Additions Disposals Transfers 31 December 2010

Cost
Machinery and equipment 12.834.895 396.728 (7.647) (1.758.193) 11.465.783
Motor vehicles, furniture
  and fixtures 1.443.300 367.628 (139.530) 50.940 1.722.338
Leasehold improvements 303.147 7.672 - - 310.819 
Investment on Progress  - 142.467 - (50.940) 91.527

 14.581.342 914.495 (147.177) (1.758.193) 13.590.467

Accumulated depreciation
Machinery and equipment 7.618.217 1.069.448 (2.254) (659.323) 8.026.088
Motor vehicles, furniture
  and fixtures 1.307.365 111.023 (127.602) - 1.290.786
Leasehold improvements 135.264 56.515 - - 191.779

 9.060.846 1.236.986 (129.856) (659.323) 9.508.653

Net book value 5.520.496    4.081.814

The depreciation expenses of 31 December 2011 and 2010 have been added to general administrative expenses.

There is no mortgage on property, plant and equipment as of 31 December 2011 (2010: None).
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NOTE 11 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 1 January 2011 Additions Disposals Transfers 31 December 2011

Cost
Rights 29.579.043 77.766 - - 29.656.809

 29.579.043 77.766 - - 29.656.809

Accumulated depreciation
Rights 29.513.518 129.214 - - 29.642.732

 29.513.518 129.214 - - 29.642.732

Net book value 65.525    14.077

 1 January 2011 Additions Disposals Transfers 31 December 2010

Cost
Rights 29.478.517 100.526 - - 29.579.043

 29.478.517 100.526 - - 29.579.043

Accumulated depreciation
Rights 29.247.757 265.761 - - 29.513.518 

 29.247.757 265.761 - - 29.513.518 

Net book value 230.760    65.525

The depreciation expenses of 31 December 2011 and 2010 have been added to general administrative expenses.

 



130 TURCAS 2011 ANNUAL REPORT

TURCAS PETROL A.Ş.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent Liabilities related with Turcas

Contingent assets and liabilities of the Group regarding its subsidiaries are as follows:

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010 
  Original TRY Original TRY
 Currency Amount Amount Amount Amount
GPM’s given by the Company
(Guarantee-Pledge-Mortgage)
A. GPM’s given for companies 
  Own legal personality TRY 250.061 250.061 126.650 126.650
B. GPM’s given on behalf of fully
  Consolidated companies TRY 1.923.457 1.923.457 4.787.878 4.787.878
 USD - - 8.500.000 13.141.000
 EUR 250.000 610.950 - -
C. GPM’s given for continuation of its
  Economic activities on behalf of third parties(*) TRY 2.502.000 2.502.000 2.502.000 2.502.000
 USD 77.000.000 145.445.300 98.251.000 151.896.046
 EUR 172.508.022 421.575.104 - -

D. Total amount of other GPM’s     
  i) Total amount GPM’s given on 
  behalf of the majority shareholders  - - - -
  ii) Total amount of GPM’s given to on  
  behalf of other group companies which 
  are not in scope of B and C  - - - -
  iii) Total amount of GPM’s given on  
  behalf of third parties which are not  
  in scope of C  - - - -

   572.306.872  172.453.574

(*) As of 31 December 2011, the Company ceased to have obligations as guarantor on behalf of SOCAR & Turcas Petrokimya A.Ş. 
related to the acquisition of Petkim(31 December 2010: USD90,000,000).
(*) The guarantees given to banks related to the contract signed with Shell Enerji A.Ş. about the purchase of natural gas amounting to 
USD8,251,000 (31 December 2010: USD8,251,000)has been rendered as of March 2011.Consequently, there is no liability left about 
the pledge amounting to USD 8,500,000  as of 31 December 2011. 
(*) The mortgage amount is TRY2,502,000 for RWE&Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. (31 December 2010: TRY2,502,000).
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(*) Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. has entered into a loan agreement forUSD55,000,000 with TSKB, with a maturity of 10 years with a 
grace period of three years, regarding the loans made available for the 775 MW Natural Gas Combined Cycle Power Plant investment 
in Denizli. The amount of total guarantee given to TSKB by Turcas Petrol A.Ş. is USD77,000,000. As stated in Note 6, as a requirement 
of the loan agreement signed with West LB and Bayern LB, Turcas Petrol A.Ş. has provided a corporate guarantee amounting to EUR 
149,351,984 in favor of West LB and Bayern LB. Again, as a requirement of the loan agreement, a DSRA Standby Letter of Credit was 
arranged by Türkiye Garanti Bankası A.Ş. on behalf of Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. with Bayern LB as the drawee bank in the amount of 
EUR21,656,038, with a maturity of 15 July 2014. As a collateral to this DSRA Standby Letter of Credit, Turcas Petrol A.Ş. has provided a 
Corporate Guarantee Amounting to EUR21,656,038 in favor of Türkiye Garanti Bankası A.Ş.. In addition, Turcas Petrol A.Ş. has provided 
a guarantee of EUR1,500,000 to Siemens AG for the long term maintenance of gas tribunes in Denizli Project.

The rate of GPM’s given by the Company to equity is 91% as of 31 December 2011(31 December 2010: 31%).

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Mortgage received 2.201.150 2.201.150
Letter of guarantees received 39.195 117.195
Letter of other guarantees received 35.000 -

 2.275.345 2.318.345

Contingent assets and liabilities of Turcas Petrol A.Ş. regarding STAŞ 

If Shell Turkey, decides to hand over its shares in STAŞ to a third party, Turcas will have the right to sell them under the same 
circumstances and the same price with Shell Turkey (or if the sale option referred below is applicable, or greater than an amount of 
USD 150 million). However, if the third party makes an offer to the entire Shell Turkey Joint Venture Company, Shell Turkey can force 
Turcas to sell its shares under the same conditions and (1) Amount offered for the shares, (2) fair value, or (3) (If Turcas is forced to 
sell its shares 7 years and 13 days after (or before) the date partial separation took place) whichever is greater than USD 150 million. 
In this situation, Turcas, will not have to sell its shares if there is an objective reason not to sell its shares.

Turcas Petrol A.Ş. has the sale option which grants the right to sell the shares of STAŞ to Shell Turkey, provided that it obtains the 
required governmental and legal approvals. This sale option grants Turcas Petrol A.Ş. to sell the entire of Turcas shares in case of 
the amount that Joint Venture Company pays to Turcas and its associates within 2 years period before using sale option or total 
cumulative dividend in according with Joint Venture Company is less than 40 million USD to Shell Turkey within any time between 
the third and the seventh anniversary of the completion of partial divisions and the transfer of the assets to the Joint Venture 
Company,against 150 million USD (on condition that Shell is the shareholder of the Joint Venture Company at that date). Moreover, 
the mentioned sale option can be used within 30 days as of the seventh year following the completion of the partial division and 
transfer of the assets to the Joint Venture Company, without being subject to the above condition regarding the cumulative share 
distribution, and the amount to be paid by Shell Turkey for all of the Joint Venture Company shares possessed by Turcas shall be 150 
million USD.
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The contingent assets and liabilities of the Group related to STAŞ are follows:

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Letters of guarantee given to the customs office 84.217.800 54.176.400
Letters of guarantee given to the EMRA 15.000.000 15.000.000
Letters of guarantee given to the tax office 207.900 226.200
Other 2.986.800 10.289.251

 102.412.500 79.691.851

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Mortgages taken 240.114.900 191.955.900
Letters of guarantees received 114.857.100 80.856.300
Other guarantees received 7.232.100 7.255.200

 362.204.100 280.067.400

STAŞ has committed to pay TRY85,868,000 to the station owners for the station improvement in the periods mentioned below 
(31 December 2010: TRY90,713,000). The payment terms of group’s share of warranty is as follows:

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Within 1 year 6.174.900 9.705.000
1 - 5 years 16.863.000 15.823.800
5 - 22 years 2.722.500 1.685.100

 25.760.400 27.213.900

According to the environmental laws in effect, Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş. (“STAŞ”) is responsible for any environmental pollution that 
may arise as a result of its operations. In the case that STAŞ causes an environmental pollution, STAŞ may be required to recover 
the damages. There are no environmental lawsuits claimed against STAŞ as of the balance sheet date, however in the case of 
abandoning the currently operating terminals in the future, STAŞ may be charged for the soil clean-up costs for these terminals. On 
the other hand, according to the BCA, any environmental liabilities that have arisen prior to the acquisition date are the responsibility 
of shareholders. STAŞ is accountable only for the environmental liabilities that occur subsequent to the Acquisition Date. However, 
STAŞ management does not foresee any liabilities that should be reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

In compliance with the legislation, the dealers which fulfill the legal Special Consumption Tax Law Article 7/A requirements are 
allowed to make fuel sales to vehicles carrying export cargos without charging Special Consumption Taxes and Value Added Taxes 
as per stipulated by the law. In the first quarter of 2009, the tax authorities have completed a tax investigation on the Company’s 
deliveries related with the exemption covering a period between July 2006 and December 2008. With an interpretation of the 
tax regulations by the tax authorities exemption with regards to such deliveries are incentives provided to transit vehicles limited 
to a maximum amount of 550 liter per vehicle and the distributers are jointly responsible with the dealers. As a result of the 
investigation, the Company has been charged a tax penalty of TRY 56 million including penalties and interest charges with respect to 
portion of sales exceeding the restricted quantity of 550 liter per vehicle.
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A conciliation meeting was held between the Company and the tax authorities on 10 June 2009, however the parties could not come 
to a settlement at the end of the meeting. The Company has filed a lawsuit on 24 June 2009 for the cancellation of the penalty 
claiming that the 550 liter restriction is valid solely for inbound vehicles entering Turkey and there is no restriction on this incentive 
for outbound vehicles leaving Turkey; accordingly the Company claims that the conclusion of the tax authority and the related 
penalty has no legal basis. The Court has come to verdict on behalf of the company at August 2010. Tax office chose to go to court 
of cassation commencing the declaration date of the court. However, the Company management is of the opinion that the likelihood 
of winning the case is probable and has not recorded any provision with regards to the aforementioned penalty in the consolidated 
financial statements.

Commitment and contingent liabilities of Turcas regarding  of RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A,Ş.

The conditional assets and liabilities of the Group related to RWE & Turcas South Power Generation are as follows:

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Letters of guarantees given for EMRA 2.802.000 2.802.000
Other 556.007 556.007

 3.358.007 3.358.007

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Letters of guarantees received 117.773.939 98.053.262

 117.773.939 98.053.262

Commitment and contingent liabilities of Turcas regarding of Star Rafineri A,Ş.

The conditional assets and liabilities of the Group relating to Star Refining are as follows:

 31 December 2011

Letters of guarantees given 1.628

 1.628

 31 December 2011

Letters of guarantees received 2.922.266

 2.922.266

NOTE 13 - PROVISIONS

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Provision for general administrative expenses 6.500 6.500
Penalty provision - 860.000

 6.500 866.500
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NOTE 14 - PROVISION FOR EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION BENEFITS

Under the Turkish Legislations, the Company and its Turkish subsidiaries and associates are required to pay termination benefits to 
each employee who has completed one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, is called up for 
military service, dies or who retires after completing 25 years of service and reaches the retirement age (58 for women and 60 for 
men).
 
The amount payable consists of one month’s salary limited to a maximum of TRY2,731.85  (31 December 2010: TRY2,623.23) for 
each period of service at 31 December 2011.
 
The liability is not funded, as there is no funding requirement.

The liability means recent value of which consists the total estimated provision of future liabilities for retired personnel of the Group.
 
In accordance with Turkish Labour Code, employment termination benefit is the present value of the total estimated provision for 
the liabilities of the personnel who may retire in the future. The group is obligated to pay employment termination benefit for 
the personnel who are called up to military service, passed away or retired. The provision made for present value of determined 
social relief is calculated by the prescribed liability method. All actuarial profits and losses are accounted in the consolidated income 
statement.

IFRS require actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the enterprise’s obligation under defined benefit plans. The 
group makes a calculation for the employment termination benefit by applying the prescribed liability method, by the experiences 
and by considering the personnel who become eligible for company pension. This provision is calculated by expecting the present 
value of the future liability which will be paid for the retired personnel.

Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions were used in the calculation of the total liability.

 2011 2010

Discount rate(%) 4,66 4,66
Rate used to estimate the probability of retirement(%) 99 99
 
The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase parallel with inflation. Thus, the discount 
rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the anticipated effects of future inflation. The amount payable 
consists of one month’s salary limited to a maximum of TRY 2,805.04 for each period of service as of 1 January 2012 (1 January 2011: 
2,623.23).The maximum liability is revised semi annually.
 
Movements in the provisions for employment termination benefits for the years ended 31 December are as follows:
 
 2011 2010

Beginning of the year 250.319 196.660

Service cost 61.996 30.483
Interest cost 14.809 11.634
Compensation paid - (3.083)
Actuarial losses 5.844 14.625
End of the year 332.968 250.319 
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NOTE 15 - OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Other current assets
 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Prepaid expenses 1.431.265 1.399.220
VAT transferred 468.384 561.111
Work advances given 234.348 1.434
Income accrualsr 118.182 66.673
Prepaid taxes - 317.318

 2.252.179 2.345.756

Other non-current assets
 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Deferred VAT 3.668.276 3.583.923
Income accruals 380.547 -
Others 92.394 92.396

 4.141.217 3.676.319

Other long-term liabilities
 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Other payables(**) 1.189.604 1.387.736
Income accruals  728.624 744.410
Advances received(*) 30.342 1.575.930

 1.948.570 3.708.076

(*)  On 17 August 1995, an agreement was signed between four companies; Turcas Petrolcülük A.Ş., Tabaş Petrolcülük A.Ş., Selyak 
Petrol Ürünleri Üretim ve Pazarlama A.Ş. (Total Oil A.Ş.) and BP Petrolleri A.Ş. in order to use the Filling Establishment of BP Petrolleri 
A.Ş. in the Ambarlı region jointly. However, due to a dispute between BP Petrolleri A.Ş. and the third parties (around 600 partners) 
about the ownership of the land on which the establishment was built, Turcas Petrolcülük A.Ş. obtained USD1.000.000 from BP 
Petrolleri A.Ş. and Selyak Petrol Ürünleri Üretim ve Pazarlama A.Ş. to sell its own land to the other companies if this dispute can 
not be solved. Related advances are returned to Shell&Turcas Petrol A.Ş. by the Group in accordance with the agreement with 
Shell&Turcas Petrol A.Ş signed on 28 December 2011.
(**)  The amount represents the retirement pay provision of the employees until 30 June 2006 who were transferred from Turcas Petrol 
A.Ş to Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş., which is accounted for by the equity method, due to the spin-off. According to the 10th article of the 
‘Spin-off Agreement’ that was signed between the The Shell Company of Turkey Limited Turkey Branch and Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş., 
Until the date of transfer, Accumulated severence pay amount of the transferred staff to Shell&Turcas Petrol A.Ş is under the 
responsibility of the Group.
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NOTE 16 - EQUITY

a) Paid in capital / treasury shares

  Allocation 31 December Allocation 31 December
Shareholders Group (%) 2011 (%) 2010

Aksoy Holding A.Ş. A/C Group 51,55 115.979.910 51,55 115.979.910
Publicly Traded A Group 28,95 65.140.738 28,94 65.118.684
YTC Turizm ve Enerji Ltd. Şti. A Group 4,02 9.054.468 4,02 9.054.468
Suna Baban A/B Group 3,46 7.789.719 3,46 7.789.719
Müeddet Hanzat Öz A/B Group 3,46 7.794.215 3,46 7.794.215
Yılmaz Tecmen A/B Group 2,21 4.968.783 2,21 4.968.783
Other A/B Group 6,35 14.272.167 6,36 14.294.221

Total  100,00 225.000.000 100,00 225.000.000

Treasury shares adjustment(*)    (22.850.916)  (22.850.916)
Inflation adjustment   41.247.788  41.247.788

Adjusted capital   243.396.872  243.396.872

(*)  Treasury shares represent the shares of Turcas Petrol A.Ş. owned by Turcas Enerji Holding A.Ş.

The issued capital of the Company in 2011 is composed of 225,000,000 shares (2010: 225,000,000 shares). The nominal value of 
shares is TRY1 per share.

At least three members of the Board of Directors are elected among the candidates nominated by Group “B” shareholders. At least 
two members of the Board of Directors are elected among the candidates nominated by Group C shareholders. Group C shareholders 
have at least forty percent (40%) right, Group A shareholders have the right of nominating and electing three (3) members of 
the Board of Directors at the General Assembly Meeting where the members of the Board of Directors are elected. However, the 
remaining members of the Board of Directors are nominated and elected by the Group B shareholders.

One of the two members of the Audit Committee of the Company is elected among the nominees of the Group C shareholders, and 
the other member is elected among the candidates who are nominated by the majority of the Group B shareholders.

At least one of the the Group C shareholders is required to vote in the affirmative for some critical decisions determined in the 
establishment agreement of the Company.

There is no privilege assigned to any group of shares in terms of dividend distribution.
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b) Restricted reserves 

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Legal reserves 29.863.083 26.996.418

 29.863.083 26.996.418

The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code (TCC). The 
TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of statutory profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve 
reaches 20% of the company’s paid-in share capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all 
cash distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in share capital. Under the TCC, the legal reserves can be used only to offset losses and 
are not available for any other usage unless they exceed 50% of paid-in share capital.

Quoted companies are subject to dividend requirements regulated by CMB as follows:

It was announced in the CMB decision dated 9 January 2009, number 1/6 that without considering the fact that a profit distribution 
has been declared in the general assemblies of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, which are consolidated into the parent 
company’s financial statements, the net income from these companies that are consolidated into the financial statements of the 
parent company can be considered when calculating the distributable amount, as long as the statutory reserves of these entities are 
sufficient for a such profit distribution. After completing these requirements, the parent company may distribute profit by considering 
the net income included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Communiqué No. XI-29 of CMB.

In accordance with the CMB decision dated January 27, 2010, it is decided to remove the obligation related with the minimum 
dividend distribution rate for publicly traded companies.

Inflation adjustment to shareholders' equity can only be netted-off against prior years' losses and used as an internal source for 
capital increase where extraordinary reserves can be netted-off against prior years' loss and used in the distribution of bonus shares 
and dividends to shareholders. In case inflation adjustment to issued capital is used as dividend distribution in cash, it is subject to 
corporation tax.

NOTE 17 - SALES AND COST OF SALES

 2011 2010

Electricity sales 9.361.639 3.307.488
Natural gas sales - 49.027.338
Service sales - 633.478
Sales discounts(*) - (3.312.255)
Other sales 1.622.980 2.681.911

 10.984.619 52.337.960

(*)  This amount is related to price difference which has been invoiced by Petkim Petrokimya A.Ş to Turcas Gaz Toptan Satış A.Ş.
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 2011 2010

Cost of utilities sold 9.238.889 46.986.177
Transmission capacity and service fee 461.153 4.827.132
Other costs 12.507 -

 9.712.549 51.813.309

NOTE 18 - OPERATING EXPENSES

Marketing, Sales and Distribution Expenses  2011 2010

Personnel expenses 807.286 -
Other services received(*) 412.107 -
Travel expenses 69.695 -
Repair and maintenance expenses 18.754 -
Rent expenses 9.388 -
Taxes and other liabilities 8.084 -
Other 87.770 -

 1.413.084 -

(*) TRY359,973 of other service received as of 31 December 2011 consist of the invoices which Yeditepe Beynelmilel Otelcilik Turizm 
ve Ticaret A.Ş. charged to Group due to unutilized capacity of cogeneration plant.

General Administrative Expenses 2011 2010

Personnel expenses 3.861.677 3.682.473
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1.343.187 1.502.747
Taxes and other liabilities 1.102.056 559.762
Other services received 1.087.209 1.398.901
Travel expenses 720.365 591.658
Rent expenses 554.284 560.049
Doubtful receivable and 
  other provision expenses 256.046 31.899
Repair and maintenance expenses 131.444 317.463
Penalty payments(Note 13) - 860.000
Other 1.208.857 1.372.485

 10.265.125 10.877.437
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NOTE 19 - EXPENSES BY NATURE

 2011 2010

Cost of utilities sold 9.712.549 51.813.309
Personnel expenses 4.668.963 3.682.473
Services received 1.499.315 1.398.901
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1.343.187 1.502.747
Taxes and other liabilities 1.110.140 559.762
Travel expenses 790.060 591.658
Rent expenses 563.672 560.049
Doubtful receivable and other provision expenses 256.046 31.899
Repair and maintenance expenses 150.198 317.463
Penalty payments - 860.000
Other 1.296.628 1.372.485

 21.390.758 62.690.746 

NOTE 20 - OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

Other operating income 2011 2010

Revenue from the sales of STEAS shares(*) 83.818.943 -
Shell Company Joint Venture Contract revenue(**) 12.764.169 16.280.680
Compensation revenue(***) 2.218.448 -
Service revenue 798.471 1.429.492
Profit from sales of current assets 492.239 -
Adjustments of Unused Allowances 458.755 108.805
Provisions no longer required(****) 379.708 -
Rent income 112.422 289.944
Other 79.321 176.352

 101.122.476 18.285.273

(*)  The shares, which the Group has TRY50,000,000, out of TRY200,000,000 paid-in capital of Socar & Turkey Enerji A.Ş., was sold to 
SOCAR on 26 December 2011 amounting to USD44,000,000 in accordance with “Share Sales & Purchase Agreement”.
(**)  Associate Initiative Agreement gives the right to reflect the predetermined amount about Turcas to Shell Türkiye under the 
circumstances of exceeding amounts of reflected administration expenses from the main associate abroad of Shell Türkiye to STAŞ. 
(***)  Partial demerger of Turcas Petrol A.Ş. and the Shell Company of Turkey Ltd. was finalised on 30 June 2006. The Group received 
compensation amounting to TRY 2,218,448 as a result of the finalisation of the lawsuits initiated before the demerger.
(****)  The Group has given energy consultancy service to Yeditepe Beynelmilel Otelcilik Turizm ve Ticaret A.Ş. in accordance with the 
service agreement between the Group and Yeditepe Beynelmilel Otelcilik Turizm ve Ticaret A.Ş. at 27 October 2010.
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Other operating expense
 2011 2010

Provision expenses 130.337 149.770
Loss on sale of fixed assets - 57.041
Other 19.023 119.979

 149.360 326.790

NOTE 21 - FINANCIAL INCOME
 2011 2010

Foreign exchange gains 12.731.892 5.533.734
Interest income 11.516.182 5.169.364
Credit finance income 97.706 3.581

 24.345.780 10.706.679

NOTE 22 - FINANCIAL EXPENSES
 2011 2010

Foreign exchange losses 18.892.470 5.905.248
Interest expenses 6.620.656 690.097
Credit finance charges 315.052 1.000

 25.828.178 6.596.345

NOTE 23 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Tax liability on profits for the period

Current tax liability 31 December  2011 31 December  2010

Corporate tax provision (5.025.626) (3.119.707)
Less: Prepaid tax and funds 3.237.021 3.437.025

(Current tax liability) / Prepaid tax and funds, net (1.788.605) 317.318

Tax expense is comprised of the following:

 2011 2010

Current year corporate 
   tax expense (5.025.626) (3.119.707)
Deferred tax income / (expense) 145.354 (224.683)

 (4.880.272) (3.344.390)
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Corporate Tax

Turkish tax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiaries to file a consolidated tax return. Therefore, tax liabilities, 
as reflected in these consolidated financial statements, have been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

The Group is subject to Turkish corporate taxes. Provision is recognized in the accompanying financial statements for the estimated 
charge based on the Group’s results for the period.

In Turkey, advance tax returns are filed on a quarterly basis. The advance corporate income tax rate is 20% in 2011 (2010: 20%). 
Corporate Tax rate is applied to net corporate income which is calculated by adding corporate trade profits, non-discountable 
expenses according to tax laws and substracting expenses and discounts identified in tax laws. Losses are allowed to be carried 5 
years maximum to be deducted from the taxable profit of the following years. However, losses occurred cannot be deducted from 
the profit occurred in the prior years retrospectively.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies file their tax returns by the 25th 
of the fourth month following the close of the financial year to which they relate. 

Income withholding tax 

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds surcharge on any dividends 
distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are resident companies in Turkey and Turkish branches of foreign 
companies. The rate of income withholding tax is 15 %.Undistributed dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject to 
income withholding taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The Group, recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences arising between their financial statements 
prepared in accordance with CMB Financial Reporting Standards and their statutory financial statements. These temporary differences 
usually result in the recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting periods for CMB Financial Reporting Standards and tax 
purposes.

The rate applied in the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities is 20% (2010: %20)
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The breakdowns of cumulative temporary differences and the resulting deferred tax assets / liabilities using principal tax rates are as 
follows:

 Total temporary                          Deferred tax
 differences  asset / (liability) 
 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
 2011 2010 2011 2010

Tangible and intangible assets (822.471) 682.296 164.494 (136.459)
Provision for employment
   termination benefits (332.968) (250.319) 66.594 50.064
Doubtful receivables provision (151.055) (151.055) 30.211 30.211
Carry-forward losses - (1.048.368) - 209.674
Unused vacation provisions (516.024) (234.938) 103.204 46.987
Prepaid commission expenses (1.431.265) (1.098.871) (286.253) (219.774)
Unearned credit finance expense 345.384 - 69.078 -
Unearned credit finance income 106.356 - (21.271) -

Deferred tax asset / (liability), net   126.057 (19.297)

As of the balance sheet date, the Group has carry-forward tax losses amounting to TRY 32,187,479 (2010: TRY 20,021,270) to be 
deducted from future profits. The expiration dates of unrecognized 
carry-forward tax losses are as follows(Note 2.4):

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

2011 - 34.161
2012 3.301.603 3.301.603
2013 11.081.941 11.081.941
2014 2.128.337 2.128.337
2015 3.475.228 3.475.228
2016 12.200.370 -

 32.187.479 20.021.270

The movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Opening balance (19.297) 205.386
Deferred tax expense 145.354 (224.683)

Closing balance 126.057 (19.297)
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The reconciliation of tax expenses stated in consolidated income statements is as follows:

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Profit before tax 102.794.541 59.726.981

Tax Effect(%) 20% 20%
Tax expense of the Group (20.558.908) (11.945.396)

Dividend income 6.164.574 9.000.000
Tax effect of exemptions 15.072.841 -
Unused portion of carry forward tax losses (2.524.770) (695.046)
Tax effect of non deductible expenses (3.955.498) (29.107)
Other 921.489 325.159

Income tax expense (4.880.272) (3.344.390)

NOTE 24 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the weighted average number of shares and earnings per share are as follows:

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Weighted average number of
   outstanding shares 225.000.000 225.000.000
Net profit of shareholders  97.915.312 56.382.717

Earnings per share 0,4352 0,2506
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NOTE 25 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

            31 December  2011                        
 Receivables Payables                   
 Short term Long term Short term Long term     
  Non-  Non-  Non-  Non-
Balances with related parties Trading trading Trading trading Trading trading   Trading trading

Associates

Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş. - - - - - 191.616 - -
Star Rafineri A.Ş.(*) - 12.575.456 - - - - - -
RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş.(**) - - - 138.243.752 - - - -

Other entities controlled by the main shareholder

Conrad Yeditepe Beyn. Otelcilik 
  Turz.ve Tic. A.Ş.(***) 185.650 - - - - - - -
Ataş Anadolu Tasfiyehanesi A.Ş. - - - - - 352.901 - -
Dividend payable to real person shareholders - - - - 253.531 - - -

 185.650 12.575.456 - 138.243.752 253.531 544.517 - -

(*)  A loan has been given to Star Rafineri A.Ş., one of the Group’s associates, for financial purposes. In relation with this loan, interest 
of TRY529,956 is booked using current market interest rate.
(**)  In order to finance the Denizli Project of RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., the Group has entered into a loan agreement 
with Bayern LB and West LB. This Loan is being utilized to RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., as Shareholder Loans as per the 
terms stated in Shareholder Loan Agreement signed on 31 December 2010.
(***)  Turcas Elektrik Toptan Satış A.Ş., one of the Group’s associates, sells electricity to Conrad Yeditepe Beynelmilel Otelcilik Turizm ve 
Ticaret A.Ş., as with other clients, according to sales contract signed between them. This amount has been collected in subsequent 
period.
       1 January - 31 December  2011                 
   Interest Interest Rent Divident Other Other
Transactions with related parties Purchases Sales received given income income income   expenses

Associates

SOCAR & Turcas Petrokimya A.Ş. - - 2.094 - - - - -
Star Rafineri A.Ş. - - 529.956 - - - - -
Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş. 353.719 1.229.342 - - 584.460 30.822.870 2.831.412 -
Petkim Petrokimya Holding A.Ş. - - - - - - 921 -
RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. - - 5.466.301 - - - 967.948 -

Other entities controlled by the main shareholder

Conrad Yeditepe Beyn. Otelcilik 
  Turz. ve Tic A.Ş. - 2.636.844 - - - - 379.708 -
Etiler Dış Ticaret Ltd. Şti. - - - - 1.200 - - -
Aksoy Holding A.Ş. - - 600.064 - 11.886 - 25.798 -
Enak Yapı ve Dış Ticaret A.Ş. - - - - 1.200 - - -

 353.719 3.866.186 6.598.415 - 598.746 30.822.870 4.205.787 -
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            31 December 2010                         
 Receivables Payables                       
 Short term Long term Short term Long term      
  Non-  Non-  Non-  Non-
Balances with related parties Trading trading Trading trading Trading trading    Trading trading

Associates

SOCAR & Turcas Enerji A.Ş. - - - - - - - -
Shell&Turcas Petrol A.Ş. - - - - - - - -
SOCAR & Turcas Petrokimya A.Ş. - 66.776 - - - - - -
Socar & Turcas Rafineri A.Ş. - 50.108 - - - - - -
Petkim Petrokimya A.Ş. 4.894.434 - - - - - - -
RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. 131.952 - - - - - - -

Other entities controlled by the main shareholder        

Conrad Yeditepe Beyn. Otelcilik Turz.ve Tic. A.Ş. 217.438 - - - - - - -
Ataş Anadolu Tasfiyehanesi A.Ş. - - - - - 184.453 - -
Dividend payable to real person shareholders - - - - 238.716   - - -

 5.243.824 116.884 - - 238.716 184.453 - -

       1 January - 31 December 2010                    
   Interest Interest Rent Divident Other Other
Transactions with related parties Purchases Sales received given income income income expenses

Associates

SOCAR & Turcas Enerji A.Ş. - 20.362 137.537 - 50.224 - 267.556 -
Shell & Turcas Petrol A.Ş. 195.012 392.915 - - 561.996 45.000.000 1.591 -
SOCAR & Turcas Petrokimya A.Ş. - - 151.668 - 8.446 - 221.105 -
SOCAR & Turcas Rafineri A.Ş. - - 22.843 - 8.446 - 237.308 -
SOCAR Bosphorus Enerji ve Ticaret Ltd. Şti. - - - - 720 - - -
Petkim Petrokimya Holding A.Ş. 49.725.940 - - - 60.363 - 373.298 3.857.324
RWE & Turcas Güney Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. - - - - - - 690.280 -

Other entities controlled by the main shareholder       

Conrad Yeditepe Beyn. Otelcilik 
  Turz. ve Tic A.Ş. - 2.326.555 - - - - - -
Etiler Dış Ticaret Ltd. Şti. - - - - 4.921 - - -
Aksoy Holding A.Ş. - - - - 4.922 - - -
Aksoy Petrol ve Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş.        
Enak Yapı ve Dış Ticaret A.Ş. - - - - 4.922 - 2.969 -
Aksoy Petrol Dağıtım Yatırımları A.Ş. - - - - - - - -
Ataş Anadolu Tasfiyehanesi A.Ş. 1.071.204 - - - 90.195 - 59.244 -

 50.992.156 2.739.832 312.048 - 795.155 45.000.000 1.853.351 3.857.324
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Total compensation provided to key management personnel by the Company during the year ended 
31 December 2011 are as follows:

 1 January - 1 January -
 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Salaries and other short term benefits 986.039 908.484

NOTE 26 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Capital risk management 

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the 
return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable 
to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The management of the Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The management of 
the Group aims to balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and the issue of new debt 
or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group controls its capital using the net debt/total capital ratio. This ratio is the calculated as net debt divided by the total capital 
amount. Net debt is calculated as total liability amount (comprises of financial liabilities, leasing and trade payables as presented 
in the balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as shareholders’ equity plus the net debt amount as 
presented in the balance sheet.

As of 31 December 2011 and 2010 net debt / total capital ratio is as follows:

 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Total liabilities 226.234.607 8.512.575
Cash and cash equivalents (118.261.958) (45.882.464)

Net debt 107.972.649 (37.369.889)
Total equity 629.270.963 547.601.279
Total capital 737.243.612 510.231.390

Net debt / total capital ratio 15% (7%)

The Group’s overall strategy is not different from previous period.

(b) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash 
flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the group’s financial performance. 
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Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The 
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate, as 
a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the financial position of customers 
is reviewed taking into consideration of the historical experiences and other factors. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the 
financial condition of accounts receivable based on the group policies and procedures and, where appropriate, doubtful provision is 
booked and net position is disclosed on the balance sheet.
           
                       Receivables                                             
  Trade receivables                 Other receivables                                
 Related        Third     Related   Third   Deposits at    Derivative
31 December 2011 party party party  party banks   instruments   Other   

Maximum net credit risk as of balance sheet date(*)

 (A +B+C+D+E) 185.650 1.845.533 12.575.456 37.079.081 118.254.863 - 7.095
- The part of maximum risk under guarantee with collateral etc. - 287.525 - - - - -

A - Net book value of financial assets that are neither 
  past due nor impaired 185.650 1.424.902 12.575.456 37.079.081 118.254.863 - 7.095
- The part under guarantee with collateral etc. - - - - - - -

B - Net book value of financial assets that are renegotiated, 
if not that will be accepted as past due or impaired - - - - - - -
- The part under guarantee with collateral etc. - - - - - - -

C - Carrying value of financial assets that are past due but 
not impaired - - - - - - -
- The part under guarantee with collateral etc. - - - - - - -

D - Net book value of impaired assets - 420.631 - - - - -
- Past due  (gross carrying amount) - 1.086.955 - - - - -
- Impairment(-) - (666.324) - - - - -
- The part of net value under guarantee with collateral etc. - 287.525 - - - - -
- Not past due (gross carrying amount) - - - - - - -
- Impairment (-) - - - - - - -
- The part of net value under guarantee with collateral etc. - - - - - - -

E - Off-balance sheet items with credit risk - - - - - - -

(*) The factors that increase in credit reliability such as guarantees received (mortgages) are not considered in the balance.
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                 Receivables                                                              
         Trade receivables                   Other receivables                               
       Related Third Related Third Deposits at      Derivative
31 December 2010 party party party party banks    instruments Other
 
Maximum net credit risk as of balance sheet date(*)

 (A +B+C+D+E) 5.243.824 1.990.676 116.884 24.029 45.862.759 - 19.705
- The part of maximum risk under guarantee with collateral etc. - 287.525 - - - - -

A - Net book value of financial assets that are neither past
  due nor impaired 5.243.824 1.570.045 116.884 24.029 45.862.759 - 19.705
- The part under guarantee with collateral etc. - - - - - - -

B - Net book value of financial assets that are renegotiated,
  if not that will be accepted as past due or impaired  - - - - - - -
- The part under guarantee with collateral etc. - - - - - - -

C - Carrying value of financial assets that are past due
  but not impaired - - - - - - -
- The part under guarantee with collateral etc. - - - - - - -

D - Net book value of impaired assets - 420.631 - - - - -
- Past due  (gross carrying amount) - 1.507.744 - - - - -
- Impairment(-) - (1.087.113) - - - - -
- The part of net value under guarantee with collateral etc. - 287.525 - - - - -
- Not past due (gross carrying amount) - - - - - - -
- Impairment(-) - - - - - - -
- The part of net value under guarantee with collateral etc. - - - - - - -

E -Off-balance sheet items with credit risk - - - - - - -

(*) The factors that increase in credit reliability such as guarantees received (mortgages) are not considered in the balance.

As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of TRY1,610,552 (31 December 2010:TRY6,813,869) were neither due nor impaired.

As of 31 December 2011, there were no trade receivables (31 December 2010: None) past due but not impaired. As a result of 
the sect oral conditions and dynamics, the Group does not consider any collection risk for the over due receivables which are up to 
60 days. For the receivables which the Group could not collect in 60 days, the Group has guarantees like mortgage and does not 
consider any collection risk.

As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of TRY1,086,955 (31 December 2010: TRY1,507,744) were assessed as impaired. The 
collaterals held for these receivables were deducted and TRY666,324 provision has been provided for as of 31 December 2011 (31 
December 2010: TRY1,087,113). This provision is determined as the past experience of the Group on not to being able to collect.
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The aging of the past due receivables are as follows:
    
                                                                          Receivables 
31 December 2011 Trade Receivables Other Receivables

Past due 1-5 years 554.589 -
Past due more than 5 years 532.366 -

 1.086.955 -

    
                                                                          Receivables 
31 December 2010 Trade Receivables Other Receivables

Past due 1-5 years 975.378 -
Past due more than 5 years 532.366 -

 1.507.744 -

Liquidity risk management

The group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring the expected and actual cash flow statements and matching financial assets and 
liabilities to keep to flow of necessary funds and debt reserves. 

Liquidity risk tables

Careful liquidity risk management shows the ability to keep the right amount of cash, the usability of loan transactions and fund 
resources and the power of closing market positions.

The current and future loans’ funding risk is managed by making the accessibility to adequate and high quality loan suppliers 
permanently.

The table below shows the due dates of the non-derivative financial liabilities of The Group. Interests of future periods’ liabilities 
has been distributed to the due dates below and the said interests has been shown in the corrections column in order to have 
reconciliation with the balance sheet values.

31 December 2011                        
                       Total                   
Contractual Maturity        contractual                  More than
            cash flow    Less than           3-12         1-5 Years             5 Years
Analysis                      Carrying value       (I-II-III-IV)   3 Months (I) Months (II)         (III)       (IV)  

Non-derivative 
  Financial liabilities      

Financial borrowings 212.212.104 241.584.759 - - 48.545.631 193.039.128
Trade payables 2.333.533 2.439.887 2.439.887 - - -

Total liabilities 214.545.637 244.024.646 2.439.887 -          48.545.631 193.039.128
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31 December 2010                          
                                                        Total    
                     contractual                  More than
Contractual Maturity         cash flow      Less than            3-12      1-5 Years               5 Years
Analysis         Carrying value       (I-II-III-IV) 3 Months (I) Months (II)        (III)                     (IV)

Non-derivative
  Financial liabilities      

Financial borrowings 788.347 837.224 68.386 206.597 562.241 -
Trade payables 7.007.726 7.007.726 7.007.726 - - -

Total liabilities     7.796.073      7.844.950    7.076.112  206.597  562.241            -

Market risk management

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Market risk exposures of the Group are measured using sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk. 

(i) Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency transactions cause foreign currency risk.

The Group has foreign currency risk, due to the fluctuations in exchange rates used in foreign currency transactions. The foreign 
currency risk arises from future trade transactions and the difference between recorded assets and liabilities. Under such 
circumstances, the group controls this risk by netting off the foreign currency assets and liabilities. The management analyzes the 
group’s foreign currency position and takes necessary precautions when needed.
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The Group is primarily exposed to risks from US Dollar and EURO, other currency’s effects are immaterial.

   31 December 2011   
  TRY Equivalent
  (Functional
  currency) US Dollar Euro Other

1- Trade receivables 11.862.292 6.280.000 - -
2a- Monetary financial assets 84.879.995 44.934.130 1.334 225
2b- Non-monetary financial assets - - - -
3- Other - - - -

4- Current assets  (1+2+3) 96.742.287 51.214.130 1.334 225
5- Trade receivables - - - -
6a- Monetary financial assets - - - -
6b- Non-monetary financial assets - - - -
7- Other - - - -

8- Non-current assets  (5+6+7) - - - -

9- Total Assets  (4+8) 96.742.287 51.214.130 1.334 225

10- Trade payables - - - -
11- Financial liabilities - - - -
12a- Other monetary financial liabilities - - - -
12b- Other non-monetary financial liabilities - - - -

13- Current Liabilities  (10+11+12) - - - -

14- Trade payables - - - -
15- Financial liabilities 241.218.174 - 98.706.185 -
16a- Other monetary financial liabilities - - - -
16b- Other non-monetary financial liabilities - - - -

17- Non-current liabilities (14+15+16) 241.218.174 - 98.706.185 -

18- Total liabilities (13+17) 241.218.174 - 98.706.185 -

19- Net asset / liability position of
   off-balance sheet derivatives  (19a-19b) - - - -

19a- Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative assets - - - -
19b- Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative liabilities - - - -

20- Net foreign currency asset liability  
  position (9+18+19) (144.475.887) 51.214.130 (98.704.851) 225

21- Net foreign currency asset / liability
   position of monetary items 
   (1+2a+5+6a+10+11-12a-14+15-16a) (144.475.887) 51.214.130 (98.704.851) 225

22- Fair value of foreign currency hedged financial assets - - - -

23- Hedged foreign currency assets - - - -

24- Hedged foreign currency liabilities - - - -

25- Exports - - - -

26- Imports - - -  - 
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   31 December 2010   
  TRY Equivalent
  (Functional
  currency) US Dollar Euro Other

1- Trade receivables - - - -
2a- Monetary financial assets 26.320.377 17.019.483 3.732 306
2b- Non-monetary financial assets - - - -
3- Other - - - -

4- Current assets (1+2+3) 26.320.377 17.019.483 3.732 306
5- Trade receivables - - - -
6a- Monetary financial assets - - - -
6b- Non-monetary financial assets - - - -
7- Other - - - -

8- Non-current assets (5+6+7) - - - -

9- Total Assets (4+8) 26.320.377 17.019.483 3.732 306

10- Trade payables - - - -
11- Financial liabilities 502.100 - 245.034 -
12a- Other monetary financial liabilities - - - -
12b- Other non-monetary financial liabilities - - - -

13- Current Liabilities (10+11+12) 502.100 - 245.034 -

14- Trade payables - - - -
15- Financial liabilities 588.020 - 286.965 -
16a- Other monetary financial liabilities - - - -
16b- Other non-monetary financial liabilities 1.547.855 1.001.200 - -

17- Non-current liabilities (14+15+16) 2.135.875 1.001.200 286.965 -

18- Total liabilities (13+17) 2.637.975 1.001.200 531.999 -

19- Net asset / liability position of
   off-balance sheet derivatives (19a-19b) - - - -

19a- Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative assets - - - -
19b- Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative liabilities - - - -

20- Net foreign currency asset liability position
   (9+18+19) 23.682.402 16.018.283 (528.267) 306

21- Net foreign currency asset /  
   liability position of monetary items
   (1+2a+5+6a+10+11-12a-14+15-16a) 25.230.258 17.019.483 (528.267) 306

22- Fair value of foreign currency hedged financial assets - - - -

23- Hedged foreign currency assets - - - -

24- Hedged foreign currency liabilities - - - -

25- Exports - - - -

26- Imports - - - -
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Foreign currency sensitivity
   31 December 2011    
  Gain / Loss  Equity 
  Appreciation of Devaluation of Appreciation of Devaluation of
  foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency
+/-10% fluctuation of USD rate

1- US Dollar net asset / liability  9.673.837 (9.673.837) 9.673.837 (9.673.837)
2- Hedged from US Dollar risk (-)  - - - -

3 - US Dollar net effect (1+2)  9.673.837 (9.673.837) 9.673.837 (9.673.837)

+/-10% fluctuation of EUR rate

4- Euro net asset / liability  (24.121.491) 24.121.491 (24.121.491) 24.121.491
5- Hedged from Euro risk (-)  - - - -

6 - Euro net effect (4+5)  (24.121.491) 24.121.491 (24.121.491) 24.121.491

+/-10% fluctuation of Other foreign currency rates

7-  Other foreign currency net asset / liability 66 (66) 66 (66)
8-  Hedged from other foreign currency risks (-) - - - -

9 - Other foreign currency net effect (7+8) 66 (66) 66 (66)

TOTAL (3+6+9)  (14.447.588) 14.447.588 (14.447.588) (14.447.588)
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   31 December 2010    
  Gain / Loss  Equity 
  Appreciation of Devaluation of Appreciation of Devaluation of
  foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency
+/-10% fluctuation of USD rate

1- US Dollar net asset / liability  2.476.427 (2.476.427) 2.476.427 (2.476.427)
2- Hedged from US Dollar risk (-)    - - - -

3- US Dollar net effect (1+2)  2.476.427 (2.476.427) 2.476.427 (2.476.427)

+/-10% fluctuation of EUR rate

4- Euro net asset / liability  (108.248) 108.248 (108.248) 108.248
5- Hedged from Euro risk (-)  - - - -

6 - Euro net effect (4+5)  (108.248) 108.248 (108.248) 108.248

+/-10% fluctuation of Other foreign currency rates

7-  Other foreign currency net asset / liability 61 (61) 61 (61)
8-  Hedged from other foreign currency risks (-) - - - -

9 -  Other foreign currency net effect (7+8) 61 (61) 61 (61)

TOTAL (3+6+9)  2.368.240 (2.368.240) 2.368.240 (2.368.240)

(ii) Interest risk management

Financial liabilities expose the Group to interest rate risk. This interest rate risk is managed by natural precautions which are formed 
by balancing the assets and liabilities that have interest rate sensitivity.
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Interest rate sensitivity 

The financial instruments that are sensitive to interest rate are as follows: 

 31 December2011 31 December 2010

Fixed interest rate financial instruments

Financial assets 117.826.210 45.689.648
Fair value through profit and loss - -
Available for sale financial assets  - -

Financial liabilities - 788.347

Floating interest rate financial instruments

Financial assets - -
Financial liabilities 212.212.104 -

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated. Based on the simulations 
performed, if interest rates of borrowings with floating rates had been 1 basis points higher / lower with all other variables held 
constant, post tax profit of the Group would be TRY1,111,761 lower / higher. (2010: None).

NOTE 27 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other 
than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced by a quoted market price, if one exists.

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group, using available market information and 
appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgment is necessarily required to interpret market data to estimate the fair value. 
Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could realise in a current market 
exchange.

Following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the financial instruments for which is practicable to 
estimate fair value:



156 TURCAS 2011 ANNUAL REPORT

Financial Assets

The fair values of trade receivables denominated in foreign currencies, which are translated at period-end exchange rates, are 
considered to be the approximate carrying values.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents are estimated to be their fair values since they are short term.

The carrying values of trade receivables along with the related allowances for uncollectibility are estimated to be their fair values 
since they are short term.

The fair values of financial assets along with the related allowances for impairment are estimated to be their carrying values.

Financial Liabilities

The fair values of short-term financial liabilities are estimated to be their carrying values since they are short term.

The fair values of long term credits denominated in foreign currencies, which have floating interest rates, are considered to be the 
approximate carrying values.

Liabilities for employee benefits  are booked by their discounted values.

Fair Value Estimation

Effective from 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the amendment to IFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the 
balance sheet at fair value; this requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement 
hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The carrying values of trade receivables along with the related allowances for uncollectibility are estimated to be their fair values. 

The fair values of certain financial assets carried at cost, including cash and amounts due from banks are considered to approximate 
to their respective carrying values due to their short-term nature.

Trade receivables and payables are valued at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Trade receivables and payables are 
considered to approximate fair values.

NOTE 28 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As detailed in Note 6, a total of USD15,400,000 (USD600,000 on 21 March 2012, USD14,800,000 on 29 March 2012) of loan has 
been used in accordance with the loan agreement between Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. which is a subsidiary of the Group and TSKB. 
Related loan will be used in scope of funding Denizli Project as a part of Turcas Elektrik Üretim A.Ş.’s responsibilities.

TURCAS PETROL A.Ş.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise indicated.)
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